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Biographical Details of Directors & Chief Executive Officer

EFRERWNTE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wu Kebo (“Mr. Wu”)
Aged 58

Mr. Wu is the chairman, executive director and a member of the
remuneration committee and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also currently a director of Orange Sky Entertainment
Group (International) Holding Company Limited (“OSEG") and its
subsidiaries. OSEG, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and being a substantial shareholder of the Company,
was founded by Mr. Wu in 2004 and is principally engaged in music and
musical production, artist management and advertising business in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). With regard to film, Mr. Wu
acted respectively as executive producer of the two Chinese films Red
Cliff and The Warlords, as well as producer of other Chinese titles
including Call for Love, | am Liu Yuejin and Dangerous Games. In addition,
Mr. Wu has been involved in high technology and telecommunications
businesses since the 1990s. Mr. Wu graduated with a bachelor's degree
in business administration from the SOKA University Japan in 1992. Mr.
WA joined the Company in October 2007 and is the cousin of Ms. Go
Misaki, an executive director of the Company.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Pei Sen (“Mr. Li”)
Aged 74

Mr. Li joined the Company as a non-executive director in March 2009
and was re-designated as an executive director of the Company in April
2010. He is also the associate chairman of OSEG. Mr. Li was an
associate director of China TV Production Centre in 1994 and the
general manager of China Central Television in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Li
joined China International Television Corporation (“TVC") as president
and was involved in its corporate structuring. During his presidency at
TVC, Mr. Li was also in charge of television production, as well as the
domestic and global licensing business of Chinese television
programmes. Prior to joining OSEG as the associate chairman, Mr. Li
served as the director of China TV Production Centre in 2000. Mr. Li
has over |5 years of working experience in film and television series
production and acted as the producer of more than a thousand
episodes of television series, including a number of popular and high
audience rating titles such as All men are brothers: blood of the leopard,
Taiping Heavenly Kingdom, Vernacular stories from the end of Western
Zhou Dynasty to the Qin Dynasty and The story of Hongkong and cartoon
series Journey to the West. In addition, Mr. Li is also a committee member
of the China Federation of Literary and Art Circles, a council member
of China TV Workers' Association, the vice-president of China TV, Film
Productions Committee, a member of the censorship expert committee
of State Administration of Radio, Film and Television, and a consultant
to TVC.
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Biographical Details of Directors & Chief Executive Officer

E?&Eﬁﬂ"

Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona (‘“Ms. Chow”’)
Aged 49

Ms. Chow is an executive director and has been appointed as chief
operating officer (“COQ") of the Group since 24 April 2015 and is
responsible for managing the exhibition businesses of the Group in all
territories. She has also been assigned as the special assistant to
Chairman of the Company since | October 2010 and appointed as
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Formerly, Ms. Chow was
appointed as Executive Director when she first joined the Group on 30
October 2007. She had also held the position of chief financial officer of
the Company between | January 2008 and 31 December 2008. On 22
September 2009, Ms. Chow had been appointed as COO of the
Company and she resigned thereafter as Executive Director and COO
of the Company with effect from 23 August 2010 for personal reasons.
On the same day, she was re-designated as the managing director of the
China operation of the Company, which has focused on the
development of theatrical exhibition business in China and subsequently
she resigned from the position with effect from 30 September 2010.

Ms. Chow holds an M.B.A in Finance and Entrepreneurial Management
from the Wharton Business School at the University of Pennsylvania,
and a B.A. (Honors) in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Go Misaki (“Ms. Go”)
Aged 46

Ms. Go (former name: Wu Kexuan) has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effective from 9 September 2019 and is
also currently a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She has
served as general manager of Chikou Company Limited, a company
primarily engaging in telecommunications service for the last two
decades, since 2003. With almost 20 years of extensive working
experience in telecommunications service and entertainment industry,
Ms. Go provides professional consultation and service across the world
and participates in managing and executing network equipments
projects, screen & position advertising, alternative content, cinema-based
merchandise and other diversified entertainment. Ms. Go is the cousin
of Mr. Wu Kebo, being our current executive director.

Ms. Go graduated from Guangzhou Jinan University in 1996 with a
diploma of Foreign Trade and Economics and obtained a diploma of
General Art & Science from Mohawk College in Canada in 1999 and a
diploma of International Economy & Business from Nakano School of
Business in Japan in 2003.
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Biographical Details of Directors & Chief Executive Officer

EFRERWNTE

Mr. Peng Bolun (“Mr. Peng”)
Aged 31

Mr. Peng has been appointed as an executive director of the Company
and the finance director of the China operation of the Group effective
from 9 September 2019. Before joining the Group, he respectively
served as a director from July 2017 to September 2019 and assistant to
chairman from March 2018 to September 2019 of Orange Sky
Entertainment Group (International) Holding Company Limited
(“*OSEG”). Prior to joining OSEG, Mr. Peng held several positions at
Ernst & Young (China) Advisory Limited from 2015 to 2016 and
Northeast Securities from 2016 to 2017, where he specialized in
derivative valuation, transaction services and investment banking. Mr.
Peng obtained a master's degree in Financial Engineering from Cornell
University in 2014. He is a CFA charterholder and a certified FRM.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Leung Man Kit (“Mr. Leung”)

Aged 68

Mr. Leung has been an independent non-executive director, and the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company since February 2008 and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company since 26 March 2012. Mr.
Leung was a Responsible Officer in Grand Moore Capital Limited from
September 2019 to November 2021. Mr. Leung obtained a bachelor’s
degree in social science from the University of Hong Kong in 1977 and
has over 30 years of experience in project finance and corporate
finance. He has held senior positions with Peregrine Capital (China)
Limited, SG Securities (HK) Limited (previously known as Crosby
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited), Swiss Bank Corporation, Hong Kong
Branch. Mr. Leung was also a director of Emerging Markets Partnership
(Hong Kong) Limited which was the principal adviser to the AIG
Infrastructure Fund L.P.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Biographical Details of Directors & Chief Executive Officer
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As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Leung holds or held
directorships in the following listed companies in the past three years:

Name of the listed company

NN Y

Netease.com Inc,, a company listed on NASDAQ

Term

fE58

July 2002 to present

RAFHAH  REAREEINEE=FLHEL
I ERARMEER

Position

B

Independent non-executive

and the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: NASDAQ: NTES; HKEX: 9999)%

B WAHTDER R RZER EH 2 AR “TE_FLAES

(BADFRE% - AVETES - NTES 5 BEZSFT 1 9999)#

China Ting Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3398)

EREBIZERERAT - REEZPIER —ZFF

EMZ AR (BB ASR : 3398)

China Electronics Optics Valley Union Holding

BE+-AES

March 2014 to May 2020

director

BUIFATES

November 2005 to present  Independent non-executive

director
B EMITES

Independent non-executive

Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board director
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 798)
REARBEERBRAR  RBXAERETZAR —T-HF=A=% BUIFATES
(B AR 5% : 798) —Z_ZFhA
Luye Pharma Group Ltd., a company listed on the June 2014 to present Independent non-executive
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 21 86) * director
HMERNBEEEFRAR] - RBRAER LT 2R —FERAES BUIENTES

(A& SR © 2186) *

Mr. Leung is the chairperson of the audit committee, compensation
committee and nominating committee.

* Mr. Leung is also the chairman of the audit committee of these
companies.

Ms. Wong Sze Wing (“Ms. Wong”’)

Aged 43

Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive director
and a member of the remuneration committee and the audit committee
of the Company with effect from 26 April 2010. She has been
appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee of the
Company and a member of the nomination committee since 26 March
2012. Ms. Wong has over ten years of accounting experience in the
profession. She has been the chief financial officer since July 2010 and
was joint company secretary between February 2009 and March 2017
of Yingde Gases Group Company Limited which was previously listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and a
constituent stock of Hang Seng Composite Index. Ms. Wong was
previously employed as the group chief financial officer of OSEG. She
was also previously employed as the financial controller of Avex China
Company Limited, a PRC joint venture company established by OSEG
and Avex Group Holdings Inc., which is listed on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange. Ms. Wong ceased to be the group chief financial officer of
OSEG and financial controller of Avex China Company Limited in
January 2008. She was also previously employed as a manager at
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor's degree in
business administration from the University of Hong Kong in 2001. She
also obtained an EMBA from the China Europe Interational Business
School in 2012. Ms. Wong became a chartered member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2003.
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Biographical Details of Directors & Chief Executive Officer

E%&Eﬁ#ﬂ" BARE

As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Wong holds or held RAFHRAH  sxtRETINBE=ZF GHEE

directorships in the following listed companies in the past three years: T3 ETA R E RS
Name of the listed company Term Position
EmATRER £ B
Rici Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company listed on June 2016 to present Independent non-executive
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1526)* director
A B B RISIEIRB R A A] - RBEA T EIR —T-RERAES B IFNTES

tm ZRA (B ASER - 1526) *

Wangsu Science & Technology Co. Ltd, a company listed on April 2017 to March 2020 Independent director
the ChiNext Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300017)*

BEMRBRNERAR] - WRINEFRZ SR —T—+HFHAE BUES
BIZMR iz 2R (B S = 300017) # “F-FF=R
ZHEJIANG DAHUA TECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD,, May 2017 to present Independent director

a company listed on the SME Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002236)

AT RERMRNBR AT - WRIIEFRZ 5P —T—+FRRAE BUEE
/R ZEAR BT 2 A R] (B 5% : 002236)

GANFENG LITHIUM CO.,, LTD., a company listed on July 2018 to present Independent non-executive
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1772), director
and the SME Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002460)

I PREER B R AR AR HAH?“FFr?ET}iJ:mZ ZE-N\FLHES B EMITES
(B - 1772) » RRARVBEFR S A J\m%’ﬂi
Fiz AT (BRHHSE - 002460)

Xinjiang La Chapelle Fashion Co., Ltd. a company listed on January 2021 to June 2021 Independent non-executive
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6116) director

e E B MR BRATF] - RERATER —Z= $ AZE B EMITES
Lz AT (BRMHAREE : 6116) ZE=—FXA

* Ms. Wong is also the chairlady of the audit committee of the company. * BERTMRZRFZERZEGEE -

# Ms. Wong is also the chairlady of the remuneration and evaluation ~ * ERLTRAZRARAZHHEERZEGIE -
committee of the company.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Biographical Details of Directors & Chief Executive Officer

E?&Eﬁﬂ"

Mr. Fung Chi Man Henry (‘“‘Mr. Fung”)

Aged 53

Mr. Fung has been an independent non-executive director and the
member of the audit committee of the Company since 3 June 2016. Mr.
Fung has over thirty years of experience in the legal profession. He is a
partner of Holman Fenwick Willan (“HFW") since 1999 and the chief
representative of the Shanghai Office of Holman Fenwick Willan LLP
from 2006 until 2021. Mr. Fung obtained a degree of Bachelor of Laws
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong
Kong. He also has a PRC law degree from the China University of
Political Science and Law. Mr. Fung is currently a practicing solicitor of
the High Courts of Hong Kong and England & Wales. Mr. Fung is also a
notary public and a China-appointed attesting officer in Hong Kong.
Besides, Mr. Fung is also a civil celebrant of marriages, an HKIAC
arbitrator, a member of the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal, HKICPA
Disciplinary Panel and CAAQO Disciplinary Panel.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Yeung Ho Nam (“Mr. Yeung”’)

Aged 36

Mr. Yeung joined the Group on | June 2020 and was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer and co-Chief Financial Officer on the same day.
Since 4 August 2020, Mr. Yeung has been re-designated an enlarged
role from co-Chief Financial Officer to Chief Financial Officer and
continues to be the Chief Executive Officer. He has rich professional
experience in Greater China corporate finance focusing on cross-border
structured finance, mergers and acquisitions, and corporate treasury
advisory. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yeung served as an
executive director in the Corporate Finance function in Standard
Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited from 2014, responsible for
leveraged and structured debt origination for Greater China corporates.
Mr. Yeung started his career in the Global Banking Department of the
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation, serving in client coverage
from 2007 to 2014 focusing on loan structuring, capital market
origination, and cash management advisory for Hong Kong and China
corporates. Mr. Yeung has long established track record and is well-
recognized in the financing and debt advisory aspects for technology,
entertainment and media industry in the region involving in multiple
transactions. Mr. Yeung holds a Bachelor of Arts with General Honors
in Economics from the University of Chicago in lllinois, United States.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings)
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the Annual Report of the
Group for the year ended 3| December 202 1.

BN
AAEREEASE AR (EE)BRAF (RAT)) RANBAR (AH [ AE0)EE(EE)E(EEE))  MARSAE
BRE-T-—F A=t BLFEHER-

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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BUSINESS REVIEW £ e
2021 overall is a year of gradual recovery for the Group. TR FRR P EREEZHERN —F -

While the first half remained challenging with the Group’s cinemas B4R F¥E{IRB EE - NEEFE B ALY
closed for extended periods to cope with COVID, and affected by seat covIDZIEMAFMERBELER - 05 3 EMHK
and food restrictions inside cinema halls, the second half saw a marked ~ KRB R EYRS| 2 22 BE2EEZ COVIDEB
rebound in admissions across all geographies along with gradual  #EAE R LA K 22 HE IR B far B IE A 8 B REIL 10 -
alleviation of COVID situation , and increasing number of release of FiHEHEMAB AN TELEBZRF - Al - &
Hollywood blockbuster titles. As such, the Group operating results have — & ER T EEMKLLEEEPENE -

seen substantial improvement in the second half.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHES

During the year, the Group's consolidated revenue raised by 60% to
HK$514.9 million (2020: HK$322.6 million), within which revenue in the
second half amounted to HK$324.8 million, representing 71% increase
over the first half revenue of HK$190.1 million. The Group remained
focused on cost savings initiatives during the year, whereby overall
selling and distribution costs reduced by HK$10.6 million in 2021
despite significant increase in revenue. Excluding non-recurring expenses,
the Group's loss attributable to equity holders was HK$175.9 million for
the year, a marked improvement compared with a loss of HK$216.3
million in 2020. Taking into account non-recurring costs totaled
HK$150.3 million (2020: HK$72.1 million) arising from (i) HK$138.3
million (2020: HK$71.9 million) one-off assets impairment and (ii)
HK$12.0 million (2020: HK$0.2 million) cinema opening expense, the
Group's loss attributable to equity holders amounted to HK$314.2
million (2020: HK$288.2 million).

PROSPECTS

The Group is confident that COVID related challenges are short-term
and that the cinema industry worldwide will revitalise as proven by the
Group's marked recovery since the second half of 2021. The Group
remains committed to expand its market share in its existing
geographies of operation and will continue to open new cinemas as
opportunity arises. In 2021, the Group has opened 5 new cinemas with
29 screens and has contracted to open new locations across Hong
Kong, Singapore, and Taiwan in the next few years. The Group will
continue its new cinema concept and gradually expand the use of
cinemas into integrated lifestyle entertainment hubs featuring pop
culture merchandise, food and beverage, and live events so as to offer
unique experience to our customers.

The Group will continue its efforts in the fast-growing PRC live
entertainment business. The Group's first 360 theatre in Suzhou is
expected to open in the second half of 2022 with another three
theatres in Suzhou and Xian contracted and expected to open over the
course of 2022 to 2023. The Group's 360 theatres all feature an
advanced rotating auditorium surrounded by projection panels capable
of opening up to 180 degrees and panoramic stages, coupled with local
Chinese stories recreated in live musical forms by world renowned
talents, will provide local audiences with a stunning extraordinary
theatrical experience. The Group will continue to look for opportunities
to cooperate with local governments and real estate developers to
further expand theatres and live entertainment locations network. In the
meantime, we will continue to increase live broadcast and gradually
bring in live entertainments into our cinemas across the various
operating geographies.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHES

Looking forward, the Group will continue to strengthen our market
leader position in the traditional film exhibition and distribution
businesses by expanding our presence and by adding new entertainment
elements to revitalize our cinema networks into entertainment hubs
with diverse experience to our customers. Leveraging on our network
across the PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore, and Taiwan, we will actively
pursue opportunities to expand into other live entertainment businesses
across our operating geographies and strive to provide unique contents
and entertainment experience to our customers.
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this opportunity to express my appreciation to the shareholders,
customers and business partners for their supports and cooperation. |
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(as of 31 December 2021 BE—T - —F+=-H=+—H)

ORANGE SKY
GOLDEN HARVEST'S

Cinema Portfolio
BASZRESMEBS

Net average

Admissions ticket price

Number of Number of (million) (HK$)

cinemas screens NGB R TR RE

208 4= REEE (BBAR) (387t)

Hong Kong a5 10 37 1.6 69
Singapore EIimIIE: 14 12 37 65
Taiwan B 16 173 7.7 69
Total 4 40 322 13.0 68
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Founded in 1970, Orange Sky Golden Harvest Group has been a world-
class Chinese language film and entertainment company primarily
engaged in film exhibition, film and TV programme production, and film
distribution businesses.

The Group has played a vital role in the development of the Chinese
language film industry. Since its inception, the Group has produced and
financed over 600 movies and is currently the only cinema chain that
operates across Hong Kong, Singapore and Taiwan. To date, the Group
owns a movie library of over 140 movies.

2021 remains a challenging year for the Group with worldwide cinema
industry continued to be plagued by frequent closures to cope with
COVID-19, leading to direct loss of box office revenue. In particular, the
Group's cinema operations in Hong Kong and Taiwan have been closed
for 7 weeks and 8 weeks respectively by government lockdown orders
during the year. While Singapore cinemas remained opened throughout
the year, the region’s cinemas are affected severely by tightening
measures imposed by the government including seat capacity
restrictions, controlled food and beverage consumptions inside cinema
halls, as well as delay for blockbusters releases.

Despite the difficult operating environment, the Group firmly believes
that challenges are short term and that the cinema industry worldwide
will revitalise as COVID-19 situation gradually alleviates as proven by
the strong results posed by worldwide cinemas during Christmas 202 1.
As such, the Group remains committed to expand its market share in
its existing geographies of operation, whereby the Group opened 5
cinemas with 29 screens during the year across Hong Kong, Singapore,
and Taiwan, further its cost benefits from economies of scale. The
Group expects to continue new cinema opening across Hong Kong,
Singapore and Taiwan over the course of 2022 and 2023. In the
meantime, the Group will expand cinemas from single use of movie
viewing to become an integrated entertainment hub featuring other
lifestyle offerings such as live music, esports, collectibles, and food and
beverages.

In the PRC, the Group's new venture into the country’s blooming live
entertainment industry is close to fruition with the first 360 theatre
featuring our self-developed IP expected to stage in the 2nd quarter of
2022 in Suzhou with the next three 360 theatres gradually opening over
the course of 2022 and 2023. The Group will continue further
expansion in this industry by working with the PRC government and
other real estate companies to operate theatres and other live
entertainment venues. We believe our efforts will position the Group
for rapid recovery once COVID-19 alleviates.
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Film Exhibition

The Group's film exhibition business remained the key revenue driver
accounting for 94% of the Group's total revenue. During the year, the
Group's Singapore Golden Village Cinemas and Taiwan Vie Show
Cinemas remained as the undisputed market leader locally with 48%
and 41% respective share in local box office during the year.

Full year exhibition revenue has improved by 24% to HK$808.8 million
in 2021. The increase is primarily due to 17% increase in total
admissions from |1.0 million in 2020 to 12.9 million in 2021 as the
Group’s cinemas in Singapore opened for the full 52 weeks without
disruption (2020: temporary closure of 16 weeks), partially mitigated by
closure in Hong Kong and Taiwan for 7 weeks and 8 weeks respectively.
During the year, average ticket price for the three regions increased by
7% from HK$63.4 to HK$68.1, and to certain extent made up for the
loss in admissions from the temporary closure.

As of 3| December 2021, the Group operated a network of 40
cinemas and 322 screens across the region. During the year, the Group
opened 3 new cinemas with |3 screens in Hong Kong, | new cinema
with 10 screens in Taiwan and | new cinema with 8 screens in
Singapore. In particular, the Group's newly opened Katong cinema in
Singapore is the first “new cinema” concept of the Group, featuring 8
flexible exhibition halls that can host live concerts, a foyer area that
combines the aesthetics and practical uses of an art gallery, as well as a
movie themed Gold Class bar and lounge that intends to provide the
best immersive dining experience to patrons. The Group expects to
gradually convert its other cinemas into similar entertainment centers.

Operating Statistics of the Group’s Cinemas
(For the year ended 3| December 2021)
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Hong Kong Singapore Taiwan
58 Fhn3g =)
Number of cinemas* EWE A * 10 14 16
Number of screens* IREEE * 37 112 173
Admissions (million) ASER (BB AR 1.6 37 77
Net average ticket price (HK$) FEEHEE (ET) 69 65 69
* at 31 December 2021 * HE-_T-—F+=-A=+—H
Hong Kong =]

Operating Statistics of the Group’s Cinemas in Hong Kong
(For the year ended 31 December 2021)

Number of cinemas* B A

Number of screens* IREEE*
Admissions (million) AGER(BEAR)
Net average ticket price (HK$) FEHERE BT
Box office receipts (HK$ million) ERWA(BEET)

* at 31 December 2021
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Hong Kong is the home market for the Group and the Hong Kong
exhibition business has been the core of home business. Riding on the
ample liquidity of the Group, improving consumer confidence amidst
COVID-19 alleviation, the Group has opened 3 new cinemas in Hong
Kong with a total of |3 screens during the year. Our Hong Kong
operations operated 10 cinemas and 37 screens in the city as of the
year end, up significantly from 7 cinemas and 24 screens as of 3|
December 2020.

All Hong Kong cinemas have been put under mandatory closure from 2
December 2020 to |7 February 2021 for a total of 7 weeks during the
year. With Hong Kong COVID-19 situation alleviated considerably after
the reopening, Hong Kong business has been picking up, resulting in an
improvement in admissions from 0.5 million in 2020 to 1.6 million in
2021. Resulting from higher admissions, box office receipts increased by
208% to HKS$I'11.7 million in the year from HK$36.3 million in the
previous year, making up for the slightly lower average ticket price at
HK$69.2 (2020: HK$71.9).

Nevertheless, since Hong Kong operations have been negatively affected
by social distancing measures such as separation of cinema patrons, seat
capacity restrictions and no food and beverages inside exhibition halls,
Hong Kong operations recorded a segmental loss of HK$34.6 million in
2021. This however represents material improvement over the
operating loss of HK$68.3 million in 2020.

Singapore
Operating Statistics of the Group’s Cinemas in Singapore
(For the year ended 31 December 202 1)
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2021 2020
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Number of cinemas* BB * 14 13

Number of screens* IREHE* 112 104

Admissions (million) ASER (ABAR) 3.7 26

Net average ticket price (S$) SEEHEE (FHrnoT) 11.2 10.7

Net box office receipts (5$ million) FEEWA (ABFNET) 41 27
* at 31 December 2021 * HE-_T-—F+=-A=+—8H

Singapore has been the main revenue contributor to the Group,
attributing to 50% and 48% of the Group's total revenue in the year
end of 2021 and 2020 respectively. The Group’s Singapore operations
under the Golden Village Cinemas (“Golden Village") brand remained
as the market leader locally operating a network of 14 cinemas and |12
screens, attributing to 38% of total installed screens in the country, but
represent 48% of the country's box office over the year. The high
market share has shown Golden Village's market leadership in local film
exhibition market.

During 2021, Golden Village reported net box office receipts of S$41.0
million (2020: S$27.4 million), representing a 50% increase in net box
office receipts compared with the same period last year. The
improvement arises primarily because Singapore cinemas are allowed to
open without mandatory closures during the year which resulted in 42%
increase in admissions to 3.7 million (2020: 2.6 million), partially
mitigated by the surge of Omicron cases which affected consumer
confidence, seat capacity restrictions, food and beverage restrictions,
and delayed blockbusters during the year.
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Golden Village has strived to open up new initiatives to adapt to
consumers’ quickly changing taste amidst COVID. For example, the
higher demand for space and privacy has driven Golden Village to focus
on sales of blockbuster movie tickets and dinner combos; Golden Village
has increased live concerts streaming and special movie screening
frequencies to compensate for the delay in blockbuster releases; Golden
Village has also started sales of movie vouchers, and partnership with
landlords, e-commerce websites, to maximise our merchandise sales
income as much as possible. With the above initiatives, there has been a
material improvement in net average ticket price by 5% to S$11.2 in
2021 from S$10.7 in 2020. In the meantime, Golden Village continued
to source quality independent movies for distributions in Singapore to
position the chain for exclusive screenings.

Golden Village is a household name in Singapore with a considerable
larger scale of operations compared with local competitors. We remain
confident in Golden Village business prospects, and will continue to
expand Golden Village market leadership in Singapore going forward.
Golden Village is expected to open a new 8 halls cinema in a prime
location in Singapore in the second half of 2022 and continue to look
for other new expansion opportunities.

Taiwan
Operating Statistics of the Group’s Cinemas in Taiwan
(For the year ended 31 December 202 1)
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2021 2020
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Number of cinemas* B R * 16 15

Number of screens* IREEE* 173 |65

Admissions (million) ASER(ABAR) 7.7 79

Net average ticket price (NTD) FEHEBGA) 248 246

Net box office receipts (NTD billion) FREEBA(HEH ) 1.9 19
* at 31 December 2021 * HE_Z-_—F+_HA=+—H

The Group’s 35.71% owned Vie Show Cinemas is the largest cinema
chain in Taiwan operating a total of 16 cinemas, comprising of 173
screens as of 3|1 December 2021, with a leading market share of 41%.

Vie Show's 2021 net box office amounted to NTD .90 billion,
representing a slight 2% decrease from NTD .94 billion recorded last
year. The slight decrease is due to worsening of COVID-19 situation in
Taiwan in May 2021, whereby all Taiwanese cinemas were forced to
close for 8 weeks from 19 May 2021 to 12 July 2021, partially mitigated
by good performance recorded in the first four months of the year
brought by a good mix of Hollywood blockbusters against successful
pandemic control.

The Group is confident that once Taiwan COVID-19 situation alleviates
and blockbuster movies are gradually released, Vie Show's performance
will quickly return to normal. The Group remained committed in Vie
Show and will continue to develop Vie Show into a leading
comprehensive entertainment operator in Taiwan. In particular, Vie
Show has already committed to open 4 new cinemas with 57 screens in
Taipei, Taichung, and Kaohsiung over 2022 to 2023, which will further
increase Vie Show market shares locally in Taiwan.
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In line with the Group’s comprehensive entertainment hub strategy, Vie
Show has been focusing on expansion into related areas. Vie Show
operates a chain of "UNICORN" brand handmade popcorn and a
Japanese fried chicken chain “TORIKAI" in its cinema network. Vie Show
also operates a family focused artificial snow theme park
“SNOWTOWN" in Taichung Mitsui Outlet Park. SNOWTOWN is an
indoor theme park that allows visitors to enjoy snow at a “feels like”
temperature of 20°C. Vie Show also operates a mall in Taipei Xinyi
District where its flagship Xinyi Vie Show cinema is located. Vie Show
will continue to diversify into food and beverages, theme park, and
shopping mall operations going forward, in which Vie Show is in final
negotiation to operate a new shopping mall in Taipei.

Vie Show realises the importance of securing exclusive quality contents
for its cinemas. To mitigate the lack of blockbusters during 2020 and
2021 amidst COVID and to fully leverage on the market leadership in
cinema operations locally, Vie Show has incorporated a new film
production and film distribution associate with the Taiwan Ministry of
Culture and other leading cinema chains in Taiwan in 2020. This entity
has started to invest in film productions across Greater China in 2022.

Film & TV Programme Distribution and Production

The Group's film library carried perpetual distribution rights for over
140 self-owned titles, which contributed steady licensing income to the
Group. One of the Group’s key initiatives is to work with external
studios for redevelopment of the Group's existing classical Chinese
movies intellectual property into online films, live entertainments, film
derivative, and Non-fungible Token digital arts.

Riding on the Group's leading position and long tradition in film
distribution and production, the Group is one of the largest independent
film distributors in Hong Kong, Singapore, and Taiwan. On an aggregated
basis the Group’s film distribution and production business recorded
revenue of HK$45.0 million (2020: HK$50.5 million), representing a
slight decrease compared with 2020. Key movies distributed by the
Group included Shock Wave 2 (# 5 2 £ 2) in Hong Kong and
Singapore, GATAO — The Last Stray (%8 — )R ) in Taiwan and
Long Long Time Ago: The Diam Diam Era (B FIA93LFE 3  JTRLAIFEL)

in Singapore.

For the production sector, the Group continued to remain prudent in
investment decisions but remained active in seeking opportunities to
work with local and overseas studios to produce movies and TV
programmes of high quality.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Profit and Loss

The Group's consolidated revenue increased by 60% to HK$514.9
million (2020: HK$322.6 million) as the Group'’s cinemas opening period
increased during the year, together with gradual release in Hollywood
blockbusters. Of particular note the Group's revenue in the second half
of 2021 amounted to HK$324.8 million, representing 7 1% increase over
the first half revenue of HK$190.1 million, proving that cinemas in the
regions will promptly recover as COVID alleviates, government
restrictions eases, and Hollywood blockbuster retums.

As the Group's revenue increase arises primarily by box office income
growth, and the higher margin food and beverage businesses are
restricted by various local government COVID-19 restrictions, the
Group's gross profit margin remained compressed at 62% (2020: 63%).
Along with the rise in total revenue, gross profit for the year amounted
to HK$321.6 million, representing 58% increase compared with
HK$204.1 million recorded last year.

Other revenue of HK$43.5 million represents primarily subsidies and
rental support from governments and landlords received during the
year. Given COVID situation alleviated in Singapore and Hong Kong
during 2021, the various support obtained has reduced significantly from
HK$77.7 million to HK$31.0 million. Interest income during the year
reduced to HK$5.2 million from HK$9.0 million in last year in light of
the low interest environment.

The Group has focused on cost savings during the year to preserve its
long-term competitiveness. Via reduction in marketing expenses, utilities
expenses, part-time labour costs, and other non-essential services, the
Group has managed to reduce its selling and distribution costs by
HK$10.6 million during the year. Management deemed the costs savings
initiatives successful considering the Group managed to increase
turnover materially by HK$192.3 million amidst a lower operating costs
during the year.

The Group's finance costs consisted mainly of interest expense on bank
loans and interest on lease liabilities. Interest expense on bank loans
amounted to HK$18.7 million, compared with HK$30.5 million in last
year, the reduction is primarily due to gradual principal amortisation and
low interest environment during COVID-19.

The Group's joint venture in Taiwan recorded a net loss during the
year, in which the Group's share of loss amounted to HK$50.7 million
(2020: HK$38.9 million). The higher net loss recorded in 2021 is
primarily due to Taiwan’s worsening COVID situation which led to
forced closure of all cinemas for 8 weeks during the year.
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Depreciation expense for the year amounted to HK$165.4 million
(2020: HK$195.9 million), lower than 2020 given the Group has made
impairment on part of the cinema assets in the previous year.

The Group has incurred total one-off expenses of HK$150.3 million in
2021 (2020: HK$72.1 million) consisted primarily of assets impairment
amounted to HK$138.3 million (2020: HK$71.9 million) and cinema
opening expense of HK$12.0 million (2020: HK$0.2 million).

As a result, loss attributable to equity holders amounted to HK$314.2
million, compared with a loss of HK$288.2 million in 2020. Taking out
of account non-recurring assets impairment, the Group’s loss
attributable to equity holders was HK$175.9 million, an improvement
compared with a loss of HK$2 1 6.3 million same period last year.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Despite the serious economic challenges, the Group's financial position
remained healthy with net assets of HK$1,544.5 million as of 31
December 2021.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group has total cash and bank balances
amounted to HK$745.4 million (2020: HK$1,053.4 million), within which
pledged bank balances amounted to HK$50.0 million (2020: HK$67.9
million).

The Group's bank borrowings comprised primarily of a 3-year
committed loan facility secured by pledged cash, corporate guarantees,
equity shares and properties. The Group's total outstanding bank
borrowings amounted to HK$1,062.1 million as of 31 December 202 |
(2020: HK$1,206.1 million), translating into a modest net borrowings
(defined as total outstanding bank borrowings less cash and bank
balances) of HK$316.8 million (2020: HK$152.7 million).

The Group's gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of bank borrowings
over total assets stood at a healthy level of 24.4% (2020: 29.0%). Net
gearing ratio calculated on the basis of net borrowings over total assets
stood at a healthy level of 7.3% (2020: 3.7%) and our cash to bank
borrowings ratio at 70.2% (2020: 87.3%). The Group at this moment
has a conservative financial leverage.

The Group has entered into a sales and purchase agreement in relation
to disposal of its Hong Kong office property located at 24/F, Capital
Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai for total consideration of
HK$225 million. The Group will apply net proceeds from the property
disposal after deducting transaction costs for partial repayment of its
bank borrowings, further reducing the Group's financial leverage.

In light of the potential challenge posted by COVID-19 and in support
of ongoing cinema projects, the Group has obtained commitment
letters from certain existing banks lenders and is in the process to enter
into a facility agreement for a term loan of HK$573 million to early
refinance the existing banking facility.

The Group believes that its current cash holding and available financial
facilities will provide sufficient resources for its working capital
requirements and ongoing capital expenditure needs. Management trust
that the Group’s financial position is healthy and will further improve
upon completion of the Hong Kong office property disposal and loan
refinancing mentioned above.
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The Group's assets and liabilities are principally denominated in United
States dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and Singapore dollars,
except for certain assets and liabilities associated with the investments in
Taiwan. The Group's bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Singapore dollars in line with the Group's main operating
currencies. Each of the Group's overseas operations were operating in
their local currencies and are subject to minimal exchange risk. The
Group will continue to assess the exchange risk exposure, and will
consider possible hedging measures in order to minimise the risk at
reasonable cost. The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities or off-balance sheet obligations as of 3|1 December 202
(2020: Nil).

OUTLOOK

COVID-19 has been an unprecedented challenge to the worldwide
economy since 2020, and particularly the film and cinema industry has
been one of the worst hit segments. As shown in the strong
performance recovery recorded in the second half of 2021, the Group
is confident that cinemas will remain a vital form of entertainment
worldwide once COVID-19 restrictions alleviate and blockbuster movie
returns. However, in order for the industry to revitalize, it is imperative
that local governments and landlords continue to provide financial
support and allows cinema to operate without any seat or food and
beverage restrictions as soon as possible.

The Group is confident that cinemas will remain a key form of
entertainment in the future. In particular, the Group trusts that as online
shopping gradually takes over in-person shopping during COVID,
shopping malls will need to increase their focus on experiential retail
and entertainment to attract traffic, implying that cinemas which are
essentially the core immersive entertainment venues in most shopping
malls will once again be the center of focus. As such, the Group is
determined to develop cinemas into integrated lifestyle hubs featuring
pop culture merchandise, food and beverage, and live event organising
to increase overall profitability.

In Hong Kong, the Group looks to further expand our cinema network
when suitable opportunities arise. Riding on the Group's sufficient
liquidity, the Group look to acquire existing sites from other operators
as their tenancy expires and convert existing large cinemas into
integrated entertainment centers. The Group will gradually increase
frequency of live Japanese and Korean mini-concerts live broadcasting to
maximize average ticket price. At the same time, the Group will
continue to look for investment opportunities in quality film distribution
projects in the territory. The Group is of the view that upon relaxation
of COVID-19 containment measures and releases of Hollywood
blockbusters, Hong Kong cinema admissions will rebound.

In Singapore, the Group will continue to grow by actively pursuing
suitable cinema sites. The Group has expected to open a new 8 screen
cinema in Singapore in the second half of 2022 and will continue to look
for other expansion opportunities. With the opening of Golden Village
Katong, the Group has opened its first “new cinema” integrated
entertainment hub concept in the country, which recorded high
admission since opening in December 2021. The Group is dedicated to
maintain high quality services and will gradually convert its existing
cinemas into integrated lifestyle hubs and introduce creative product
offerings such as toys merchandise to its customers.
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In Taiwan, Vie Show will continue to expand its cinema network and
already committed to opening of 4 new cinemas and a shopping mall in
2022 and 2023. Vie Show remains interested to further increase its
market leadership by opening large cinemas across Taiwan.
Supplemented by diversification into film productions and distributions,
as well as theme park operations, shopping mall operations, and food
and beverage businesses, Vie Show performance is expected to
rebound rapidly in the near future.

In the PRC, the Group has signed cooperation agreements with local
PRC governments in Suzhou and Xian to operate 4 stages and bring in
unique live performances that marries advanced stage technology from
Europe, local Chinese stories, created by renowned talents from all over
the world, dedicated to providing a stunning theatrical experience to
local audience. The Group is responsible for the content creation and
operation of the theatres and not be responsible for the capital
expenditures in relation to the building of the theatre infrastructure. The
unique business model allows the Group to venture into the traditionally
asset heavy theatre operations with relatively modest investment. The
first theatre is expected to enter operations in Suzhou in the 2nd half of
2022, with the remaining theatres to open gradually over the course of
2022 to 2023. The Group is in active discussion with various local PRC
governments and real estate developers to further its penetration in live
entertainment industry by operating their theatres and live
entertainment locations.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to actively seek investment
opportunities in the regional media, entertainment, technology and
lifestyle sectors that are related and/or creating synergies to the Group's
existing businesses. The Group's strong liquidity on hand also allowed us
to explore opportunistic acquisitions of fellow regional players, and
development of new business in entertainment, technology and lifestyle
industries that would create synergies to the Group and add values to
the Shareholders.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 3|1 December 2021, the Group employed 338 (2020: 318)
permanent employees. The Group remunerates its employees mainly
by reference to industry practice. In addition to salaries, commissions
and discretionary bonuses, share options will be granted to employees
based on individual performance and contribution to the Group. The
Group also operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and, as at 31
December 2021, there was no forfeited contribution arising from
employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 3| December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance to
maintain the Group's competitiveness and lead to its healthy growth.
The Company has taken steps not only to comply with code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules but also to aim at enhancing corporate
governance practices of the Group as whole.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of CG Code, with the exception of code
provisions A4.1, A.6.7 and E.I 2.

Pursuant to code provision A4.l of the CG Code, non-executive
directors of a listed issuer should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. All non-executive Directors were not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to the requirement of retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose
as being appointed for a specific term. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company's
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in the
code provisions of the CG Code.

The code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates
that independent non-executive directors and non-executive directors
should attend general meetings to gain and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Ms. Wong Sze Wing,
independent non-executive Director, was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 18 June 2021 (the "AGM"”)
due to the implementation of the travel restriction and quarantine
requirements among overseas and Hong Kong resulted from the
outbreak of COVID-19.

Code provision E.|.2 requires the chairman of the Board to attend the
AGM. Mr. Wu Kebo, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend
the AGM due to other business commitment. Ms. Chow Sau Fong,
Fiona, who took the chair of the AGM, together with other members of
the Board who attended the AGM were of sufficient calibre and
knowledge for answering questions at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code on terms no less exacting than
those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code""). The Company has made specific enquiries with all the
Directors and all of them have confirmed that they had complied with
the requirements set out in the Model Code and the Company's Code
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five executive
Directors (including the Chairman of the Board) and three independent
non-executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Chief Executive Officer” on pages
4 to 9 of this annual report.

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of
the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
throughout the year to discuss the overall strategies as well as operation
and financial performances of the Group. Matters relating to (i) the
formulation of the Group’s overall strategy and directions; (ii) any
material conflict of interest of substantial shareholders of the Company
or Directors; (i) approval of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets,
interim results and other significant operational and financial transactions;
(iv) changes to the Company’s capital structure; and (v) major
appointments to the Board are reserved for decisions by the Board. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Group and implementation and execution of Board
policies and strategies to the executive Directors and management of
the Company.

All Directors have given sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the
Group and they have full and timely access to all relevant information
regarding the Group's affairs and have unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary. The Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying
out their duties and responsibilities.

Appropriate and sufficient insurance coverage has been effected by the
Company in respect of Directors’ liabilities arising from any legal action
that may be taken against the Directors in relation to corporate
activities.

During the year ended 3| December 2021, full board meetings and
general meetings of the Company were held and the individual
attendance of the Directors at these meetings are as follows:

Members

K&

Executive Directors HITEE

Wu Kebo (Chairman) hs R (/)
Li Pei Sen FIEFR

Chow Sau Fong, Fiona a;MEF

Go Misaki Go Misaki
Peng Bolun TR
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIFHITEE
Leung Man Kit RERAG

Wong Sze Wing =

Fung Chi Man, Henry /EX
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General Meetings
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At least |4 days’ prior notice to the date of regular Board meetings was
given to all Directors and an agenda together with Board papers and
materials were sent to all Directors no less than three days before the
date of the Board meeting. All Directors were given opportunity to
include in the agenda any other matters that they would like to discuss
in the meeting. The Board committee also adopted and followed the
foregoing procedures for the Board committee meetings. All Directors
and Board committee members were urged to attend the Board
meeting and the Board committee meeting in person. If any Director or
Board committee member was unable to attend any such meeting in
person, participation through electronic means had been arranged and
made available to such Director and Board committee member.

If a Director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter being
considered in the Board meeting, the Director having such potential
interest in the matter shall abstain from voting. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest were present at such
meeting to deal with such conflict of interest issues.

The company secretary or the staff of the company secretarial
department of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of
each Board meeting and Board committee meeting and, within a
reasonable time after each meeting, the draft minutes were circulated
to all Directors for comment and the final and approved version of the
minutes was sent to all Directors for their records. The Board
committee had also adopted and followed the same practices and
procedures as used in the Board meetings.

The Board has received from each independent non-executive Director
a written confirmation of his/her independence and the Board considers
all of them to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The appointment of independent non-executive Directors adheres to
the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
7 June 2016, Mr. Fung is a partner of Holman Fenwick Willan (“HFW"),
which had provided services to the Company and one of its subsidiaries
relating to a debt collection case, the Company is satisfied that the
appointment of Mr. Fung as an independent non-executive Director is
justified due to the following reasons:

(@  Mr. Fung has not had and does not have any executive or
management role or functions in the Company and its
subsidiaries, nor has he been involved in the Company's day-to-
day management and operations or employed by any member of
the Group;

(b)  Mr. Fung does not have any familial or contractual relationships
with any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, nor does he hold any other position with
the Company or its connected persons, or any of their respective
holding company or subsidiaries;

(c)  Mr. Fung has over 20 years of experience and knowledge of the
legal industry. The Company believes that Mr. Fung is able to
exercise his professional judgment and draw upon his extensive
legal knowledge for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole, in particular, the independent
shareholders;
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(d)  Mr Fung is able to confirm his independence to the Exchange in
respect of each of the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules other than Rule 3.13(3) which considers whether an
individual is independent if he is a director, partner or principal of
a professional adviser which currently provides services to a listed
issuer, its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
or core connected persons; and

(e) HFW provided services to the Company and one of its
subsidiaries in relation to one particular debt collection case. The
case was handled by other solicitors of HFW, and Mr. Fung
personally has not been directly or indirectly involved in handling
such particular case or otherwise in the provision of any legal
advice or services to the Company and any of its subsidiaries.
Therefore, the Company considers that this should not affect Mr.
Fung's independence. Further, whilst Mr. Fung remains a director
of the Company, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
intends to engage HFW for any services after the appointment of
Mr. Fung, except for the ongoing debt collection case. Mr. Fung
will also excuse himself from any discussion of the Board involving
HFW as legal adviser for a particular matter, handling dispute
between HFW and the Company (if any) or reviewing the
performance of HFW.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except for (i) Ms. Go who is
the cousin of Mr. Wu; (ii) Mr. Li who is the associate chairman of
Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding Company
Limited (a company which is owned as to 80% by Mr. Wu); and the
interests as set out in the paragraphs headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures” and “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” in the
“"Report of the Directors” in this annual report, there is no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
members of the Board.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. Each newly appointed Director would
receive an induction package covering the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company. The Company also
provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Company continuously updates
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Main Board Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. During the year, all Directors had complied with the
requirements set out in the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
controls and risk management systems of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wu, is responsible for providing
leadership of the Board and ensuring all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at the Board meeting. In addition, he is charged with
the duty to ensure that the Directors receive in a timely manner
adequate, complete and reliable information in relation to the Group's
affairs. The Chairman also encourages the Directors to actively
participate in and to make a full contribution to the Board so that the
Board functions effectively and acts in the best interest of the Company.

The CEO, Mr. Yeung, has been focusing on strategic planning and
assessing merger and acquisition opportunities for the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between the Chairman and the CEO of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Company's Bye-laws,
accomplishing the same purpose as being appointed for a specific term.
At the Board meetings and Board committee meetings where
constructive views and comments of the non-executive Directors are
given, the non-executive Directors provide independent judgement on
the issues relating to the strategy, performance, conflict of interest and
management process.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheung Hei Ming has been appointed as the company secretary
(“Company Secretary”) of the Company with effect from 15 August
2017. The Company Secretary needs to support the Board by ensuring
a good information flow within the Board and that Board's policy and
procedures are followed. The Company Secretary should report to the
Chairman of Board or the CEO on all related matters. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Company Secretary confirmed that she
had taken no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) on 9 October 1998 and formulated its written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules,
which have been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. As at 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee’s
members comprised three independent non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Leung (who also acts as the Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Fung and Ms. Wong.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, two Audit Committee
meetings were held and the individual attendance of the members of
the Audit Committee is set out as follows:

Members

&

Leung Man Kit (Chairman) RRE(EE)
Wong Sze Wing =T

Fung Chi Man, Henry RHEX

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company'’s financial control, risk management and
internal control systems (including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget)
and risk management as delegated by the Board, and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and engagement of
the external auditors for audit and non-audit services. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge
its duties.

During the year ended 3| December 2021, the Audit Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group
and discussed and reviewed financial reporting matters including the
interim and audited financial statements. In addition, the Audit
Committee also reviewed the engagement of the external auditors and
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control and
risk management systems and made recommendations to the Board.
There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment or resignation of the external
auditors.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of an
issuer must comprise a minimum of three members, comprising non-
executive directors only, and at least one of them is an independent
non-executive Director with appropriate qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. Our Directors confirm that we had complied with
such requirements during the year ended 31 December 202 1.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 8 October 2004 and has formulated
its written terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code, which
have been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, being Mr. Wu, and two independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Leung and Ms. Wong (who also acts as the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee). The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure
for the remuneration packages of all the Directors and senior
management of the Company according to its terms of reference,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for the loss or termination of their
office or appointment. The remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company is determined by reference to factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance
based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is required to consult the Chairman of
the Board regarding the remuneration of the executive Directors, and
members of the Remuneration Committee have access to professional
advice on remuneration of executive Directors, if considered necessary.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2021 to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of individual executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee also reviewed and approved the terms
of service contracts of the executive Directors. The composition of the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 3| December 2021
and the attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee
to the meetings of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Members

KE

Wong Sze Wing (Chairman) =HE(F/E)
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Pursuant to the CG Code provision B.1.5, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management of the Group (which include the
executive Directors and chief executive officers only) by band for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)
FENEEE (GBT)

< 1,000,000
1,000,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-10,000,000

Details of emoluments of each Director and chief executive officer are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements on page 127 of this annual
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 26 March 2012 and has formulated its
written terms of reference in accordance with the CG code, which have
been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Nomination Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, being Mr. Wu (who also acts as the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee) and two independent non-executive
Directors, being Ms. Wong and Mr. Leung. The principal responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying individuals qualified to become
Board members, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection, appointment or re-appointment of individuals
nominated for directorships, in particular the Chairman of the Board
and the chief executive. The Nomination Committee, in making such
selection and recommendation, will take into account factors such as
professional qualifications, experience, academic background, etc.

The members of the Nomination Committee have access to
independent professional advice on the nomination of executive
Directors, if considered necessary.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy™)
on 28 August 2013 to enhance the quality of its performance. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing the
diversity at the Board level for and on behalf of the Board in term of
(including but not limited to) gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and such other qualities as
may be considered important by the Nomination Committee from time
to time. In identifying suitable candidates for appointment to the Board,
the Nomination Committee considers candidates on merit against
objective criteria and also the benefits of diversity on the Board. In
reviewing the Board composition, the Committee considers the benefits
of all aspects of diversity including, but not limited to, those described
above, in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of skills,
experience and diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will
review the Board Diversity Policy in a timely manner to ensure that the
Board Diversity Policy is effective.
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As at the date of this report, it is noted that 3 out of 8 Directors,
representing approximately 38%, are female. The Directors’ ages are
widely spread between 3| and 74. Regarding the educational and
professional background, the Board members have accounting, finance,
telecommunication and general business knowledge. It is therefore
believed that the Board has achieved diversity in terms of gender, age,
educational and professional background.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
which sets out the selection criteria and nomination procedures to
identify, select and recommend candidates for Directors.

Selection Criteria

When evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships, the
members of the Nomination Committee or the Board shall consider
the following criteria:

(@)  Character and integrity;

(b)  Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company's business and
corporate strategies;

(c) The Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on
the Board:

(d)  Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments;

(e) In case of independent non-executive Directors, whether the
candidates would be considered independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules;

(f)  In case of re-election, the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the Director to be reelected and the level of
participation and performance on the Board and the other criteria
set out in this section; and

(g)  Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.
These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive

and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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The Nomination Committee and/or the Board identifies potential
candidates including but not limited to internal promotion, re-
designation, referral by other member of the management and
external recruitment agencies and/or advisors. The Nomination
Committee then develops a short list of candidates and agrees on
proposed candidate(s);

Proposed candidate(s) will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information, biographical details, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director. The Nomination
Committee may request candidates to provide additional
information and documents, if considered necessary;

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal
on appointment of new director and the personal information (or
relevant details) of the proposed candidate(s), evaluate such
candidate(s) based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate(s) is qualified for directorship;

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as
a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee shall evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship;

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable);

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a
meeting of the Nomination Committee. For filling a casual
vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For
proposing candidates to stand for re-election or election at a
general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations or recommendations for the Board’s consideration
and the Board shall make recommendations to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election or election of Director(s) at
the general meeting;

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election or re-election at a general
meeting, a circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will
set out the names, brief biographies (including qualifications and
relevant experience), independence, proposed remuneration and
any other information, as required pursuant to the applicable
laws, rules and regulations including the Listing Rules, of the
proposed candidates; and

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to
its recommendation of candidates to stand for election or re-
election at any general meeting.
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Monitor and Review

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and report to the Board when necessary. Also, the
Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and
will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2021 to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board; to consider and recommend to the Board the appointment and
re-election of the Directors; and to review the annual confirmation of
independence submitted by the independent non-executive Directors.

Members

&

Wu Kebo (Chairman) hzK (F/E)
Leung Man Kit RREGE

Wong Sze Wing =T

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 3| December 2021, the fees paid/payable to the
Group's auditors, Messrs. KPMG, are set out as follows:

Services Rendered

EEBER &
REZEGHABEEBRABKZZRERN - LR
ERERAEFSER - 35 BEZE G MR
RABK(WEE)  MEREBBERTZEYR I
B mEMAERTEZE]  ARAESSEHT
MARIERT - HEEEREL -

REZEEREE T _—F+-_A=+—HLF
ERRT—REH MRHNERSZRE  JER
B EEEEREEEERRURAESSIELE
BEE MEHEIFRTEESRFRIZEY Y

DHBE -

Meetings Attended/
Eligible to Attend
BHE &R
HEES

1/
[/1
[/1

BN €

HE-_E-—&+-A=+—HIEE K&
NAREEZEMESH ST SHM 2 BRI W
T

Fee Paid/Payable

Priz AR 7 B ENER
HK$’000

THERT

Audit and audit-related services ENZ N FEZ B RTS 2,484
Non-audit services IEE LIRS 684

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the financial
statements for each financial year with support from the finance
department of the Company and to ensure that the relevant accounting
policies are observed and the accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants are complied with in the
preparation of such financial statements and to report the financial
affairs of the Company in a true and fair manner.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements of the Group is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 90 to 96 of this
annual report.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and intemal control systems with the aim at
(i) safeguarding the Group's assets against unauthorised use or
disposition; (i) maintaining proper accounting records; and (iii) ensuring
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. The risk
management and internal control systems of the Group comprises a
well-established organisation structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. Such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk associated in failing to achieve certain business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group established an internal audit department at the end of the
year 2012 to assess its risk management and internal control systems,
formulate an impartial opinion on the systems, and report its findings to
the Audit Committee, the Chairman of the Board and the senior
management concemned on a regular basis as well as following up on all
reports to ensure that all issues have been satisfactorily resolved.

Review of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of different systems.
The Group's risk management procedures include the following
elements:

. Identify significant risks in the Group's operation environment and
evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group's business;

. Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and

. Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, confirmed that they had
conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 3| December
2021, where some findings have been identified and reported to the
Board. The Board considers the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group effective and adequate throughout the year.

Regarding the disclosure of inside information, the Board had
implemented procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information so that potential inside information
can be promptly identified and escalated up for deciding whether an
announcement should be made in order to ensure compliance with the
continuous obligations under the Listing Rules and the statutory
obligation to disclose information under the SFO.

No material internal control deficiency that may affect the shareholders
of the Company has come to the attention of the Audit Committee or
the Board. The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has
complied with code provisions under C.2 on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix |4 to
the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).
Under the Dividend Policy, the Company may consider providing
Shareholders with interim or annual dividends, and declaring special
dividends from time to time. The Company intends to propose/declare
dividends after taking into consideration of, inter alia, the following
factors:

a. the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

b. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

C the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio and the relevant
financial covenants;

d. any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

e. the Group's expected cash flow requirements and future
expansion plans;

f. economic conditions of the Group, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other intemal and external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group; and

g any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The recommendation of the payment of dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of annual dividend
for the year will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with applicable
laws and regulations including the law of Bermuda and the Company’s
Bye-laws. The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from
time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company can deposit a written request (stating the objects of the
meeting and signed by the shareholders concerned) to convene an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”) for the transaction of any
business specified in the written request at the principal place of
business of the Company for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of the request (after being verified to be valid)
proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholders concerned, or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may by themselves convene an EGM, but any EGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of
the deposit of the request.
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Shareholders, representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders as at
the date of deposit of the requisition, can by written requisition request
the Company to (a) give to the shareholders of the Company notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
removed at the next annual general meeting of the Company; and (b)
circulate to the shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matters referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at any general meeting. If the requisition
requires a notice of a resolution, it must be deposited at the principal
place of business of the Company not less than 6 weeks before the
date of the annual general meeting. In the case of any other requisition,
the written requisition must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company not less than | week before the date of the
general meeting.

If a shareholder of the Company, who is duly qualified to attend and
vote at the general meetings of the Company, intends to propose a
person other than a Director for election as a Director at any general
meeting, the shareholder concemed shall lodge with the principal place
of business of the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary
(i) a written notice of his/her intention to propose that person for
election as a Director at the general meeting; and (i) a notice in writing
by that person of his/her willingness to be elected together with the
necessary information within the period commencing no earlier than
seven days after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the Company's
website.

The shareholders of the Company should send their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road
East, Hong Kong.

The shareholders of the Company may send their other enquiries to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary or Company's
Corporate Communication Department at the principal place of
business of the Company situated at Unit 2101, YF Life Tower, 33
Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or via email address:
ir@goldenharvest.com.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a policy of disclosing clear and relevant
information to the shareholders of the Company in a timely manner.
The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between shareholders of the Company and the
Directors. The Directors and the external auditor will attend the annual
general meetings. The Directors will answer questions raised by the
shareholders on the performance of the Group.

Review of the general meeting proceedings is carried out by the Board
from time to time so as to ensure that the Company has followed the
best corporate governance practices. Notice of the general meeting
together with the circular setting out details of each of the proposed
resolutions (including procedures for demanding a poll where required
under the CG Code), voting procedures and other relevant information
are delivered to all the shareholders of the Company with sufficient
notice as required under the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws of the
Company before the date appointed for the general meeting. At the
commencement of the general meeting, procedures for demanding
(where required) and conducting a poll are explained by the chairman
of the meeting to the shareholders of the Company and the votes cast
are properly counted and recorded by the scrutineer appointed by the
Company. Poll results of the general meeting are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on the day of the
general meeting.

The Company's website (http://www.osgh.com.hk) also contains an
“Investor Relations” section which enables the Company’s shareholders to
have timely access to the Company’s press release, financial reports,
announcements and circulars.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 3| December 2021, there has been no change
in the Company’'s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws. The
Company's memorandum of association and the Bye-laws are available on
the Company's website (http://www.osgh.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Founded in 1970, Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment
(Holdings) Limited (the “Group”, “OSGH", “we" or "“our”) has
been a world-leading film and entertainment company, primarily
engaged in film exhibition, production and distribution, as well as
TV program production. There are 40 multiplexes which consist
altogether 322 screens across our businesses in Hong Kong,
Singapore, Taiwan, Japan and Mainland China, making us the
world’s premier Chinese language film entertainment company.

As a responsible film and entertainment company, we are eager
to see that our businesses are bringing positive impacts to our
environment and society, creating long-term value and leading
our industry towards a sustainable development. We aim to
continuously improve our Environment, Social and Governance
(ESG) performance, enhance efficiency of management and
increase resilience of our business towards the changing
environment, by considering ESG holistically in our planning,
establishing effective measures and reviewing of business
operations.

Having understood that both of our internal and external
stakeholders are concerned over the ESG performance of our
business, we are pleased to publish our Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”), presenting our material
topics, relevant key performance indicators and initiatives and
addressing our stakeholders’ expectations.

I.1 Scope of the Report

Following reporting principle of “Consistency”, the Report
covers a same scope as that of FY202| — operations in
Hong Kong and Singapore of both theatrical exhibition and
film distribution and production sectors. Operations in
Taiwan and Japan are not within the reporting scope for
they are owned through joint ventures of which data are
not accessible; whereas operations in Mainland China
which are at preparation phase, are also not covered in the
Report. They are planned to be included once they are
operating fully. The Report covers period from | January
2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period” or
“FY20217).

Disclosure of environmental and social data of operations
in Hong Kong include |0 multiplex cinemas, a corporate
office, a warehouse and a café; whereas operations in
Singapore include 4 multiplex cinemas and a corporate
office. The list of multiplex cinemas is as following:
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Multiplex Cinemas % B S/

in Hong Kong &%

in Singapore X703

In compliance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guidance”) in
Appendix 27 to the of the Main Board Listing Rules of the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the “HKEX"),
the Report is prepared in accordance with the four
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reporting principles, namely Materiality, Quantitative,
Balance and Consistency.

Materiality: Information disclosed in the Report is
based on its materiality to our business, which is
assessed based our stakeholders’ rating, through
questionnaires conducted by external consultant.

Quantitative: Information is disclosed in a quantitative
manner whenever possible, supplemented with
narrative, explanation on calculation methods,
interpretation and comparative analysis.

Balance: The Report is prepared in an unbiased
manner, with explanations of both positive and
negative impacts, facilitating readers to make
reasonable assessment on the Group’s overall
performance.

Consistency: The report presents information with
consistent methods, enabling readers to compare
changes in ESG performances over time. Any
changes in disclosure method are specified.
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1.3 Contact and Feedback

We treasure opinions from our stakeholders as a valuable
driving force for us to continually strive for continual
improvement in our ESG performances, and to set a good
example of sustainable development business model within
our industry. We welcome any comments or advice to the
Report and other ESG initiatives from our readers, you are
welcome to contact us via esg@goldenharvest.com.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

The Group endeavours to be a responsible entertainment
provider, which reduce burden on our environment, provide
healthy working environment for our employees and bring values
to our community. We aim to improve our business's resilience
towards underlying risks and unfold future opportunities, by
considering ESG aspects into our risk management and planning
strategies. Being the highest decision-making and management
authority, the Board of Directors of the Group is ultimately
accountable for overseeing the Group's overall sustainable
development and ESG performances. The Board is fully
responsible for evaluating, prioritising and managing material ESG-
related issues, as well as identifying and managing related risks and
externalities. Senior Management is authorised by the Board, to
monitor ESG and sustainability performances, incorporate
relevant risk management in the process of strategies and plans
formulation, and engage all operational departments to implement
related practices. Various departments report information on
sustainability risks and performance to the Board annually,
facilitate them to review the effectiveness of our risk management,
internal control system, ESG policies and practices; and hence
seek for room to improve governance structure, ESG-related
goals and targets of which relate to the Group’s business. The
Report has been reviewed and approved by the Board.

The Group’s overall flow chart on ESG management:
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According to the industry characteristics, there are some industrial BRBETESH AXOXEREEXRGEE
ESG risks which also affect the Group's business operation shown MITEERE e RERRAR - #IWT -
as follows:

ESG Related Risks Impacts

ESG MRk -7

Employees’ health & safety With the severe outbreak of COVID-19, authorities of different

countries implemented various measures to cut the transmission chain
in the communities, which had seriously affected the industry's normal
operation and development. During the pandemic outbreak, our
employees needed to work under the threat of being affected. Being a
part of service industries, the close contact with the public had further
increased the threat to the employees’ health and safety.

BETREHALZE BEECOVID- 19K BB ERE - SEBUIHHRINEEEE -
LIt @R - BEXE TITENERELSNRE - £
BREEHE  RMNETIFEEXINFENEE T TE - (ERR
BITEN—#D  BARNETHBEE - SENTHE TRFER
RENBE °

Customer's health & safety With the severe outbreak of COVID-19, it was important for the
Group to build a safe environment for customers when they enjoy our
services. The implementation of epidemic prevention measures may
affect the Group's business performance.

EFRERLZE BEECOVID-1I9MEERE - AEPRHLENRFRELANE
EEREE - HRERNERAEZERNEENEFRR -
To respond to the above risks, the Group had implemented R EEE $\%Ef§f3@jﬂiﬁﬁuﬁ9\
measures to reduce the impacts brought, which the details are PRI E - BRI AT EE AL -

mentioned in the following chapters.
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BRI - MERELSHE

3. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 3.

To ensure accurately identification of our stakeholders’
expectations, giving timely responses to them, enabling effective
operation of ESG related practices and adjusting sustainable goals,
we endeavour to engage both our external and internal
stakeholders, to gather their opinions. The Group has identified
our key stakeholders whose opinion are of paramount
importance, to our business's operations and future plans. we are
delegate to maintain stable communication with them via multiple
channels, which are as followings:

External Stakeholders

SEREE &

KhESH

REREERRSHENRE - REOER
MENHE  EREERE HERERH
HERALMBABRIKEZRAE  RMABHE
SMNEBR BB EBR - MHERENER -
AEBECHNRMVEIZHNE  BENE
SERMOEBLERRRFINEZHER -
HMERBEEEATZRREARTERR
B

Stakeholders Communication channels

FHE BERE

Investors and shareholders

BREERBER

Company website
NGIEEDS

ARIDE

Annual general meeting

BREFAE

FH NP RS

Company website
YNIEER
Customer direct com

BEFPEEAR

Customers

5P

B R ERIGR

SelecEion assessment
iR
Procurement process

REEBE

Suppliers and business partners

IR R XBBH

PRMEZ

Company announcements

Annual and interim reports

munication

Customer feedback and complaints

Performance assessment

Regular communication with business partners (e.g. emails,

meetings, on-site visits etc.)

Government authorities and regulators

BT B e R A R

AR RiaE

Emails

BH

Non-governmental organisations

TR AT A

Charity donations
Nl

Communities

o

Company website
NCIEER
Community activities
HERIEE)

Media
HEe

Company website
NSIEENS

NI/
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4.

Internal Stakeholders

R ER R

Stakeholders Communication channels
i E BBRE
Employees . Training and orientation
BIER . Bl e AR

. Emails and opinion box

- BELERME

. Regular meetings

- EHEE

. Employee performance evaluation

- BIBENGHL

. Employee activities

. B TR

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

4.1

Assessment procedures

To follow reporting principle Materiality as required by
HKEX, we have identified material ESG topics to be further
disclosed in the Report, by appointing a third-party
consultant to carry out materiality assessment. The process
of material issue identification is as followed:

I Issue identification:

Based on general disclosure requirements of HKEX,
I8 ESG-related issues which are specific to our
industry and market potential, are identified. The
issues fall into four major subject areas, namely
Environmental Protection, Employment and Labour

BB

4.1

FEEF
RERETERZMAENBRERIER
M BMEEEE=FEMETEEN
S AR AR S i — S RN
EARE HEREAHE ERNS
BRIz

1. EERE
REBEXZAOH—RBER
£ RMIERIL 18 IRE I E 1T
ERTIBENNRE  HEaRE
BB EE - 2EEED AUE
TEHE  IRRRE  RBEL

Practices, Operating Practices and Community. AT E4E BRI RMERE -
2. Issue prioritization: 2. EBEHF

The Board and senior management were invited to
conduct a questionnaire, to rate importance of |8
ESG-related issues towards OSGH's business and
themselves personally respectively.

3.  Materiality analysis:

After and arranged the issues according to their
importance rated, five material key issues are
identified.

TR LB RE T BB TR
BEE - RIS ISEESE  HE
REAEHABEERBRES
RGEE HMESIHETES -

3. EEMSN:

BUEAEBMETHEE B
BRI AEEE NN -

BRERRL (@) BRAA
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4.2 Material topics

In general, the Group's stakeholders expressed most of
their concern over issues on operating practices, as well as
employment and labour practices.

overnance Report

EZEmE
BEMS  ARENRHEHSEEY
LA K ﬂ%& AT ERAENREERTA
EBDEEE ©

4.2

The materiality matrix is as followed: ZEEENT
Most
Important
Anti-corruption REE
RES
Important *
Health and safety
fEFEZ 2
L2 Tralmng and development *
H S ERER
i 2 *
Employment system
U]
i * BREHS
g Iz Protection of customer Protection of intellectual property rights
Less Ener . " S AR
'PNI 49 Important Use of resources gg;}%\y ThiQrmation f\i['d pnva::y RERBER
R o i HREA RERE AR RALE
ﬁ © Climate change Product and service responsibility
2 % SAlREME EmkRBEE
[oX Materials Community investment
§ ikt Waste e
EEY
L AR
Supply ;L?%’vﬁ;ﬂ%ﬂ};gement Child and forced labour

BT R®GIST

Green procurement —?
REIRAE

Greenhouse gases
and air pollutants

BRERBRZERSRY

Importance to the Group’s business

HAREXRBNEER

Top five material Issues which our stakeholders
have most concern over
(Arranged in descending order of importance)

[ Anti-corruption

2. Health and safety

3. Protection of intellectual property rights
4. Employment system

5. Training and development

The Group will continue to review and modify our ESG
plans, targets, policies and measures on a regular basis, to
ensure adequate responses are made to the fast-changing
environment and effective internal control processes
to cope with underlying risks. We are delegate to
progressively improve our ESG disclosure performance and
strictly follow the latest ESG reporting standards.
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5.

ETHICAL AND RELIABLE SERVICES

5.1

5.2

Supply Chain Management

We have engaged and maintained stable collaborative
relationship with responsible suppliers in our business, to
ensure our entertainment services are provided in a
sustainable and ethical manner, facilitate our risk
management process and improve our operational
efficiency.

To manage quality of services and product provided by our
suppliers, the Group has formulated and implemented a
series of policies and monitoring measures to regulate and
strengthen the service quality of our suppliers.

For our critical suppliers involving in our key operations of
film production and entertainment during the Reporting
Period, there were 24 and 10 suppliers from regions of
Hong Kong and Singapore respectively; whereas other
suppliers such as legal consultants, food and beverage
suppliers, etc., were excluded from disclosure as they were
relatively insignificant to the Group’s competitive advantage.

All products and services are procured in an open, fair,
competitive manner. All potential business partners are
treated fairly in the procurement process; any form of
differential treatment or discrimination against suppliers are
prohibited. The Group will closely monitor its employees
to avoid actual or apparent conflicts of interest. We also
require our suppliers to disclose all relevant interests or
relationships that may involve actual or potential conflicts
of interest to prevent any form of corruption, bribery, and
other misconduct.

Background research on supplier is carried out before
procurement, to identify and further eliminate potential
environmental and social risks along the supply chain. To
minimise environmental pollution of our business,
employees are advised to consider and explore
environmentally-friendly options which will be described in
procurement guidelines; lists of responsible suppliers are
planned to be drafted, circulated among units and reviewed
regularly.

Service quality and customer satisfaction
Customers’ opinions and complaint

To continuously improve our quality service and maintain
customer satisfaction, we have valued our customer’s
feedback and opinions. We have encouraged our
customers to give us feedback and comments through
direct communication with our frontline staff and Company
website. To cater various preferences and expectations
from our extensive customers, our professional sourcing
team have actively searched for wide range of genres that
covers from blockbusters to cultural programmes, musicals
and sporting events. To meet changing expectations from
our customers and create exclusive experiences for them,
the Group continues to invest in new technologies such as
D-Box seats, Dolby and AURO sound systems, BARCO
Laser projectors and IMAX® screens.

5.

B

5.1

5.2

K% 7] 5 #9 B 7%
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B EEBPEEEENHEHET
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We handle customers’ complaint seriously as these are
valuable opportunities for us to understand our customers’
expectations and improve our operation performances. All
complaints from customers have been handled according
our internal mechanism, which is reviewed by Senior
Management regularly to ensure effective and timely
responses can be given.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has received
8 complaints, they are mainly about ticketing and customer
service issue.

Protecting intellectual property rights

Intellectual property rights are the basis of our business
assets and continuous support of our and our partners’
quality production. The Group straightly complies with
relevant laws and regulations on intellectual property
including but not limited to Trade Marks Ordinance (Cap.
559), Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528) and Prevention of
Copyright Piracy Ordinance (Cap. 544), and have followed
trademark registration, contractual provisions and
confidentiality procedures in protection of our intellectual
property rights.

In relation to the prevention of pirated recording, the
Group has reminded all customers in cinemas about the
legal liabilities of pirated recording at the beginning of all
screenings. Employees are encouraged to report any
suspected cases and follow-up spontaneously to ensure
recordings are not released.

Protection of Data Privacy

We uphold protection of our clients’ privacy as major part
of our ethical operation. To safeguard security of our
customers’ and members' personal information, we have
implemented stringent data protection measures. To
continuously raise and maintain our staffs awareness on
data privacy protection, regular workshops have been
offered to them. Comprehensive operational procedures
on personal data handling, especially for online payment
processing and online membership system.

During the Reporting Period, we are not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations,
including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.
486), in our business operations in Hong Kong and
Singapore.

All of our promotion materials including advertising and
labelling, complied with Film Censorship Ordinance (Cap.
392) , to avoid release of misleading information to our
customers. Number of products sold subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons, and description of quality
assurance process and recall procedures are not available
in the Report due to nature of the Group's business.
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5.3

5.4

Anti-Corruption

The Group highly appreciate integrity and accountability in
our business. Any risks to our business risks are closely
identified and monitored by our Audit Committee and
senior management, through comprehensive internal
control framework, policies and operational procedures.
Any bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering are not
tolerated in our business.

All employees are strongly encouraged to report suspected
breaches of anti-corruption standards or other unethical
behaviour anonymously to the Senior Management or
other relevant departments by telephone or email, in
accordance with standard operating procedures. If any
suspected cases are confirmed, the Group will handle them
according to the specific situation, including but not limited
to dismissal of related employee and reporting to judicial
institutes.

Due to the pandemic, intended anti-corruption training
were not able to be carried out during the Reporting
Period. Having understood anti-corruption as one of the
most concerned issues among our stakeholders, the Group
would explore alternative anti-corruption training to the
Board and employees to ensure they understand any
related laws, regulations and internal guidelines which their
roles are subject to.

During the Reporting Period, we have fully complied
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201); there were
no corruption lawsuits against the Group or its employees,
and there were no violations of relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group or
our employees in both Hong Kong and Singapore.

Response to the Pandemic

To safeguard health and safety of our customers during the
pandemic, we have strictly followed social distancing
guidelines and rules of the regional government, and
established measures and inspection guidelines to
designated operating sites for frontline workers, to maintain
social distancing, safety and confidence of customers,
cleanliness and safety of cinemas.

For seat arrangement, the maximum number of tickets to
be sold and seats to be occupied of each house have been
adjusted strictly according to social distancing regulations of
the local governments. Before admission to the house, all
customers have their body temperature measured and are
provided with hand sanitiser in all cinemas. Eating and
drinking are strictly forbidden inside a house. Front counter
desks are disinfected frequently to avoid spreading of
viruses. According to regulations from the government,
some cinemas have been temporary closed.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has fully complied
with Prevention and Control of Disease (Requirements
and Directions) (Business and Premises) Regulation
(Cap. 599F) in Hong Kong.

5.3

5.4

RS
AEESESERFIEBNHREREE
o %F‘ﬁﬂ’]%’f?ié-\@&ﬁ?& BEE
BEEOAMEEER  BREEER
fﬂ tﬂ:&k%u&ﬂ? ﬁzﬁ%ﬁ“ﬂ& ]

BPNEB AR - B
?TE : ﬁﬂ%’ﬁ&iﬁﬁ o

HaZIS BT A B TIRIFIZERIEL
FriB@E Lk BE [ S ARSI Bk it
RS PIE R RS RERRESIZE
HHEMNEEITR o BB AR
o AEEBRE RIS RETTER
BIEBR AR E R B T K m alEi
RAZRER -

HWES - RARRHRNRESHIIR
BN RS B ETT - Tﬁ@'ﬂi’éﬁi%%
ERMEBIZED —ERE - A%E
H Eﬁ%%A BERTHMRESHE
C AREIRIN S T AR H RS /R 8 ST HIME
17*@5@&1? ER R AEES

REE B - ZME2EEFCPI L
FEIRDI)Y (58201 %) - EREEETEAE
EEESNEGHA - TMERERYAR
EEABMREELAINENEERE
AEENBEEERER -

EH S
ARREETERREHRNEERL S
HAIBAR B TR IR AT A4 52 B B B
KRR - W ATAR T AR TE & B 2
HIEHEE kTR LRFERE
B EEMR2REDL  BRAFER

ZE e

SEMLZHME  SEEEELNRS
BERAER B A EREBESHBUT
VAL SR BEBEAR 1 BRI T - EA R
THIJ PAERFIRERE  YHEMA

TRREEATR - BEEXBENRR -
EIR=RiAIVEE %i&ﬁﬁ@ CEREFNE
o RIBRBITER - S0 EX DB
RaE o

REREE - AEBE2EESTE BN
CTER Rz mm (RE RIER) (2K R
BaFT) #BI) (5 559F &) ©

BARBARRE (KE) ARA

fF$&202|

49



50

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R  -HERELIRS

6. FRIENDLY WORKING ENVIRONMENT 6. REIEEE
The Group treats our employees as our valuable assets. We are AEBEETARMNESEE - HfBE
eager to construct a quality working environment of which FRAMBEEEREHEERRE  NEEEK
demonstrates business ethics, diversity and safety, to attract and RS TEBMEE . 2y —ARTEE
retain talents, by providing employee development, improving BE ST REEMNEDLS TIEERE - LR
employment conditions and maintaining workplace standards to I RBEBAA o
all of our employees.
6.1 Performance Overview 6.1 EHREES
The Group's employee overview of during the Reporting RIBEMEAREEREEZMENT -
Period is as following:
FY2021 —EC-—BE
No. of No. of Turnover
Employees Resigned Rate'
EEAH CEEBAH MAR!
By Gender Male 291 272 93.47%
BR85S E=
Female 298 306 102.68%
z
By Employment Type Full-time 242 112 46.28%
REEERE D a3
Part-time 347 466 134.29%
By Age Group 29 years old or under 334 463 138.62%
BERRBE D 295%A T
30-39 years old 126 70 55.56%
30E398%
40-49 years old 71 24 33.80%
40E495%
50 years old or above 58 21 36.21%
50m%ak A L
By Geographical region Hong Kong 218 208 9541%
RiLEEIFHE S BB
Singapore 371 370 99.73%
EAImIIES
Total 589 578 98.13%
et

! Turnover rate of each category is calculated by dividing the
number of resigned in specific category by the number of

employees in specific category, then times 100%.

During the Reporting Period, operations in Hong Kong
have also recruited 4 university student interns, who were
all female under age of 29. They have all completed their

internship within the Reporting Period.
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6.2 Health, Safety and Wellness

Health, safety and wellness of our staff and visitors are
undoubtedly the first priority in during our operation.
Having identified fire as the highest risk in cinema, we have
adopted the most stringent safety management to protect
our staff, visitors and customers. We conduct regular
inspection on our fire extinguishing equipment, prepared
emergency preparedness plan, designed efficient reporting
channels and evacuation routes, conducted regular trainings
and drills to ensure frontline staff are familiar with the
emergency responses.

To clearly identify hazards at workplace, raise employee’
awareness on related risks and suggest ways to reduce
risks, occupational health and safety has been incorporated
into operational guidelines and are well-communicated
with all staff. Regular inspections at workplace and premises
are conducted to guarantee safety measures are effectively
carried out and identify new potential occupational risks.

The Group values employees’ wellbeing and happiness as a
basis to sustain our service excellence.

To promote sense of belonging and satisfaction of
employees, the Group has promoted work-life balance
corporate culture, and constructed an inclusive and
harmonious working environment.

During the Reporting Period, no workplace fatalities were
recorded, so as FY2019 and FY2020. There were |2 work-
related injury contributing to 31 related lost days of work,
making rate of injuries over all employees to 2%. The
injuries were mainly about cuts, slip and falls and sprains.

There was another case happened in 2019, when a male
driver involved in an traffic accident while the case is still
under legal proceedings. We strictly comply with relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and Singapore relating
to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards, including
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) and
Places of Public Entertainment Regulations (Cap. 172) in
Hong Kong and this demonstrates our commitment of
workplace safety by elimination of safety risks.
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6.3 Employment Practices and Labour Standards

The Group endeavours to construct our culture with
diversity, fairess and respect. We embrace diversity and
inclusiveness in building our team for that would foster our
responses to our extensive customers’ expectations and
needs. We recruit our team members in a fair and
transparent manner where candidates are considered
based on their education qualifications, abilities, attitude,
knowledge, experience and performance. Their
performances are reviewed and evaluated regularly with
standard mechanism for offering of discretionary bonus.
We have offered unbiased and competitive remuneration
packages, and fringe benefits which include medical
insurance and contributions to retirement scheme, to our
passionate talents. All employees are given equal
opportunity in recruitment, transfer, promotion,
performance appraisal, training, benefits and compensation.
Any forms of discrimination or harassment against sex,
sexual orientation, age, colour, nationality, disability, religion,
pregnancy, political inclination, union membership or socio-
economic status are prohibited.

Child labour and any forms of forced labour, including
slavery, debt-induced labour and coercion in the workplace,
are strictly forbidden in our zero-tolerance policy. During
recruitment process and upon employment, Human
Resources Department has carefully examined identification
documents of all qualified candidates, to ensure they must
have reached the statutory required age and have been in
possession of valid identification documents. If any
suspected case of child or forced labour is discovered, they
will be reported to Human Resource Department directly
and forced labour will be dismissed from their position
while securing their personal safety. Relevant staff may be
detained and dismissed depends on the situation.

Individual employee may enter their labour contracts
voluntarily and may leave their position freely with proper
notifications. Related policies are clearly specified in the
Employee Handbook and are introduced in induction
trainings.

The Group has fully complied Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57) in Hong Kong and the Employment Act in
Singapore, to demonstrate our appreciation toward rights
our employees, as a foundation to build mutual trust and
motivate our employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group is not aware of any breach of relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and Singapore relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, other benefits and welfare, and
preventing child and forced labor.
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6.4 Development and Training 6.4 TRRIEFH

The Group understands our services would not advance
without continuous talent development and release of
employees’ potential, we treat professional training and
staff development as an essential element of employment.
We have provided wide-range of training to our employees
conducted by both our internal staff and external training
providers. After assessing needs of our staff and the latest
market trend, we have included specific professional skills
and knowledge, industry-wide practices and regulations,
occupational health and safety, management skills, customer
services skills in the training. To encourage continuous
education, we have offered education subsidies and
examination leaves are to our staff.

To guarantee our services and food are up to quality, we
have offered induction training regarding operational
procedures and customer service skills to all frontline staff.
For general trainings, all of our new staff have received an
orientation when they started their work. All staff serving in
food and beverages related positions are required to
attend courses on food handling and food hygiene, which
are organised by Integrated Vocational Education Centre in
Hong Kong and National Environment Agency in Singapore
before formal on-boarding, to raise their awareness of food
hygiene related risks, maintain up-to-standard food
preparation procedures, as well as ensure food safety and
quality.

REBERE BRARKENATEREK
BEERENER  BAKZEXRFILE
TEHRERERNEETE - HAAE
SR AN E T RIS HERE
TR EZIET » ERHE 8 THRR &M
miHBHE  BAEREEZTEREE
A TREOIRER  BEREER
2 BERKE BPRBEEAAE
Al e REEFEEE  RIMABETIRM
HERMRES B -

RERBRMANRERRWEER - FAEH
RETERERHEMEERFREPR
BRI AR - Bt—REBIIT S -
HPIPAEHE TREMR SR ARG
e AR EERERBMGLNE THA
2MAEREEBERE B0 RH IR
FZERFERNEAABATERNEHER
mEBRRMEENRE  UREERS
HRDEERERBOER  #HTA
BENERBEBREFUALERAEMELE
rEg -

FY2021 —EC-HEF
No. of Average
trained training
employees Proportion'? hours
[5F::33: 1 SEE 5
EE®E Ee 112 1534
By gender Male 335 52.59% 81.49
IS E
Female 302 4741% 89.00
ko8
By position General employees 594 93.25% 80.93
3 A —kEE
Middle management 34 5.34% 17674
HEEIEAR
Senior management 9 1.41% 10.56
BEEEAE
Total 637 108.15% 85.05
@t
Proportion of employees trained in specified category = RIEBERIE S EE LD = ZER
Employees who took part in training in the specified BEZIAL BZIES x 100%

category / Employees who took part in training x 100%

Proportion of total employees trained = Employees who
took part in training / Total employees x 100%

2 BIIEBLD = BZIEE 1aRE
B A x 100%
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RESPONSIBLE EARTH STEWARDSHIP

Although the Group's business does not demand heavily on
natural resources due to nature of our business, we adhere to
principles of sustainability in our daily operation, to minimise
burden of our business on the environment while fulfilling our
corporate responsibility as a steward of the earth.

Through incorporation of environmental considerations in our
operations, we hope to improve energy efficiency, process
efficiency and reduce waste generation, then further optimize our
resource utilization and reduce wastage.

The environmental KPIs covered in the Report includes the
operations in Hong Kong and Singapore only. As we operate in
leased premises, property management companies take in charge
of the supply and discharge of water, air-conditioning and waste
collection with the absence of sub-metering or record for
individual occupants. For this reason, the scope to be covered in
future reports may be adjusted. The Group continues to explore
means to improve its data collection process.

The Group is not aware of any environmental laws and
regulations that may pose a significant impact on the Group's
operations and there is no issue in sourcing water in the Group’s
operations during the Reporting Period.

7.1 Emission Control
Greenhouse gas emissions

During the Reporting Period, indirect GHG emission
(Scope 2) has made up the largest proportion of the
Group's total GHG emission. The major source of Scope 2
emission is primarily contributed by consumption of
purchased electricity supporting daily operation. While the
rest of the calculated emission is contributed by direct
GHG emission (Scope |) which is generated from the
combustion of fossil fuel in vehicles.
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Greenhouse gas emissions of the Group’s operation during
the Reporting period are listed in following table:

Greenhouse gas
emissions

BERBEN

Direct GHG emissions
— Scope |
ERREREHN
_ %ﬁ ‘ |

Indirect GHG emissions
— Scope 2*
A RERERN
—#E

Total GHG emissions
REREHNEE

Intensity®

£

Unit Hong Kong
Ef R
2021 2020 2019 2018

“E--f BB CEBE-hE ZE-NE
tCOe 0.195 I 14 0
WB-SftiEg
tCOe 1,063 930 1436 1417
B-EitHEE
tCOe 1,063 941 1450 1439
B-SitHEE
1COe/m? 0.053 006 007 008
B-Rlizs
Fhk

Scope I: Direct GHG emission covers only the emission
from mobile combustion of our fleet, of which none of the
vehicles had operated during the Reporting Year. The
Group does not have data for, nor operational control
over, the consumption and selection of refrigerants used in
air conditioning, and therefore emissions from refrigerants
are not included.

Scope 2: Energy indirect GHG emissions are caused by the
use of purchased electricity. The calculation is based on the
published emission factors of sustainability reports of our
utility providers — CLP (2020) and Hong Kong Electric
(2020) in Hong Kong and the electricity grid emission
factors in 2020 of Energy Market Authority in Singapore.

Intensity values are calculated by dividing emissions by the
gross floor area ("GFA") in square metres of premises in
Hong Kong and Singapore. In FY2021, the total GFA in
Hong Kong is 20,013.7 m? and 52,576.3 m? in Singapore.

In FY2021, we have released 6% more GHG emission
than FY2020, mainly contributed by the 3 newly opened
cinemas in Hong Kong, and the gradually resuming business
activities in Singapore. The Group understands the
importance of reducing GHG emission and has started
internal discussions on how to set practical and meaningful
targets. It is believed that after the epidemic, we will be
able to devote more energy to setting emission reduction
targets, and we will make more in-depth disclosures at that

time.

For specific measures regarding use of energy, please refer
to further descriptions in section “Resource Management”
of the Report.

2021
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0.067
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2020 2019 2018 2021
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NIA & - - 0.195

3,006 4284 4001 4,564

3,006 4284 4001 4,564
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Air emissions

The three major air pollutants disclosed in the Report
include nitrogen oxides (“NOx"), sulphur oxides (“SOx")
and particulate matter (“PM"), which are contributed by
burning of diesel and unleaded petrol from vehicles for
operations in Hong Kong.

The Group has implemented measures to minimise air
emissions from transportation, including regular inspection
and maintenance company-owned vehicles and selection of
energy efficient vehicles. The Group advocates green
travelling, by actively encouraging staff to travel on public
transport, suggesting staff to travel in group on company
vehicles, and design their travelling routes sensibly to avoid
unnecessary journey.

To refrain air emissions from delivery and storage of
movies, we have introduced electronic delivery of movies,
which reduce the reliance on vehicle transportation and
hence significantly phase down emission level. It also
provides more time-responsive service and wider range of
options to customers.

During the Reporting period, vehicles owned by the Group
had not been operated, hence there was no air emissions

recorded.
Air emissions' Unit 2021
BRI By —g=-=
Hong Kong

&

Nitrogen oxides g -

pE=Klg7) I

Sulphur oxides g -

Rty i

Particulate matter g -

k) I

It is believed that after the epidemic, we will be able to
devote more energy to setting emission reduction targets,
and we will make more in-depth disclosures at that time.
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Waste Management
General waste

Considering the approach of municipal solid waste charging
scheme would demand additional costs to the Group's
operation, we are actively finding methods to estimate the
rate of waste generation, reduce the amount of waste and
facilitate recycling rate. Nonetheless, the fact that property
management companies who have control over daily waste
collection of our business has made us difficult to quantify
of our waste generation. We have approached waste
contractors repeatedly to explore alternative handling on
waste, as well as to review the amount of waste generated.
On the other hand, the waste left behind by our customers
after consuming brought-in food has made up the largest
proportion of the waste in cinemas and yet not likely to be
controlled by our policies.

Hazardous waste

To further circulate resources and convert waste into
valuable resources, we have appointed a qualified waste
collector to collect and recycle used cooking oil from the
sky cinema and Joo de Rolls Café in Hong Kong (No other
operations generate used cooking oil in Hong Kong)
collected, filtered, then exported to foreign biodiesel firms
for bio-refinery and reproduction into biofuels. In FY2021,
recycling amount has dropped in comparison to FY2019
and 2020, due to the suspension of business under the
Prevention and Control of Disease Regulation. It is believed
that after the epidemic, we will be able to devote more
energy to setting waste generation targets and we will
make more indepth disclosures at that time.

The amount of used cooking oil recycled in Hong Kong are
listed in following table:

Unit 2021
By —E-—F
Hong Kong
N
Used cooking oil recycled tonne 0.258

ek ERRMAm W

Intensity’ tonne/m? 0.0000129
BE! W8, 77K

Intensity values are calculated by dividing amount of waste
by the gross floor area ("GFA") in square metres of
premises in Hong Kong and Singapore. In FY2021, the total
GFA in Hong Kong is 20,013.7 mZ
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7.2 Resource Management

To promote responsible consumption and reduce
environmental impacts of our business, the Group has
adopted multilateral initiatives in our operations, by
encouraging behavioural changes through educating
customers and staff, use of environmentally-friendly devices,
modification of operation and services. We have adopted
the 3Rs (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle) principles in our
operations, to optimize resource use, eliminate wastage
and facilitate circulation of resources.

Operational guidelines are formulated and distributed to all
staff to raise their environmental awareness over daily
operation of businesses. Green policies are adopted in
operations on resources saving and material recycling, to
foster behavioural changes of employees and customers.
For instance, customers are encouraged to bring their own
pair of 3D glasses or reuse the new pair, instead of
disposing it after the film.

In order to review energy and water performances, the
Group has regularly measured and recorded relevant
usage, identified room to optimise resource consumption,
reviewed operation models, and sought ways to enhance
operational efficiency.

The Report further describes level of resource usage and
adopted measures on energy, water and paper use in
details.

Energy consumption

The Group has adopted measures to enhance energy
efficiency, maintain performance of electrical appliances and
avoid unnecessary consumption of energy. For air-
conditioning system, they are maintained with an optimal
temperature, humidity and air quality by frequent
inspections. Energy efficient equipment are purchased,
including LED light tubes and laser projectors. Lighting and
electrical appliances at office are switched off when they
idling, to cut unnecessary consumption. Regular training
workshops are organised for staff to raise awareness on
energy saving.
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Energy consumption from direct and indirect energy use of
the Group’s operations during the Reporting period are
listed in following table:

Hong Kong
Unit 2021 2020 2019 2018
By “B--% ZBIEF ZE-nEF ZE-0\F
Direct Energy Use
ERmRER
Unleaded petrol L - 2249 - -
BV DI
Diesel L - 1,785 - -
s 2
Indirect Energy Use
BERRER
Electricity' kWh 2,651,110 1795667 2803999 2715980
vl THE
Total energy kWh 2,651,110 6464 - -
consumption
R AR TRE
Energy consumption kWh/m? 132.47 108 140 152
intensity?
RERER TRE/FHK

Data of 3 newly opened cinemas in Hong Kong (GH
Galaxy, GH MegaBox and GH TaiPo) were included only
after May, July and October 2021 respectively; Café in
Hong Kong was closed after October, 202 1; data of cinema
GV Katong in Singapore was not available.

Intensity values are calculated by dividing emissions by the
gross floor area (“GFA”) in square metres of premises in
Hong Kong and Singapore. In FY2021, the total GFA in
Hong Kong is 20,013.7 m? and 52,576.3 m? in Singapore.

Energy consumption recorded during the Reporting Period
was 23% higher than that in FY2020, mainly due to gradual
resumption of business in Singapore and new cinemas
opened in Hong Kong.

[t is believed that after the epidemic, we will be able to
devote more energy to setting energy reduction targets,
and we will make more indepth disclosures at that time.

Water consumption

The Group has adopted measures to reduce water leakage
and enhance water efficiency. Faucets are inspected
regularly to check for dripping and leakage; any defect will
be reported and repaired shortly. Labels and posters are
pasted in toilets and office pantries to encourage
employees and patrons to use less water.

2021
&

8,581,931

8,581,931

163.23

REHE - AEEEEE R L EEE
IR EREIROBFERSIN T &
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2020 2019 2018 2021
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7357539 10228457 9543782 11,233,041
26,487 - - 11,233,041
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Hong Kong
A

Unit 2021 2020 2019 2018

B Z$--F C3-%F SE-AE CE-NE
Water consumption' m? 1,151 1,340 1927 2042
ke uAK
Intensity? m'/m? 0.06 0.1 0.10 0.1
R Wiy VE DTS

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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In the Report, water consumption data of Hong Kong
covers 8 cinemas (GH Whampoa, the sky, GH Fanling,
Stagk, GH V Walk, GH Galaxy, GH MegaBox and GH
TaiPo) whereas that in operations of Singapore are fully
covered except GV Katong. Since most operating sites in
Hong Kong are located in leased premises with the supply
and discharge of water controlled by property
management, there is an absent of sub-metering or record
for individual occupants. It is believed that after the epidemic,
we will be able to devote more energy to setting water
consumption reduction targets, and we will make more indepth
disclosures at that time.

Measured water consumed of the Group’s operations
during the Reporting period are listed in following table:

! Water consumption data covered 8 cinemas in Hong Kong
(GH Whampoa, the sky, GH Fanling, Stagk, GH V Walk,
GH Galaxy, GH MegaBox and GH TaiPo), and all sites in
Singapore except GV Katong. The rest were not included
as water bills were included in rent and submetering was
not available. Three newly opened cinemas in Hong Kong
(GH Galaxy, GH MegaBox and GH TaiPo) were included
only after May, July and October 2021 respectively; data of
cinema GV Katong in Singapore was not available.

2 Intensity values are calculated by dividing water
consumption by the gross floor area (“GFA") in square
metres of premises in Hong Kong and Singapore. In
FY2021, the total GFA in Hong Kong is 20,013.7 m? and
52,576.3 m?* in Singapore.

Water consumption recorded during the Reporting Period
is 37% higher than FY2020 as business in Singapore had
gradually resumed.

Paper use

The Group has actively engaged in paper-less platform for
spreading of information and providing services. For intermnal
information circulation, staff are encouraged to use
e-platform to give out real-time notices. Office staff are
also encouraged to adopt double-sided printing and use
recycled paper for documentation. For external
communication, online advertising platforms are used for
promotion in replace of paper posters, to extend our
reach to wider audience. We have also developed mobile
application to encourage e-payment and mobile ticketing,
providing a paper-less service alternative to customers.
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Food packaging materials used in cinemas during the
Reporting Period was regarded trivial due to the temporary
closure of cinemas: the amount was not disclosed in this
report. The Group may consider relevant disclosure when
we resume our operations.

7.3 Natural Resources — use of plastic

In the light of the irreversible impacts of plastic pollution to
both the land and ocean, the Group has phased down the
use of plastic in our single-use products. For our food and
beverage business, we have purchased biodegradable
cutleries as alternatives to replace plastic. Plastic straws are
no longer available at our café, while paper straws are only
provided upon request; wooden utensils are given to
customers instead of the plastic. To reduce disposal of 3D
glasses which are made with plastic, we encourage
customers to bring their own pair of glasses, or receive a
new pair then reuse it.

7.4 Climate Change

Though the Group's business is not highly prone to
changing climate because of our business nature, we
understand there are climate change-related risks which
may hinder workers' safety and stability our operations.
We have identified the following climate-related risks and
our respective responses as followed:
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Climate-related risks

SR fi% A8 BA FEL P

Under extreme weather conditions (such as
rainstorm and typhoon), employees are not
able to commute to work
EmmRXEMR(IRREER) T - &
SR 7 el b

Facilities at operating sites can be damaged
during extreme weather conditions

FERHRRAR T -

=8B

BB R ARG BE

Our responses

EMHEE

Design contingency plans for each operation site for extreme
weather events to safeguard safety of all employees
REEEHR BB RREFHESTR  REFMEES
ok

Carry out precautionary measures at operating sites before
Tropical Cyclone Warning Signals are in force to prevent facilities
damage and eliminate safety risks to staff
REVE RIEE SS9 MAIE L E B RIED 56 - BA
i ERIEIEIE SRR B TR 2 AR

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

It is our vision to share joy and entertainment to those who are
less privileged in our society, to demonstrate social inclusion and
answer the needs of our community. Through collaborating with
our charitable organization partners, we identify the needs of our
communities, and consider their interests alongside running of our
businesses. We have planned to collaborate with different
charitable organization for charity movie screening, fundraising
and charity sales particularly for underprivileged children, low-
income families, the elderly and film schools. However, to due the
pandemic, we have suspended our shows and events during the
Reporting Period.

8
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B HEREAEE

9  HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX 9 ETFIIBIE  HeRTARE
15| &5
Material Aspect Content Section
EXEE RE -
Al Emissions
295 87
General Disclosure Information on: 7.1 Emission Control
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
—REE ARERLBERBHN - AAKRLHHES  BEREEEE 7. HNER
MWELEM -
@ BR: K ]
(b) ETHBTABEATENHERERLBRMNER -
Al.l The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 7.1 Emission Control
BrieE RARRE R - 71 HMER
Al.2 GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity 7.1 Emission Control —
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Greenhouse gas
emissions
B (BE ) REREEZ (BE)REREHNEBAMFE) R 71 HRER —BERE
(Em) BE (ZZDL/HF BE{ BARETE) BER
Al3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, 7.1 Emission Control —
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Waste Management
FREEAERENAE CANE) K (MER) BE(WABEE 7. HHER — BEEY
B - BIERETE) BB
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 7.1 Emission Control —
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Waste Management
FRESBERENAE CANE) L (MER)BE(WABEE 7. HNER — BEY
B - BERETE) BB
Al.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. 7.1 Emission Control
HLATET LB E B 1R R A BiE L B ISR A58 - 7. HRER
Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 7.1 Emission Control —
reduction initiatives and results achieved. Waste Management
HlREEENBEERZVNTE  RERMTRRERRR 70 HRER — BEEY
REREL R ISR SR - BB
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Material Aspect

BEXEE

A2 Use of Resources

ERER
General Disclosure

—REE

A2l

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Content
AE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.

ARERER(BREER  KREMERME) BB -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (kwh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
REREDMERE R/ SEER (T - JIoh) @8 (AT
BT EEHE) REE (MASEE BN - BBRRIEE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
BRKENREE WMASEEEN BEREHE) -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
WA AR L WEERER R B R R AEDEL B IZMERRMN S
o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

132 SREGE F7KOR L] B EARIFIRE - DA RPRETSZ B0 kR B 1R
FAEREL R SRR SR o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

R BAAREMENBE (B E) R (ER) BEESN
158 -
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7.2 Resource Management

72 BRER

7.2 Resource Management
— Energy
consumption
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7.2 Resource Management

— Water consumption

72 BRER — #K
7.2 Resource Management
72 BRER
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— Water consumption
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7.2 Resource Management
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Material Aspect
BEXEE

Content
AE

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

BRERRRER

General Disclosure

—RiE

A3.1

A4 Climate Change
RIZZL

General Disclosure

—RiE

Ad.l

Bl Employment
EBRREIESR

General Disclosure

—REE

Bl.2

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.

BIEBETABRBERRAREREXERNT EOLRK

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
HIEBEDHRARRKAERNEATY ENCRKNERERY
ENTH -

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
BRI R AR RS R BT AELVENEARRIEREE
HIBUR

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.
HWRCE R AT HE
178 -

HTAEEAFENBARRERER - IE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare

BEAFMNEER  BERET  TERE

Tt~ RIBR A R E At 5 48 R AR MK -
@ BE:
b)) BETHETABEATEMNBRERIRADINER -

RE - FERE %

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region

RILR - RRRE (M2 RRE) -
BRI

Fha R R E S 0 H R

Employee turover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

IR FERAR KB BN HERIRKLE -
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Material Aspect

EXEA

B2 Health and Safety

RERZE

General Disclosure

~ A

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

Content
AE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

FARMEZE2TERERREREEHCBELREN

@ BE: R

b) BTHRTAEEATENERARZLRDNER -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
BE=F (BRERFR)SFRAITHOABRRLEX -
Lost days due to work injury.
THERTIERE -
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how

they are implemented and monitored.

MR BERERT 25N - WRAABRTREREE -

B3 Development and Training

BREREIN
General Disclosure

—REE

B3.2

Policies on improving employees' knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training activities.
BARRTERET TERE M ME R REMEE -
& o

HAEEFE

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category.
BRI EEER (NESRERE
EAnt

RREEE) ENHNZIIE

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.
IR R EEERB D

- BREBTRE N TIEE -
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Material Aspect
BEXEE

B4 Labour Standards
L TER

General Disclosure

—REE

B4.1

B4.2

Content
AE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour

AR ETIRHIE T

@ BE: R

(b)) ETHBTAREATENHERERLBEMNE -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour

LR R RS S BT RANST -
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

A RRERBERE B ARSI S5 o

B5 Supply Chain Management

HEEEE
General Disclosure
—REE

B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain
FEHRRNRENEERREE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

iR DOHERHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
WA AREAHERNED  MANTARENHREREE
ARARRIT RET T ©

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
AR R RS ERGMIRE R GRRIOED - AR
BT RERTE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R ESR R B (R % MRREMR LRENED - LARAERE
BITRERTE °
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Material Aspect

BEXEE

Content
AE

B6 Product Responsibility

EmEfE

General Disclosure

~ A

Bé6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

ARFMREERNRBNREERZE  BS  REILBZEN

RAROT AR ¢

@@ BE: Kk

b) BTHETABEAYENHRZEZRAGINER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety

and health reasons.

EERCERERRRTRLZ2EREEMMARNKNED L -

Number of products and service-related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.

REBNERRRBORFHRE AREETE -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

S E L ARE AR EE G N ED -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

LS ST @12 RE mE YR -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they
are implemented and monitored.

HHEE ERHRIE RALREGE - ARBBRITRERERE -
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Material Aspect

BEXEE

B7 Anti-corruption

P

RES

General Disclosure

—REE

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

Content
AE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering

AR LR - R - KEFERAREDN

@ WE:R

b)) BETHETABEAZEMNHERERLRPINER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERMAEET AR EEREY D RENETHARMTOH
EETNE

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and monitored.

i B R R EE - ARAERITRERTE -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
fmEERE TRHENRE)FHE -

B8 Community Investment

HERE

General Disclosure

—REE

B8.1

B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.

AR R2ERTREEMEHRFTENREREARELIDEE
Bt R AR -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIERER(NHE REFHE S$IFR EER - 8
K) °

A

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
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Report of the Directors
E%ﬁiﬁ*i

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the report of the Directors
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 3|
December 202 1.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company which is a leading
integrated film entertainment company in the markets where the
principal activities of the Group consist of worldwide film and video
distribution, film exhibition and the provision of advertising and
consultancy services in Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore and film and
television programmes production in Hong Kong and Mainland China. In
addition, the Group has recently expanded into the arenas of live
entertainment and theatre operations and entertainment centre
business. Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group's business, can
be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages
|4 to 24 of this Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this
Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 3| December 2021 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 202 |
are set out in the financial statements on pages 97 to 162.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 3| December 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 3| December 2021 are set out in note
I'I to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

On 14 January 2013, Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment
Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
announced to acquire all that 24th Floor, together with car parking
spaces nos. 421, 422 & 423 on 4th Floor, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (the "“Property”). AXA Centre is
subsequently renamed as the Capital Centre.

On 4 September 2019, there was an intra-group property transfer in
respect of the Property happened between Orange Sky Golden Harvest
Entertainment Company Limited (the “Transferor’”) and Golden
Properties (Pacific) Limited (the “Transferee”), which both the
Transferor and Transferee are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. During the year, the Property was owned by the Company
via the wholly-owned subsidiaries.

On 7 December 2021, there was a disposal in respect of the Property
happened between Golden Properties (Pacific) Limited and Power Sage
Enterprises Limited (the “Purchaser”). The Purchaser is an independent
third party and the completion had taken place on 29 April 2022.

Details of the Property are set out in note | | to the financial statements
on pages 129 to |34 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
E%ﬁiﬁ*i

BANK LOANS IRITER

Particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set AEBR—_ZE-—F+-_A=+—HBZHRTERF
out in note 21| to the financial statements. BEHRIHREME2 -

SHARE CAPITAL iR

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 25 to the  AAF PR A SEBH N TERFMT 25 o
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS EBrRBERE

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-  Z&AA R Z A FIAAAIS B EiE N 5503 AR E L
laws or the company laws of Bermuda which would oblige the BEB#Z#HTF @ BEAQ GBI FIMIF A KRR R
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing &% o

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FEMBERNEE

Year Year Year Year Year

ended ended ended ended ended

31 December 3| December 3| December 3| December 3| December
+=A T=A +T=A T=A T=A
=+-A =t+—H =t—H =t+—H =t—H
LEE HFE H5E HFE HFE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--F - 3 “ENF —I-N\F S
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FAT THT FAT

(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(RER) (&%) (&%) (s&%) (&%)

Consolidated income statement SAWER

Revenue Yegs 514,901 322646 1,060,842 1050972 1,006,599
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEADER/(BE) (331,358) (298,441) (4,062) 83,661 2548144
Income tax (expenses)/credit R (%) B 16,447 10,267 (31,054) (31371 (309,831)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEHHN,/ (BE) (314,911) (288,174) (35116) 52,290 2238313
Attributable to: T AL :

— Equity holders of the Company — RNAREREERA (314,153) (288,171) (35092) 52,529 2242,136
— Non-controlling interests — IR AE R (758) 3) (24 (239) (3823)

(314,911) (288,174) (35.116) 52290 2238313
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Report of the Directors
EEﬁiﬁ*i

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EEEERFEE
As at 31 December
W+=B=+—-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
g —2-BF —TNF —T-N\F —FtF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TET TET TET
(Audited)  (Audited)  (Audted)  (Audited)  (Audited)
(&%) (8FR) @'k EFR) (=%
Consolidated statement SARBERREK
of financial position
Right-of-use assets FHESE 1,691,267 1,244,322 1,481,273 - -
Property, plant and equipment ERY Y E S
and investment property MEEME 369,873 341,797 404,529 1,031,644 1,026,222
Interests in joint ventures REBERELER 56,691 103,540 133,243 145,933 142,937
Other receivables, deposits and HuRUFIE ek
prepayments BHIE 44,413 37,363 46,704 40,058 40,509
Intangible assets BREE 521,675 530,756 525,397 523,079 525,625
Goodwill 5k 573,933 633,118 661,582 656,609 658,001
Deferred tax assets EIEHBAE - - 4,824 - -
Non-current portion of pledged BEFBITERZ
bank deposits FERNHERED 50,000 50,000 137,000 137,000 137,000
Current assets MEEE 1,053,152 1,213,376 1,327,603 1,491,863 2,146,475
Total assets BEEA 4,361,004 4,154,272 4,722,155 4,026,186 4.676,769
Current liabilities nEanE 1,477,597 482,172 792,887 647,190 784,169
Non-current portion of bank loans RITERZIEENHE S - 1,057,943 805,907 1,024,498 875,140
Non-current portion of lease liabilities Ef*j% B2 FEENERE 613,121 568,563 790497 - -
Non-current portion of B 2 FFENEE S
deferred revenue 583,120 - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities ERFIEEE 142,683 162,859 176,931 173,383 174,778
Total liabilities BEEE 2,816,521 2,271,537 2,566,222 1,845,071 1,834,087
Net assets BEZE 1,544,483 1,882,735 2,155,933 2,181,115 2,842,682
Non-controlling interests e (1,377) (597) (559) (545) (331)
BREARRLYE (£E) BRAR]
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year ended 3| December 2021 are set out in note
25 to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 3| December 2021, the Company's reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie, representing retained profits,
amounted to HK$13,380,000 (2020: HK$15,418,000). In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, contributed surplus and capital
redemption reserve in an aggregate amount of HK$1,059,279,000
(2020: HK$1,059,279,000), as at 31 December 2021, may be distributed
to the shareholders of the Company in certain circumstances prescribed
by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 3| December 2021 and up to the
date of this report were:

Chairman & Executive Director
Wu Kebo

Executive Directors

Li Pei Sen

Chow Sau Fong, Fiona
Go Misaki

Peng Bolun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Man Kit
Wong Sze Wing
Fung Chi Man, Henry

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, at each AGM one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years.

In accordance with clauses 87(1) and (2) of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Mr. Wu Kebo, Ms. Go Misaki and Mr. Peng Bolun, Henry will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and all of them, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.
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Biographical details of the Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group are set out on pages 4 to 9 of this annual report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer”” in this annual report, there was
no change to any of the information required to be disclosed in relation
to any Director pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule
[3.51(2) of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year. The
Company has taken out and maintained appropriate and sufficient
insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors
and officers.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its listed securities during the
year ended 3| December 2021. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has repurchase or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the non-adjusting event after the reporting period is set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Interests in shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share

capital of the Company (the “Shares’’), underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company

Name of Director/

Chief Executive Number of
EZ/BSTHAE  Capacity Note Shares
B g9 (i3 R&8E
Wu Kebo Interest of controlled corporations / 1723894068 (L)
R REEEER
Beneficial owner / 274684429 (L)
ESBEAA
Li Pei Sen Beneficial owner 200,000 (1)
3 EERAA
Leung Man Kit Beneficial owner 370,000 (L)
ARG ESBEAA
Wong Sze Wing Beneficial owner 170,000 (L)
BHA BaBEEA
* These percentages are computed based on the total number of Shares in

issue (ie. 2,799,669,050 Shares) as at 31 December 202 1.
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Number of
underlying
Shares

REROBE

* AZEASTRER —F =

Total
number of
Shares and

underlying Shares

KR
RERGAH

723,894,068 (L)

174684429 (1)

200000 (1)

370000 (1)

170000 (L)

* Approximate
percentage

of Shares and
underlying Shares
in the issued share
capital of the
Company

R KR
RORERT
ERTRAEH
B ED

61.57%

9.81%

001%

001%

001%
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Note:

I By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to be interested in a total of
1,723,894,068 Shares, of which (i) 439,791,463 Shares were held by
Skyera International Limited (a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wu); (ii)
538,382,657 Shares were held by Mainway Enterprises Limited (a
company wholly owned by Mr. Wu); (iii) 565,719,948 Shares were held
by Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding Company
Limited (a company which is 80% owned by Mr. Wu); and (iv)
180,000,000 Shares were held by Cyber International Limited (a company
owned by an associate of Mr. Wu).

In addition, Mr. Wu was interested in 274,684,429 Shares as at 3|
December 2021 which were beneficially held by him in his own name.

Abbreviation:
“L” stands for long position

Save as disclosed above and save for the disclosure referred to under
“Share Option Schemes" set out below and in note 25 to the financial
statements on pages 150 to |53 of this annual report, as at 3|
December 2021, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in Note
2 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures” above and “Share Option Schemes” below, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2021 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors,
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

et -

BEEHRBEEGD AEEBERAREEH
1723894068 F% 517 + & R (i) 439,791 463 A% % 1 /A 1H 5
£ 2 AW B Z A 7] Skyera Intemational Limited £ A + (i)
538,382,657 % A% 1 /3 {1 %5 4 & & # B 2 1 B]Mainway
Enterprises Limited 5§ (iil) 565,719.948 A% A% {7 B8 {0 %% 4
7 80% Rt 2 A R RIR L B (BIRR ) IR AR A
Al K (v) 180000000 %A% 10 R h B B AR
Z A 8] Cyber Intemational Limited #§5 ©
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2020 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the 2020 Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of enabling the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth
of the Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible means to
reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible
participants. Eligible participants of the 2020 Share Option Scheme
include the Directors and other employees of the Group, consultants or
advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers, service providers, agents,
customers and business partners of the Group. The 2020 Share Option
Scheme became effective on 19 June 2020 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of 10 years from
that date.

Each grant of the share options to a connected person of the Company,
or any of their associates, must be approved by all of the independent
non-executive Directors (excluding the independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the option). In addition, any grant of the
share options to a substantial shareholder of the Company or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates which would result in the Shares issued or to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
representing in aggregate over 0.19% of the Shares in issue on the date
of the offer and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any |2-month period up to and including the date of the grant, shall be
subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with voting to be taken by way of a poll.

The offer in relation to a grant of share options under the 2020 Share
Option Scheme shall remain open for acceptance by the eligible
participant concerned for such period as determined by the Board,
which period shall not be more than 30 days from the day of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$ | by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Directors, the expiry date of such period not to exceed |0 years from
the date of the offer. Save as determined by the Directors and provided
in the offer of the grant of the relevant share option, there is no general
requirement that a share option must be held for any minimum period
before it can be exercised.

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares on the
exercise of a share option is determinable by the Directors, provided
always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price per Share
as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer of grant of the share option; (i) the average closing price per
Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.
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The maximum number of Shares, a total of 279,966,905 Shares, will be
issuable upon exercise of all share options that may be granted under
the 2020 Share Option Scheme, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at as at |9 June 2020, being the date of
adoption of the 2020 Share Option Scheme. In addition, the maximum
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options under the 2020 Share Option Scheme) in any
| 2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any further
grant of share options in excess of such limit (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any |2-month period up to and
including the date of grant of such share option shall be separately
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with
such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no share option
outstanding under the Scheme. No share option was granted to or
exercised by any Directors or chief executives of the Company or
employees of the Group or other participants nor cancelled or lapsed
during the year ended 3| December 2021.

Share options granted or to be granted under the 2020 Share Option
Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
the shareholders’ meetings.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the disclosure under the headings “Connected Transactions”
and "Continuing Connected Transactions” below of this annual report,
none of the Directors had any material interests, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 202 1.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors had an interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the 2020 Share Option Scheme as disclosed in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 3| December 2021, the Group's purchases from
its largest supplier and its five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 13.84% and 43.66%, respectively, of the Group's total
purchases.

The Group's sales to its largest customer and its five largest customers
accounted for approximately 0.68% and 2.5%, respectively, of the
Group's total sales during the same period.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the
shareholders of the Company (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or suppliers.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2021, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had the following interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

FEEFRHER

HE-_Z--—#+-_A=1+—RBILFE A&£EHHA
ESAMERRAARERRBEZHEBEES AMEAR
EEREETL 13.84% [ 43.66% °

R AEERESARFRAARFENZHE
EHRS Bh AN SR E B S E REAT 0.68% [ 2.5% ©

BEEAWNEEMETBMBEARRESIRNES
RRRBEBEITRAS%IA L2 RDFIIRR I MR E
BAREF RS EE TS s -

FERREREMALTARS RIEREE
WﬁZ*‘Eﬁn&/ﬂF‘

Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ RZZBZ—F+-A=+—0 &K

REVREFE M HE G XV 5%336 I’%\TEZ
Brfmasg  TIAL(EERARFHESTRA
Efﬁ%?l\)E@%Tﬁ@i*ﬁEﬁ%fﬁqﬂ%*ﬁbﬂ?ﬁééﬁiiﬁﬁ :

*Approximate

percentage of

Shares and

underlying Shares

in the issued

share capital of

Total number  the Company

of Shares and * R} K 4B B8 IR £

Number of Number of underlying Shares RZAKAFE#1T
Name of shareholder Capacity Note Shares underlying Shares R% R AHE PRAH Fids
RRtE,/ £ LY MsE g = RBEROSE iGiEd BREDL
Wu Kebo Interest of controlled | 723,894,068 (L) - 723,894,068 (L) 61.57%
MR corporations
XL EER
Beneficial owner / 274,684,429 (L) - 274,684,429 (L) 9.81%
EEBAA
Skyera Intemnational Limited Beneficial owner 2 439,791,463 (L) - 439,791,463 (L) 1571%
(“Skyera") BREBA
Mainway Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 3 538,382,657 (L) - 538,382,657 (L) 19.23%
("Mainway") EEBAA
Cyber International Limited Beneficial owner 5 180,000,000 (L) - 180,000,000 (L) 6.43%
(“Cyber’) EEBAA
Orange Sky Entertainment Beneficial owner 6 565,719,948 (L) - 565,719,948 (L) 2021%
Group (International) ERBBA
Holding Company Limited
("OSEG")
BRREEE (BR) 2K
BRAR(EX])
* These percentages are computed based on the total number of Shares in ~ * REESLRER-—F - —F+ZA=+—AE

issue (ie. 2,799,669,050 Shares) as at 31 December 202 1.
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Notes:

(M

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to have interest in a total of
1,723,894,068 Shares, of which (i) 439,791,463 Shares were held by
Skyera; (i) 538,382,657 Shares were held by Mainway; (i) 565,719,948
Shares were held by OSEG; and (iv) 180,000,000 Shares were held by
Cyber.

In addition, Mr. Wu was interested in 274,684,429 Shares as at 3|
December 2021 which were beneficially held by him in his own name.

(2)  Skyera is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu, who is also a director of
Skyera.

(3)  Mainway is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu, who s also a director
of Mainway.

(4)  Cyberis a company owned by an associate of Mr. Wu.

(5) OSEG (a company 80% owned by Mr. Wu) was interested in
565,719,948 Shares. Mr. Wu is a director of OSEG and Mr. Li Pei Sen is
the associate Chairman of OSEG.

Abbreviation:

“L” stands for long position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no other person had
an interest or a short position in Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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565,719,948 IR iR 17 FR & K #£5H K (iv) 180,000,000 %
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

(a) Cinema and Hotel Lease Agreements

On 28 June 2019, OSGH Liuliu Enterprise, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, (the "“Tenant”) entered into
the a cinema lease agreement (the “Cinema Lease Agreement”)
and a hotel lease agreement (the “Hotel Lease Agreement”) with
Jiangyin Orange Land (the “Landlord”), a company established in
the PRC with limited liability, in respect of leasing of cinema
premises situated at floor 5, 6 and 7 of the building units 597 and
599 at Wuxing Road, Xiagang Street, Jiangyin, PRC ({F BT
EBEEAERK), with a total gross floor area of approximately
17,124.49 square meters (the “Cinema Premises”) and hotel
premises situated at Orange Sky Land Square One, Jiangyin, PRC
(FFBYIREMHE R ES | 5%), with a total gross floor area of
approximately 14,188.57 square meters (the “Hotel Premises”)
for cinema and hotel operation respectively. The terms in relation
to lease term and rent of the Cinema Lease Agreement and the
Hotel Lease Agreement are summarized as follows:

Cinema Lease Agreement

B3
(@) ERREEEKGE

R5

—hNENAZTNBR  IEBERLE
(ARRIEZEE2EHBAR [P ) ETE
ﬁt@(fﬁwﬂiﬂmﬁzjéﬁﬁﬁﬁ EIRNEE))

D RIET M A E ik ([ 5 Wﬁi%ﬁ%p%n&
BERERH(CBEERERE]D b2l
ERME ﬂAqﬂl/IB%‘ﬁE/%imﬁiﬁﬁz
597 M 599SR KAES 6 712 BMEEEMBEY
B712409F RN ERME(EhwmzE]D
MR BLTRETEKRMES | 98 - L2%EmH
%mBVwaiﬁ%mﬁﬁmiﬁﬁﬁw
) UtERLBELE - Sy RAE
ek KRB IS E B %ﬁ,ﬂzﬂmﬁﬁmﬁkﬁL
O

Hotel Lease Agreement

TREE R BIEEER R

Lease Term A term of |5 years, commencing from the date following the date of the actual delivery of
the said premises by the Landlord to the Tenant (the “Lease Term”).

THEA FrXmEFPERRMN L ERBBE AR B ISF ( [HE] ) -
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Rent
itk

Cinema Lease Agreement

TREER R

The amount payable by the Tenant to the
Landlord for a particular rental year during
the Lease Term is equivalent to (1) the
yearly Fixed Cinema Lease Amount (as
defined below), (2) the yearly Fixed Cinema
Lease Amount and the Variable Cinema
Lease Amount (as defined below) or (3) the
yearly Fixed Cinema Lease Amount and the
De Minimis Amount (as defined below) (as
the case may be) (collectively, the “Cinema
Rent”).
HEFHHEAASEHEFERNETINEE
HERWFEEFTZEEERA(ETELT
X)(biﬁlﬁ%hﬁ%ﬁE&T“g

HEFE(EER T HE) FEEEZLE
f*f\lﬁ)iﬁ*ﬁ FIE(EE R TX) GRIERT
) (i [hie]) -

Hotel Lease Agreement

BIEEER R
Hotel Rent (the “Hotel Rent”)

A rate at RMBI.4 per square meter per day
(the “Initial Hotel Rent Rate”) for the first three
years from the date following the delivery of
the Hotel Premises (the “Hotel Lease Initial
Period”). During the Hotel Lease Initial Period,
the yearly Hotel Rent (1) for the first rental
year during the Lease Term shall amount to
approximately RMB4,833,572.85 (inclusive of
tax) taking into consideration of the rent
exemption period (being the period of four
months from the date following the delivery of
the Hotel Premises) and (2) for the second
and third rental year during the Hotel Lease
Term shall amount to approximately
RMB7,250,359.27 per year. The Initial Hotel
Rent Rate will be increased by 8% every three
years from the end of the Hotel Lease Initial
Period during the Hotel Lease Term (the
“Subsequent Hotel Rent Rate”).

BERS (DEEES D

BEEMELNZARGE=F(BEHEY
HD2EBRAFBATFFARARE 14T (9
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483357285t (B EHIE) - Bt R B HEA (A
BB EER B2 B IE A ) - &
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Cinema Lease Agreement

FTHREE R

(a) Fixed Cinema Lease Amount (the “Fixed

@

Cinema Lease Amount”)
BE#EMEERER ( [EEZREHBEER
H])

A rate at RMBI1.35 per square meter
per day (the “Initial Cinema Rent Rate”)
for the first three years from the date
following the delivery of the Cinema
Premises (the “Cinema Lease Initial
Period”). During the Cinema Lease
Initial Period, the yearly Fixed Cinema
Lease Amount (1) for the first rental
year during the Cinema Lease Term
shall amount to approximately
RMB5,625,394.97 (inclusive of tax)
taking into consideration of the Cinema
Rent Exemption Period and (2) for the
second and third rental year during the
Lease Term amount to approximately
RMB8,438,092.45 (inclusive of tax) per
year.
BERMERINBREAE=F ([
HEMBDZEBXRBRASFIAAR
BT MEghAsExR]) -
CHEEVE - FEEEFRBEETIE()
REREAREEEEFERHRARE
562539497 L (BIEHIE) - Bt RFk
RERRQREPE-_LE=AHEEF
EHREFARYES43809245 L (BRI
HIE) -

The Initial Cinema Rent Rate will be
increased by 8% every three years from
the end of the Cinema Lease Initial
Period during the Cinema Lease Term
(the “Subsequent Cinema Rent Rate”).
REEEHA > NPEZEEALEEEE
FREEMHRBERETG=FEInex% ([X
rEEESEE]) -
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Cinema Lease Agreement

TREER R

(b) Variable Lease Amount (the “Variable

(®)

Lease Amount”)

TERERE ( [TERENE] )

In the event that the yearly cinema
commission amount (as the case may
be, the amount which is equivalent to:
(i) 14% of the annual Net Box Office'
for each rental year during the first to
the fifth rental year of the Lease Term;
(i) 15% of the annual Net Box Office'
for each rental year during the sixth to
the tenth rental year of the Lease Term;
or (iii) 16% of the annual Net Box
Office' for each rental year during the
eleventh to the fifteenth rental year of
the Lease Term) (the “Cinema
Commission Amount”) exceeds the
yearly Fixed Cinema Lease Amount for
a particular rental year during the Lease
Term, an amount equivalent to the
difference between the yearly Cinema
Commission Amount and the yearly
Fixed Cinema Lease Amount shall be
payable by the Tenant to the Landlord.
MR AS EHEFENFEZ A
T (RIEAME - BESEEER - ()R
HHRNEFEERFRHEFECFE
ZEHE 4% (VA HEBRESEE T
FERMEE ¢F2¢Fx%@%5%?i
(iVAREERNE+—E2E+-HFSHESF
EZFEREFRE16%) ([t ])iE
BEREEZRAENR - AAFAR
EEIXMNHEERFEXRAS Eﬁiirl
ER R ERIEME B E A

Hotel Lease Agreement
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Note:

Cinema Lease Agreement

FTHREE R
(c) De Minimis Amount (the “De Minimis

©

Amount”)

SEFE((xEZHE])

De Minimis Amount is the maximum
amount which would render the
entering into of the Cinema Lease
Agreement with the payment of the
Variable Cinema Lease Amount for a
particular rental year during the Lease
Term by the Tenant to the Landlord
being constituted as a fully exempt
continuing connected transaction under
Rule 14A76 of the Listing Rules.
IR RRE AR RS 14A76
fék %ﬁﬂi%ﬁﬁfﬁ%@#ﬁ
WA EFERERRES (A&
THREEREBKE AR RS
MERGH R ERREEHE -

Notwithstanding the above, in the event
that (1) the yearly Cinema Commission
Amount exceeds the yearly Fixed Cinema
Lease Amount and (2) the yearly Variable
Cinema Lease Amount exceeds the De
Minimis Amount for a particular rental year
during the Cinema Lease Term, the Tenant
shall pay an amount equivalent to (1) the
yearly Fixed Cinema Lease Amount and (2)
the De Minimis Amount to the Landlord
for the relevant rental year. As such, in the
event that the Variable Lease Amount
exceeds the De Minimis Amount for a
particular rental year, the Variable Lease
Amount payable by the Tenant for that
particular rental year will be no more than
the De Minimis Amount. The amount
equivalent to the difference between the
Variable Lease Amount and the De
Minimis Amount will not be payable by the
Tenant to the Landlord, unless the
Company re-complies with the
reqwrements under the Listing Rules.
BEWIL REEEAHASEEE
Eﬁ ﬁmﬁ&%hﬁitﬁif
BlEZREEREAN Q) FEAEY
i EREBRKERE  HEA
REBEEFERARXREXMEER
(WFEBEEZREERERQ R
BRI S EE - Bk - W ERE
EFEHAEHERIERIBKER
" Wﬁﬁmhﬁﬁﬂﬁirﬁﬁ
B A & AH 8 RUR AS T B & E K
15 o %#K AIEFHET ETRE
MRE BAEPKTERERES
A E R A &8 & IR R ERIA
WM& B ZFRRI A ©

I The box office minus the value-added tax and the Special State Film
Undertaking Development Fund (Bl EF HIEE ), amounting
to 5% of the box office, which may be subject to changes of the
relevant regulations of the respective departments in the PRC.
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(b)

As at the date of the Cinema Lease Agreement and the Hotel
Lease Agreement, the Landlord was owned as 75% by Orange
Sky Land and 25% by Beijing Orange Land. Orange Sky Land was
indirect wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Kebo. Beijing Orange Land was
wholly-owned by Beijing Orange Sky, which was in tum held as
to 99% by Zeng Qingxin (who held the shareholding interests in
Beijing Orange Sky in accordance to the instructions of Mr. Wu
Kebo). Mr. Wu Kebo was the Director and controlling
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the Landlord, being
the associate of Mr. Wu Kebo was a connected person of the
Company.

Pursuant to HKFRS 16, the entering into of the Cinema Lease
Agreement and the Hotel Lease Agreement as a lessee will
require the Group to recognise the Cinema Premises and the
Hotel Premises as the right-of-use assets in relation to the Fixed
Cinema Lease Amount and the Hotel Rent, thus the entering into
of the Lease Agreements with the Fixed Cinema Lease Amount
and the Hotel Rent and the transactions contemplated
thereunder will be regarded as deemed acquisition of assets and
connected transactions by the Group. The Fixed Cinema Lease
Amount under the Cinema Lease Agreement, the Hotel Rent
under the Hotel Lease Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

Leases in relation to Beijing Office Premises

On 29 January 2019, Lessor and Shanghai Orange Sky Jiayin Shiye
Company Limited (E/8EXZZEEBR A, entered into
a lease agreement in respect of sub-leasing of office premises at
the portion of first and portion of second floor of house No.3 at
No.| Anjialou, Xiaoliangmagiao Ave, Chaoyang District, Beijing,
the PRC, with a total floor area of approximately I,171 square
meter for the period, from 29 January 2019 to 31 December
2021 at the rent of RMB8.8 per square meter per day with the
management fee of RMB0.848 per square meter per day. The
total rental for the term of this agreement amounts to
RMBI1,347,733.35 (equivalent to approximately
HK$13,163,370.69); and the total management fee for the term
of this agreement amounts to RMB,093,508.86 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,268,470.28).

(b)

REhflEmaBEHER:EAE £+
7 Bl B 18 R J2 3k AR M HE B 75% K 25% 1
e BMAMMAmRELEMEEE2EES - 4t
FEMAIEREXEZERE - L REXAIH
Eﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iz%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi
IR 9% K - (hmRAEERER
EERITERRE - Bt - %I&%Eﬁ&%i
ZEEAN) BAREBEEAL -

RIBBFRFERESENSE 165% - FRFABEA
Auwbi A E S REEEE R EE kA E
EAGEETEEEFRREERSSH R
MERBEYEERREREEE - B
YEREEFREEREEEReNEE
BHEAREBTRETZ B REANEE
BIEEBEEERBERS - RELTRANE
HMAE - ZhBEERZEATEEZREER
HOBEEEREETEEES RAET
ETRGBRARANBERS -

ﬁﬂki%ﬁi%#tﬂﬁ
—NEFE-A=+hB HBEARLSE
&%i%ﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬂﬂﬁﬁ%%%vm‘
AME—F - AF-A_thAELE_%
——F+ A=+ ALEE - HALRE
lk?ﬁﬁ%@hu%ﬁ$£%EmWWﬂ

BIEED) 2B(Io) BEEEREOE
Hﬂiﬁ#Z%“*%% HeAERETYF
HRARESST EHEATHEFETXKA

R#08487T - A FHANBEHEAARE
11,347,733.35 L (AR E 47 13,163,370.69787T)
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Also, on 29 January 2019, the Lessor and It RIER = S ZTEI5
EIRHMR AT (Beijing Orange Sky 360 Theatre Management
Company Limited), entered into a lease agreement in respect of
sub-leasing of office premises at third floor of house No.3 &
portion of second floor of house No.7 & house No.5 at No.|
Anjialou, Xiaoliangmagiao Ave, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the
PRC, with a total floor area of approximately 1,960.88 square
meter for the period from 29 January 2019 to 31 December
2021 at the rent of RMB8.8 per square meter per day with the
management fee of RMB0.848 per square meter per day. The
total rental for the term of this agreement amounts to
RMB19,002,171.97 (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,042,519.49); and the total management fee for the term
of this agreement amounts to RMBI,831,118.39 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,124,097.33).

As at the date of the above lease agreements, Zeng Qingxin
(who held the shareholding interests in the Lessor in accordance
to the instructions of Mr. Wu Kebo) held 99% of the equity
interest in the Lessor. Mr. Wu Kebo, the chairman, a Director and
the controlling shareholder of the Company. Therefore, the
Lessor was a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated the above lease agreements
constituted connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 3| December
2021, no other connected transactions were entered into by the
Company.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

oh - R—ZTE—AE—A=-+AhHB  HHEA
B R K= ATEISEERER ARG A
EH# RABER=_ZE—NLF—A=1+Ah
AfRE-_FE-_—F+_A=+—HIHH"
ﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ$%%%%?%%|%
Fe38RiE3fE - 7518 28 (26 ) R 5918 -
Eﬁ@#mﬁww%$E#Z%“*m¥
HeASRFTFHKARKSS T BEEA
BEEFHKARK0848TT » N EH A
wWHES A ARBEI1900217197T(HERD
22042519497 70) + AR ZEFEANBE R
B R AR #183111839m( #H 8B N 4
2,124,097.3377T) °

RERBERHEBRS  BEHRELRKE
2R A REAZBAE) F5H B EA 99%
Pt M REERARAEFE  EFRIE
PR R o Eu - HEARARRRBEEAL -
it - R AR R Bt SR T B
ETRGERARRZBERS -

BEXHBREEN RBE_T - —F+=
A=+—BLEHE AXREET I HMmE
BRG



Report of the Directors
E%ﬁiﬁ*i

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has entered into
and engaged in the following transactions and arrangements with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company:

(a) Cinema Lease Agreement

Reference is made to the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions — (a) Cinema and Hotel Lease Agreements” above.

As disclosed above, in the event that the yearly Cinema
Commission Amount exceeds the yearly Fixed Cinema Lease
Amount for a particular rental year during the Lease Term, an
amount equivalent to the difference between the yearly Cinema
Commission Amount and the yearly Fixed Cinema Lease Amount
shall be payable by the Tenant to the Landlord (i.e. the Variable
Lease Amount). In addition, pursuant to the Cinema Lease
Agreement, the property management service fee payable is
initially at a rate of RMBO.5 per square meter per day for the
property management services at the Cinema Premises (the
“Initial Management Fee”) provided by the Landlord for the first
three rental years (the “Initial Management Fee Period”), which
amounts to (I) approximately RMB2,083,479.62 (inclusive of
water and air conditioning bills and tax) for the first rental year
during the Lease Term and (2) approximately RMB3,125,219.43
(inclusive of water and air conditioning bills and tax) per year for
the second and third rental year during the Lease Term. The
Initial Management Fee will be increased by 8% every three years
from the end of Initial Management Fee Period.

As at the date of the Cinema Lease Agreement, the Landlord
was owned as 75% by Orange Sky Land and 25% by Beijing
Orange Land. Orange Sky Land was indirect wholly-owned by
Mr. Wu Kebo. Beijing Orange Land was wholly owned by Beijing
Orange Sky, which was in turn held as to 99% by Zeng Qingxin
(who held the shareholding interests in Beijing Orange Sky in
accordance to the instructions of Mr. Wu Kebo). Mr. Wu Kebo
was the Director and controlling shareholder of the Company.
Accordingly, the Landlord, being the associate of Mr. Wu Kebo
was a connected person of the Company. Pursuant to HKFRS 16,
the entering into of the Cinema Lease Agreement as a lessee will
require the Group to recognize the Variable Cinema Lease
Amount linked to sales to be recognized as expenses incurred by
the Group over the term of the Cinema Lease Agreement, thus
the entering into of the Cinema Lease Agreement with the
Variable Cinema Lease Amount and the transactions
contemplated thereunder will be regarded as a continuing
connected transaction under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules. In
addition, the provision of property management services at the
Cinema Premises by the cinema property manager appointed by
the Landlord under the Cinema Lease Agreements also
constitutes continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.31
of the Listing Rules.

The aggregate amount paid by the Group to the Landlord for the
year ended 3| December 2021 amounted to HK$nil, which was
within the annual cap of RMB5,756,797.50 (equivalent to
HK$6,447,613.20).
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Confirmation from Directors

The Directors, including the non-executive Directors, have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of the
business of the Group, on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent third
parties, and in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have advised that nothing has come to
their attention that caused them to believe the continuing connected
transactions:

(@)  have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services;

(c)  have not been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreement governing the
transactions; and

(d) the relevant cap amounts disclosed in the relevant
announcements of the Company, where applicable, have been
exceeded during the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

The other connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions constituted de minimis transactions as defined in the Listing
Rules and were exempt from the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval, and in the case of continuing
connected transactions, the annual review requirements. The
independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed and confirmed
that these other connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
the business of the Group, on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent third
parties, and in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

For the year ended 3| December 2021, the Corporate Governance
Report is set out on pages 25 to 39 of the annual report.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Details of the Company’s environmental policy and community
involvement are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report Section in this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration of the employees of the Group is made/determined by
reference to the market, individual performance and their respective
contribution to the Group. As a long-term incentive, the 2020 Share
Option Scheme is in place and the details of which are set out above
and in note 25 to the financial statements on pages 150 to 153 of this
annual report.

Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations of the
remuneration committee of the Company and the Board's approval.
Other emoluments including discretionary bonus and share option, are
determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, abilities,
reputation and performance.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of the Company's issued share capital as of the
date of this report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has made
charitable and other donations in Hong Kong totalling HK$nil.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have
been audited by Messrs. KPMG (“KPMG") who will retire and being
eligible, will offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint KPMG as
auditors of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Wu Kebo
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 April 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

E_LW%!E?E#E*

KPMG

to the shareholders of
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orange Sky
Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (““the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group™) set out on pages 97 to 162, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|
December 2021, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3|
December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with
any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We draw attention to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements
which describes that the Group has current bank loans amounting to
HK$1,062,128,000 and that the Group's ability to meet these liquidity
requirements depends on its ability to generate sufficient net cash
inflows from future operations and/or other sources. As stated in note
2(b), these facts and circumstances, along with other matters set forth
in note 2(b), indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material uncertainty related to going concern section, we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FRRERRE (EE) FRQA

(R BFEAMA L2 BIRAF])
RER

AL BN AT [ M) EEFFIERF 1632
28EHBRERRE(EE)ERAFT(TERA D)
REMBRRUATRME EEE )RS MBHRE
E%ﬁ?v?/:.\ﬁﬁkiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/‘;j;*¢+ A=+—

?u?éﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬂ?iiﬁi%zi%ﬁtﬁfﬁ’]i &z
2% FEEZEWER - ?*/\%\*“ibi\%&%?é\fﬁi

MEBRIARGEMBHRERMTE  BEIESHRE
HE -
HMRA  ZEFEVBHRROBREBEIAIQ

g ([HEGFMAE ) BEMNCEEMBRELER)
BEEMP AR BEEER-_ZF-_—F+-8
=t+—BNEEMBRARARBEZR LFENES
MBRBRIEERDRE ?I’EE?E?@%;‘%(EEW%WW
I BE R X kA

HMEREEESHM RS RONCEBRAAERD
ETES  RAEZFEYNTAENREECELRR
& [ B F ARSI B HRAENEE] o
VE%& SR - RBEBREGASBMO(EXS
FrEDEZ TR (VAT R [T RID D) A K S35 9 4
E#"%Liﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%#&%E’J%uﬁﬁfﬁE’JEﬂLux/\ :
BB BEE YERBITELERERUK
PR R EMBRERE(E - HAFUEE - AR
ESHNBEABREREREEHARMNETER
TR AR o

BMEREGAMEHRERME2D) - EHilL BHE
B EHAZIRITERAE1,062,1280008 7L ' 1 EX£E
R ERNERDEST RKNIRTHESHREKE
BRSEM IR MBS R AFEBmE o &
NPT FE2(b) Pt - UL FFE RIS GERMFE2(0) A
HEMEE)AOREEFEEATETE - A8
Y BEBEERELKEZRENELEEARM T
EZEARMEEWEER -

MEFRERERMOFEHE - RAHAH
REMBRRNETZAEENSTH  GELFRI
ERMBAERBEAMBREAL D AT R ETR
EE o BMTSHELEREBHEBNEL - BN
BRfFEEE 2 EATRE S EEI)
BAEH IXAHEEEEE /BN ARERNME
L RARESFH o



Independent Auditor’s Report

?iﬁ_l.P'iilEﬂiiE*

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill

B BB TR (E AT

Refer to note |5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on note 2(k).

AR A S IRE M AT | 5 R aE2(k) BTt B S 5T IBUR ©

The Key Audit Matter
BREEE

The carrying value of the Group’s goodwill which amounted to
HK$573,933,000 as at 31 December 2021 was allocated to the
Group's exhibition and distribution business.
BERER =T —F+-A=1—RKREER573933000#7T
MEEENSEE BERBOFRMEEITER

Management performs an annual impairment assessment of goodwill
by assessing its value in use by preparing a discounted cash flow
forecast and comparing the net present value of the cash flow
forecast with carrying value of the cash generating unit (“CGU") to
which the goodwill has been allocated to determine if any
impairment is required.

EEESFHRBETRENE - DEREBREUERE
REBARGRSRERNNFRELESERENRSE
BN ( [ReEEEEM] ) NREEETLBOREEE
MEREE  KMETEEHE2EHEFARE -

Management is required to exercise significant judgement in
estimating the future revenue and future gross margins to be
generated from movies to be distributed or produced by the Group.
The movie market is dynamic and the reception of the market to
the Group's movies is inherently uncertain.

ERERER BERESTRITREENEZELNARRE
mMEARARENREATEERHE - EXMIHSREEGRE -
miEY BEREETNEIEEFEERNIHEEL -

We identified assessing potential impairment of goodwill as a key
audit matter because determining the level of impairment, if any,
involves a significant degree of management judgement in forecasting
future cash flows and estimating the recoverable amount of the
CGU both of which are inherently uncertain and may be subject to
management bias.
BMEERBNECREI RAREAEE - REARERE
WERE (F) PREREBREARRRLREMMER
SEABUNTIKRESERELSEAE - h LimESEF
EREAEN T REER AR EREENRRLA

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMHFSNWEREZSE

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of goodwill

included the following:

B AH A B AR EN T EF BEATRIA

. evaluating management's identification of the CGU, the
amount of goodwill and other assets allocated to the CGU
and the methodology adopted in the impairment assessment
with reference to the requirement of the prevailing
accounting standards;
%%ﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬂmﬁm AHEEREESREELEM
AR EReELBUNRERAEMEES
%EPAZQE$T£%&ﬂ§E¢? REYTIE

. comparing the most significant inputs used in the discounted
cash flow forecast, including future revenue and future gross
margins, with the historical performance of the CGU and
assessing these inputs with reference to industry forecasts
and statistics;
BERRREBATERANREAGARE (8K
R RARRENE) BREELBAUMBERTET
LR - WS ETEIRB RS BB AR S m AR

o evaluating the discount rate used in the cash flow forecast by
benchmarking against other similar companies in the same
industry;

/mﬂﬁ L FRR AR RHER R ETR

AR R EYRAER

. performing sensitivity analysis of the discount rate and future
revenue and considering the resulting impact on
management'’s conclusion in respect of the impairment
assessment and whether there were any indicators of
management bias; and

LA R L AR RREETHRESN - UERHEIRE

BRREMENERELNFERERFEEEERR
IS - &
. considering the disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements in respect of the impairment assessment of
goodwill, including the key assumptions and sensitivities, with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting

standards.
ZERITEFERNRTE - ERESVBRERAREEE
BERERHKE - BEEERZRERE -

BARBEARRE (KE) ARA
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Impairment assessment of other property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to film

exhibition operations

HERMHEBEENAMYFE  BERREURREAEEENBEE

Refer to note | | to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on note 2(h).

B2 RIAFE PITEREA T | | A R B aE2(h) T E I & a TR ©

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

As at 3| December 2021, the Group held other property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to film
exhibition operations (“Cinema Related Assets”) which were
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses at amounts of HK$215,519,000 and
HK$1,108,076,000 respectively.
R-_ZB_—F+—_A=+—R8"
EENHMYE  BEREEAREAEEE ([ZHAEHEE
ED DERARRATERBEBRIIE  2ROMA
215,519,000 7T & 1,108,076,000 % 7T ©

BERERARBEMEY

At the financial reporting date, the Group reviewed the film
exhibition operations to determine whether there were any
indicators of impairment. When indicators of impairment are
identified, management assesses the recoverable amounts of
the Cinema Related Assets. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense in the consolidated income statement if the
carrying amounts of the Cinema Related Assets exceed their
recoverable amounts. The recoverable amounts of the
Cinema Related Assets are the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.

REBHRERY - EEEEERPRERLE  UEEED
HBEEMAETR - EREFTKBETHRRER - B2
AR EEN TR £ - M AR E ENREE

BBE AR E S @ - RERRRNGS RakERBRMA -
FHHBEEENATRESESNAREREEXARERE
=

The calculation of the recoverable amounts of the Cinema
Related Assets is performed by the Group's management. In
assessing the value in use, the projected cash flows
associated with the Cinema Related Assets are discounted
using risk-adjusted discount rates. The preparation of
discounted cash flow forecasts can be highly subjective and
requires the exercise of significant management judgement
and estimation, in particular in determining forecast box
office takings, forecast confectionary sales, forecast screen
advertising, growth rates and discount rates applied.

FHABEENTRReER BEEEEREME - N
EAEER  FPABEEERBERARERERLRRFBE

MBEIR RAETTRLIR - BRI SR ETR) EWJ%%%*E*E&E =
REEEBHERERHE LGRS FHIREENREEBAR
B NEIHEREN  REEEERA  BRERMAER
BBRIR XK -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAWESOT REZBE

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of other
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
relating to the Group's Cinema Related Assets included the

following:
B ER ESEZMEREENEGYE  BER

REMEREEENRENREFR2EA TSR

. evaluating management’s process and procedures for
the identification of indicators of potential impairment
of the Cinema Related Assets as at 3| December
2021;

A EREUERRN S —F T A=1T—H&H
MHRAEEBERETR 2 BRMET

. evaluating the methodology used by management in
the preparation of the impairment assessment models
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

A EREER2ERITEHENRERR ZBE G
BRI

o with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,

comparing the key estimates and assumptions adopted
in the value in use calculations of the Cinema Related
Assets prepared by the Group’s management,
including forecast box office takings, forecast
confectionary sales, forecast screen advertising, growth
rates and discount rates applied, with available market
data;
ERMOABEEEROHT - #h EREER
EFRE T HEREECRBETEMRANERG
SARERR(BEEFRATRR - NEBHEREA R
BESERRA  BERXEAEANIRE) EBAHS
SUBRIELLE
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Impairment assessment of other property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to film

exhibition operations

HEHMHEBEENAMYF  BERREUREAREENREG

Refer to note | | to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on note 2(h).

BB A BTSRRI | | AR aE2(h) Bt a) 2 AT IBUR

The Key Audit Matter
BARETER

We identified assessing impairment of Cinema Related
Assets as a key audit matter because of the significant
management judgement and estimation required in making
assumptions and estimations which are inherently uncertain
and could be subject to management bias.
BPEFHEZ AR EENRES RERESZR - REL
EHRR R AR 2 E R EEL E R R MEaT - Ll
EOFEERRETHEER TR EEENRRALA

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRAWESTNT REZBE

comparing the key assumptions and most significant
inputs used in the prior year's discounted cash flow
forecast, including box office takings, confectionary
sales, screen advertising and growth rates, with the
actual outcomes in the current year and enquiring
management in respect of the reasons for any
significant variations identiﬂed; and
BREVLAFENERER  FE L —FENRRE
& mETERIFTIR A WJIx@”“&FExWimJ\TE(@%
EEBA - NEEHER REBRESERERE)Z
ERE - WHAMERNEMEREZREAETIEE &

performing sensitivity analyses to determine the extent
of change in those estimates that, either individually or
collectively, would be required for the Cinema Related
Assets to be materially misstated and considering the
likelihood of such a movement in those key estimates
arising and whether there was any evidence of
management bias.
ETHRED AT A ZRAAREEHREAMER
BB T - BRAfASH B REBIZE (TR ESIs
ﬂ)I%J’E&ifﬁﬁiﬁ?ﬁﬁ“iﬁE’ﬂﬂﬁ%’lﬁ AR R
BRBRETREEENRELA

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other EZEBHHEMEFEEAR - HMESBRETENFR
F5S

information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

WERES  ETERH
AN IR -

BFBHERRERMNEZ

BHPUGEMBHRRNBERELENREEMES &

IR HZFEME S BRI ARNEE %E @
HEFIEGEMBRROEFT - HANEEZHE

HMES  AUBREY  EEEMESEREEKS
MBMERBMERABET T BOBERFEE

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

ANE B E U FFEEAHERRAOBER -

%ﬁéﬁﬁa%ﬂﬁﬂﬁl{’ﬁ IREAIR S EAMAE
FEEAHRRL - RWELEE - ELEE
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's interal control.

O Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Lee Ka Nang.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
|0 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

29 April 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 202 |

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Revenue 3&4 514,901 322,646
Cost of sales (193,302) (118,554)
Gross profit 321,599 204,092
Other revenue 5(a) 43,522 112,013
Other net income 5(b) 2,538 44,855
Selling and distribution costs (367,824) (378,384)
General and administrative expenses (79,776) (85,607)
Other operating expenses (139,676) (77,094)
Valuation loss on investment property I - (6,500)
Loss from operations (219,617) (186,625)
Finance costs 6(a) (61,057) (72,948)
Share of loss of a joint venture (50,684) (38,868)
Loss before taxation 6 (331,358) (298,44 1)
Income tax credit 7(a) 16,447 10,267
Loss for the year (314,911) (288,174)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (314,153) (288,171)
Non-controlling interests (758) ©)
Loss for the year (314,911) (288,174)
Loss per share (HK cent) 10
Basic and diluted (11.22) (10.29)

The notes on pages 104 to 162 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 202 |

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
Loss for the year (314,911) (288,174)
Other comprehensive income for the year:
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of:
— subsidiaries outside Hong Kong (27,176) 5811
— a joint venture outside Hong Kong 3,835 9,165
(23,341) 14,976
Total comprehensive income for the year (338,252) (273,198)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (337,472) (273,160)
Non-controlling interests (780) (38)
Total comprehensive income for the year (338,252) (273,198)

Note: There is no tax effect relating to the above components of comprehensive income.

The notes on pages 104 to |62 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Investment property I - 14,000
Other property, plant and equipment I 369,873 327,797
Right-of-use assets [ 1,691,267 1,244,322
2,061,140 1,586,119
Interest in a joint venture 13 56,691 103,540
Intangible assets 14 521,675 530,756
Goodwill 15 573,933 633,118
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 44,413 37,363
Pledged bank deposits 19 50,000 50,000
3,307,852 2,940,896
Current assets
Inventories 16 2,877 3513
Film rights 17 75,498 46,717
Trade receivables 18(a) 14,698 13,358
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 18(b) 103,858 146,392
Pledged bank deposits 19 - 17,850
Deposits and cash 19 695,369 985,546
Non-current asset held for sale 20 160,852 -
1,053,152 1,213,376
Current liabilities
Bank loans 21 1,062,128 148,176
Trade payables 22(a) 83,812 53,693
Other payables and accrued charges 22(b) 153,214 122,238
Deferred income 22(c) 64,053 48416
Lease liabilities 23 113,468 100,328
Taxation payable 24(a) 922 9,321
1,477,597 482,172
Net current (liabilities)/assets (424,445) 731,204
Total assets less current liabilities 2,883,407 3,672,100

BRBEARRE (KE) ARAT]
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 21 - 1,057,943
Lease liabilities 23 613,121 568,563
Deferred income 22(c) 583,120 =
Deferred tax liabilities 24(b) 142,683 162,859
1,338,924 1,789,365
NET ASSETS 1,544,483 1,882,735
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25
Share capital 279,967 279967
Reserves 1,265,893 1,603,365
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 1,545,860 1,883,332
Non-controlling interests (1,377) (597)
TOTAL EQUITY 1,544,483 1,882,735
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2022.
Wu Kebo Chow Sau Fong, Fiona

Director

The notes on pages 104 to |62 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 202 |

Capital Non-

Share Share  redemption  Contributed Reserve Exchange Retained controlling Total

capital premium reserve surplus funds reserve profits Total interests equity

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

Balance at | January 2021 279,961 171,749 15,886 80,000 3,134 20,109 712,487 1,883,332 (597) 1,882,735
Changes in equity for 2021:

Loss for the year - - - - - - (314,153) (314,153) (758) (314911)

Other comprehensive income - - - - - (23,319) - (23,319) (22) (23,341)

Total comprehensive income - - - - - (23,319) (314,153) (337,412) (780) (338,252)

Balance at 31 December 2021 279,961 171,749 15,886 80,000 3,134 (3,210) 398,334 1,545,860 (1,377) 1,544,483

Capital Non-

Share Share  redemption  Contributed Reserve Exchange Retained controling Total

capital premium reserve surplus funds reserve profts Total interests equity

HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000

Balance at | January 2020 279961 11,749 15,886 80000 3134 5098 1000658 2,156492 (559) 2155933
Changes in equity for 2020:

Loss for the year = = = = = = (288,171) (288,171 ©) (288,174)

Other comprehensive income - - - - - 15011 - 15011 (35) 14976

Total comprehensive income = = = = = 15011 (288,171) (273,160) (38) (273,198)

Balance at 31 December 2020 279961 711,749 15,886 80000 3134 20,109 712487 1883332 (597) 1882735

The notes on pages 104 to 162 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 202 |

Operating activities
Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses on non-financial assets:
— Cinema related assets
— Club house assets
— Goodwill
— Film rights
Gain on lease modification
COVID-9-related rent concessions received
Valuation loss on investment property
Share of loss of a joint venture
Exchange gain, net

Operating profit/(loss) before changes in working capital

Decrease in inventories

Increase in film rights

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

Decrease in other receivables, deposits and prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accrued charges
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Interest received
Finance costs paid

Tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Note

5(a)
6(q)
6()
6(c)
6(c)
5(b)

6()
6()
6(c)
6(c)
5(a)
5(a)

24(a)

2020
HK$'000

(298,441)

(9.030)
72,948
59,468

136,384

| 481
831

26,394
7493
37416
593
(11232)
(49,849)
6,500
38,868
(21,438)

(1614)

527
(7,054)
42,005
18,329
(52,650)
(104,546)
(18581)

(123,584)
12,683

(58771)
(23.542)

(193214)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 202 |

Investing activities
Payment for the purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and Equipment

Receipt from pledged deposits
(Repayment from)/advance to a joint venture

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from new bank loans
Repayment of bank loans

Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at | January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes on pages 104 to 162 form part of these financial statements.

2020
Note HK$'000

(35,738)
148
69,150
9,305

42,865

9(b) 1,246,000
9(b) (1,087,935)
9(b) (70,673)
9(b) (33.173)

54219

(96,130)
1,068,260

13,416

19(a) 985,546
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (“‘the Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 1,
Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) and its joint venture consist of worldwide film and video distribution, and film exhibition in Hong
Kong, Singapore and Taiwan, film and television programme production in Hong Kong and Mainland China, provision of
advertising and consultancy services in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Singapore and Taiwan and live entertainment and
theatre operations in Mainland China. The other particulars and principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note
|2 to the financial statements.

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs™), which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's interest in a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties, including interests in leasehold land and buildings held as investment property where
the Group is the registered owner of the property interest (see note 2(g));

—  other leasehold land and buildings, including interests in leasehold land and buildings where the Group is the
registered owner of the property interest (see notes 2(h) and ()));

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (see
note 2(x)).

Due to the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group's operations were impacted by the tightened social distancing
measures including temporary closure of the Group’s cinemas. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group incurred a loss for the year of HK$314,91 1,000.

As at 3| December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities of HK$424,445,000, primarily as a result of bank
loans amounting to HK$1,062,128,000 classified as current liabilities, as the Group did not fulfill certain financial
covenants under the Group's banking facilities as disclosed in note 21. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits totalling HK$745,369,000 which are insufficient to fully repay
those bank loans if the lenders exercise the repayable on demand clause unless the Group is able to generate
sufficient net cash inflows from its operations and/or other sources.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

These facts and circumstances indicate the existence of material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

The directors have been taking various actions to improve the Group's operating cash flows, which include:

—  implementing various strategies to improve the Group's exhibition, distribution and production income to
generate additional operating cash inflows;

—  the Group has obtained commitment letters from certain existing banks lenders and is in the process to
enter into a facility agreement for a term loan of HK$573,000,000 to early refinance the existing banking
facility; and

—  disposal of the Group's properties, including the disposal of its Hong Kong office property for a consideration
of HK$225,000,000 completed on 29 April 2022.

Based on the directors’ intentions and the cash flow forecast, assuming the success of the above measures, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group is able to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, it is appropriate to prepare the Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 202 |
on a going concem basis. Should the Group not be able to continue to operate as a going concemn, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in these financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 30.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements
for the current accounting period:

. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark reform —
phase 2

. Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid- 9-related rent concessions beyond 30 June 202 |

Other than the amendment to HKFRS 16, the Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed
below:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark reform
— phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting for changes in the basis for determining contractual
cash flows of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as modifications, and (ii) discontinuing hedge
accounting when an interest rate benchmark is replaced by an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the reform
of interbank offered rates (“IBOR reform”). The amendments do not have an impact on these financial statements
as the Group does not have contracts that are indexed to benchmark interest rates which are subject to the IBOR
reform.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (2021 amendment)

The Group previously applied the practical expedient in HKFRS |6 such that as lessee it was not required to assess
whether rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic were lease modifications,
if the eligibility conditions are met (see note 2(j)). One of these conditions requires the reduction in lease payments
affect only payments originally due on or before a specified time limit. The 2021 amendment extends this time limit
from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Group has early adopted the 2021 amendment in this financial year. There is no impact on the opening
balance of equity at | January 2021.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance with note 2(p) or (q) depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in a joint
venture (see note 2(e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(k)).

Joint venture

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal Group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The cost
of the investment includes purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and
any direct investment into the joint venture that forms part of the Group's equity investment. Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee's net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 2(k)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment loss for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced to nil
and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset. In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in a
joint venture is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

() Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree, over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(g) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j))
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined future
use and property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in the course of construction or development at
the end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described in note 2(u)(vii).

(h) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(k)):

—  right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold properties where the Group is not the registered owner
of the property interest;

—  machinery and equipment; and

—  other items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance costs are
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment and where the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Construction in progress represents an asset under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

(h)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of lease

The Group's interests in buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and the building's estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
term or its useful life

Machinery and equipment 6.7%—-33.3%
Furniture and fixtures 8.39%—20.0%
Motor vehicles 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Club memberships

Club memberships are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(k)). Cost includes fees and expenses directly related to the acquisition of the club
memberships.

Any gain or loss arising from disposal of club memberships is recognised in profit or loss.

Trademarks

Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Trademarks are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(k)). Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are not amortised until their useful lives are determined to
be finite. Any conclusion that the useful life of trademarks is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Customer relationships with finite useful lives are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(k)). Amortisation is calculated to write
off the cost of customer relationships less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method,
over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(j) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) Asalessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the lease
liability is measured at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 2(h) and 2(k)(ii)),
except for right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with note 2(g).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“‘lease modification”) that is not accounted for
as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The only exceptions are rent concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has taken
advantage of the practical expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as negative variable lease payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

In the statement of consolidated financial position, the Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
as separate line items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note 2(u)(vii).

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs") on the following item:

—  financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other
receivables).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, and trade and other receivables: effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof;

—  variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— [2-month ECLs:  these are losses that are expected to result from possible default events within
the |2 months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to |2-month ECLs unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

BRERRL (£E) BRAA
F3R2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is
90 days past due. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument's external or internal credit
rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor's ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2(u)(viii) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable events:

—  significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

—  abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets (other than property carried at revalued
amounts);

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being held under operating leases;

— film rights;

—  goodwill;

— intangible assets (other than goodwill); and

— investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture in the Company's statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see note 2(k)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

(I) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using a first-in, first-out basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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(m) Film rights

()

(o)

(p)

(i)  Film rights
The cost of film rights is amortised at a systematic basis with reference to the underlying license periods
which are subject to annual review.

Film rights represent films and television drama series and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

(ii)  Film production in progress
Film production in progress represents films under production and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2(k)). Costs include all direct costs associated with the production of films. Impairment
losses are made for costs which are in excess of the expected future revenue to be generated by these films.
Costs are transferred to self-produced programmes upon completion.

(iii)  Self-produced programmes

Self-produced programmes are stated at cost, comprising direct expenditure and an attributable portion of
direct production overheads, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(k)). The cost
of self-produced programmes is amortised at a systematic basis with reference to the underlying license
periods, which are subject to annual review.

(iv) Investments in film/drama production

Investments in film/drama production are stated initially at cost and adjusted thereafter for the net income
derived from the investments less any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowance for credit losses (see
note 2(k)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in
note 2(k).

Trade and other payables and deferred income
(i)  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, which are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(ii) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2(u)). A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has
an unconditional right to receive non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note 2(n)). In this annual
report, the Group discloses contract liability as deferred income.
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(q) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(w)).

(r) Employee benefits
(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(ii)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the
year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is included in the amount recognised in share capital for the share issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

(iii) Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in the
Scheme. Contributions to the Scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The
Group's employer contributions are fully and immediately vested with the employees when contributed to
the Scheme. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the Mainland China are members of the state-
sponsored retirement scheme (the “‘State Scheme”) operated by the government. Contributions to the State
Scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they became payable in accordance with the rules of the State Scheme.
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(s)

Income tax

@

(if)

(ii)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business combination) and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(g), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying values at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognised.
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(s) Income tax (continued)

(iv)  Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(t) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

(u) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale of goods and the provision of services.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a significant financing benefit to the customer
for more than |2 months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is
accrued separately under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage of the
practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS |5 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.
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(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition policies are as follows:

0)
(i
(i)

(iv)

()

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)
(i)

(xii)

(xiil)

(xiv)

Income from box office takings is recognised when the services have been rendered to the buyers;
Income from film distribution and screen advertising is recognised at the time when the services are provided;

Income from promotion, advertising, advertising production and agency and consultancy services is
recognised upon the provision of the services;

Income from investments in film/drama production is recognised when the films or television programmes
are released for distribution;

Income from film royalties arising from the assignment of screening rights to television stations and the
granting of rights to manufacture, distribute and sell video cassettes, laser discs, video compact discs and
digital video discs is recognised as accrued royalties when the Group's right to receive payment is established;

Income from confectionery sales and audio visual sales is recognised at the point of sales when the
confectionery and audio visual products are given to the customers;

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
eamed;

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 2(k)(i));

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established;

Income from ticket booking is recognised upon the provision of the services;

Income from gift voucher purchases is recognised when customers exchange them for goods/services or
upon expiry;

Income from membership fees is recognised in profit or loss in the accounting period covered by the
membership terms;

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attached
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense; and

Food and beverage sales income is recognised when the related service is provided to the members and/or
their guests.
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(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries and joint venture are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except for those arising from the translation of the
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures which are taken directly to the exchange reserve.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Group initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was measured.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(x) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset is classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the asset is available for sale in its present
condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the non-current assets is brought up-to-date
in accordance with the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets, are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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(y) Related parties

()

(@) A person, or a close member of that person'’s family, is related to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group's parent.
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third party.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of
operating processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Revenue, which are from contracts with customers within the scope of HKFRS |5, represents income from the sale of
film, video and television rights, film and TV drama distribution, theatre operations, promotion and advertising services,
agency and consultancy services, film royalty, the sale of audio visual products, membership fees and food and beverage
sales.

The Group's customer base is diversified and there is no customer with whom transactions have exceeded 0% of the
Group's revenue. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from customers are set out in note 26(a) to the financial
statements.

The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following reportable segments. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form the reportable segments, which are as follows:

—  Hong Kong

—  Mainland China
—  Singapore

—  Taiwan

The results of the Group's revenue from external customers for entities located in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Singapore
and Taiwan are set out in the table below.

The reportable segment of Taiwan, represent the Group's share of results of the joint venture operating in Taiwan.

Segment revenue and results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating resources between segments, the Group's senior
executive management monitors the revenue and results attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue is allocated to the reportable segments based on the local entities’ location of external customers. Expenses are
allocated to the reportable segments with reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by
those geographical locations or which otherwise arise from the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment loss is adjusted operating loss after taxation where net finance costs, exchange
differences and extraordinary items are excluded, and the effect of HKFRS 16, Leases is adjusted as if the rentals had been
recognised under HKAS 17, Leases. To arrive at adjusted operating loss after taxation, the Group's loss is further adjusted
for items not specifically attributable to individual segments, such as directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and head office
or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning operating loss after taxation, management is provided with
segment information concerning revenue.

Management evaluates performance primarily based on the operating loss including the share of results of joint ventures
of each segment. Intra-segment pricing is generally determined on an arm'’s length basis.
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4 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

Segment information regarding the Group's revenue and results by geographical market is presented below:

Hong Kong Mainland China Singapore Taiwan Consolidated
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HKP000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HKPO00 HK$000  HK$O00
Segment revenue
Revenue
— Exhibition 132,397 64915 - - 398,708 309359 277,664 279,285 808,769 653,559
— Distribution and production 6,199 9827 3,171 201 31,680 32751 3,933 7713 44,983 50492
— Club house - = 1,485 12,907 - = - = 1,485 12907
— Corporate 1,600 2437 - - - - - - 1,600 2437
Reportable segment revenue 140,196 77179 4,656 13,108 430,388 342110 281,597 286998 856,837 71939
Repartable segmentloss | _(34561) (8330 (18217) [ G835 (10,160) Q620 (39543) [ (18805 (102481) | (152053)
Reconciliation — Revenue
Reportable segment revenue 856,837 719,395
Share of revenue from a joint
venture in Taiwan (281,597)  (286998)
Elimination of intra-segmental revenue (19,823) (18,005)
Others (40,516)  (91,746)
Consolidated revenue 514,901 322,646
Reconciliation — loss before
taxation
Reportable loss (102,481)  (152,093)
Unallocated operating expenses, net (211,672)  (136,078)
Non-controlling interests (758) )]
Income tax credit (16,447) (10267)
Consolidated loss before taxation (331,358)  (298441)
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5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME
(a) Other revenue

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

Interest income from bank deposits 5,241 9,030
Co-promotion income 2,685 6,309
COVID- |9-related rent concessions 14,288 A
Gain on lease modification - |1,232
Government subsidies (note (i) 16,757 27,856
Miscellaneous income 4,551 7,737
43,522 112,013

Note:
() In 2021 and 2020, the Group received funding support in Hong Kong and Singapore from the respective local
governments, which intended to provide financial support to protect its local business and people from disruptions caused

by the Coronavirus Disease (“COVID-19").

(b) Other netincome

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 203 (831)
Exchange gain, net 2,335 45,686
2,538 44,855
6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
(a) Finance costs
Interest on bank loans 18,721 30,547
Interest on lease liabilities (note | I(c)) 25,439 33,173
Other ancillary borrowing costs 18,383 9,686
Total finance costs on financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss 62,543 73,406
Less: finance costs capitalised into construction in progress (note (i) (1,486) (458)
61,057 72,948

| 24 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

6

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
(b) Staff costs (excluding directors’ and chief executive
officers’ emoluments (note 8))
Salaries, wages and other benefits (note (ii)) 82,029 95,633
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 7,191 7,727
89,220 103,360
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
(c) Other items
Cost of inventories 22,224 16,185
Cost of services provided 170,412 100,558
Depreciation charge (note | )
— owned property, plant and equipment 48,437 59,468
— right-of-use-assets 116,928 136,384
Impairment losses on non-financial assets
— cinema-related assets (note | /) 85,567 26,394
— club house assets - 7,493
— goodwill (note 15) 49,239 37,416
— film rights (note 17) 3,468 593
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities (note [ I(c)) 3,531 859
Amortisation of intangible assets (note |4) 1,481 1,481
Amortisation of film rights (note (iii)) (note 17) 666 1,811
Auditors’ remuneration 3,198 2978

Notes:

0] The finance costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 1.75% to
year ended 3| December 2021.

(ii) The amount includes provision for long service payments.

(i) The amortisation of film rights for the year is included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement.

1.83% (2020: 1.76% to 4.69%) per annum for the
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7 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current income tax
Provision for Hong Kong tax - _
Provision for overseas tax 824 [,322
Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years 350 (185)
1,174 [,137
Deferred tax (note 24(b))
Reversal of temporary differences (17,621) (1'1,404)
(16,447) (10,267)
Notes:
0] No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated financial statements as the Group sustained a

loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax for both years.

(ii) No provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax has been made in the consolidated financial statements as the Group

sustained a loss for PRC Corporate Income Tax for both years.

(i) The provision for Singapore Corporate Income Tax of the subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore is calculated at |79 (2020:

17%) of the estimated taxable profits for the year.

(iv)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group reversed HK$5,272,000 (2020: reversed HK$2,447,000) for
income taxes on accumulated eamings generated by its joint venture in Taiwan which will be distributed to the Group in

the foreseeable future.

(b) Reconciliation between tax credit and loss before taxation at applicable tax rates:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000

Loss before taxation (331,358) (298,441)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, calculated at the rates

applicable to loss in the jurisdictions concerned (55,941) (57,307)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 16,602 34,394
Tax effect of non-taxable income (9,070) (12,525)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 18,547 20,213
Tax effect of loss attributable to a joint venture 10,137 7,774
Tax effect of temporary differences unrecognised, net 8,200 (184)
Effect of Taiwan withholding tax for the year (5,272) (2,447)
Under/(over) provision in prior years 350 (185)
Actual tax credit (16,447) (10,267)

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive officers’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

Salaries, Double
allowances paid and Retirement
Directors’ and benefits discretionary scheme 2021
fees in kind bonus contributions Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Executive directors and chief
executive officers

WU, Kebo 7,382 1,028 - 129 8,539
LI, Pei Sen 378 | - - 379
CHOW, Sau Fong Fiona 1,235 923 170 18 2,346
GO, Misaki 288 192 - - 480
PENG, Bolun 240 299 51 19 709
YEUNG, Ho Nam - 2,344 183 18 2,545

Independent non-executive directors
LEUNG, Man Kit 340 - - - 340
WONG, Sze Wing 240 - - - 240
FUNG, Chi Man Henry 240 - - - 240
10,343 4,787 404 284 15,818

Salaries, Double
allowances paid and Retirement
Directors’ and benefits discretionary scheme 2020
fees in kind bonus contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Executive directors and chief
executive officers

WU, Kebo 7441 614 = 18 8,073
LI, Pei Sen 361 = = = 361
CHOW, Sau Fong Fiona 1,235 807 172 18 2232
GO, Misaki 288 162 - - 450
PENG, Bolun 255 258 - 78 591
XU, Hua (resigned on | June 2020) = 850 [16 7 973
YEUNG, Ho Nam (appointed on | June 2020) = 1,346 108 10 464

Independent non-executive directors
LEUNG, Man Kit 340 - - - 340
WONG, Sze Wing 240 = = = 240
FUNG, Chi Man Henry 240 = = = 240
10,400 4,037 396 131 14,964

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 25(a)(i).
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9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, three (2020: three) are directors and chief executive officer whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other
two (2020: two) are as follows:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

Salaries and other emoluments 3,548 3,310
Discretionary bonuses - -
Retirement scheme contributions 163 | 64
3,711 3,474

The emoluments of the two (2020: two) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

2021 2020

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HK$ 1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 0 |
HK$ 1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 | 0

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 1 I

10 LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$3 14,153,000 (2020: HK$288,171,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,799,669,050
(2020: 2,799,669,050), in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

2021 2020
Number Number
of shares of shares
Issued ordinary shares and weighted average number
of ordinary shares at 31 December 2,799,669,050 2,799,669,050

(b) Diluted loss per share

The Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. Diluted loss
per share for the years ended 3| December 2021 and 2020 is the same as the basic loss per share.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Il INVESTMENT PROPERTY, OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Ownership Other
interests properties
in land held leased
forownuse for own use Machinery
carried carried Leasehold and Fumiture Motor  Construction Investment
at cost at cost Buildings improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles ~in progress Sub-total property Total

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000

At | January 2020 632,107 1,008,304 106,265 277051 108,556 40,104 4409 16226 2193022 41,000 2234022
Additions = 33% = 973 2919 29 462 31,154 39,132 - 39,132
Disposals = = = (3813) (1,543) (880) (446) = (6:682) = (6,682)
Reclassify = = = = 1297 = = (1.297) = = =
Transfer 19353 - 147 - = = = = 20500 (20,500) =
Valuation loss on investment property - - - - - - - - - (6,500) (6,500)
Modification of right-of-use assets = (128:493) = = = = = = (128493) = (128493)
Exchange adjustments 8914 11,615 2475 4767 3421 1,002 250 943 3339 = 3339
At 31 December 2020 660374 894821 109,887 278978 114656 40455 4677 47026 2150874 14000 2164874
Representing:
Cost 660374 894821 109,887 218978 114656 40455 4677 47026 2150874 = 2150874
Valuation 2020 = = = = = = = = = 14000 14000
660374 894821 109,887 278978 114,656 40455 4677 47026 2150874 14000 2164874
Ownership Other
interests  properties
in land held leased for
for own use own use Machinery
carried carried Leasehold and Furniture Motor  Construction Investment
at cost at cost Buildings improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles in progress Sub-total property Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
At | January 2021 660,374 894,821 109,887 278,978 114,656 40,455 4,671 47,026 2,150,874 14,000 2,164,874
Additions - 782,936 - 30,809 9,134 3,19 - 80,636 907911 - 907911
Disposdls - - - (8372) (5,287) (1,642) (246) (25) (15,572) - (15,572)
Redlassify - - - 459 041 446 - (1,546) - - -
Trangfer 13,220 - 180 - - - - - 14,000 (14,000) -
Modification of right-of-use assets - (11,824) - - - - - - (11,824) - (11,824)
Derecognttion of right-of-use assets - (30,386) - - - - - - (30,386) - (30,386)
Transfer to non-current asset held
for sale (note 20) (160,570) - (8,948) (4423) - - - - (173,941) - (173,941)
Exchange adjustments (9,904 (4,606) (2,750) (4918) (3,466) (946) 14 1,145 (25,431) - (25,431)
At 31 December 2021 503,120 1,630,941 98,969 292,533 116,278 42,109 4,445 127,236 2,815,631 - 2,815,631
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Il INVESTMENT PROPERTY, OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

Ownership Other
interests  properties
inland held leased
forownuse for own use Machinery
carried carried Leasehold and Furniture Motor  Construction Investment
at cost at cost Buildings improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles  in progress Sub-total property Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses:
At | January 2020 0037 137,101 16812 92468 57411 19823 2552 = 348220 = 348220
Charge for the year 7870 128514 7031 30992 1505 5690 699 = 195852 = 195852
Impaiment - 18869 - 10864 2483 1711 - - 33887 - 33887
Modification of right-of-use assets - (16472) - - - - - - (16472) - (16472)
Wiitten back on disposals = = = (2878) (14%9) (880) (46) = (5,703) = (5703)
Exchange adustments 1074 11880 1918 3731 3363 885 120 - 09I - 2971
At 31 December 2020 30981 29892 2576l 135,177 76790 7109 2925 = 578755 = 578755
At [ January 2021 30,981 279,892 25,761 135,171 76,790 27,229 2,925 - 578,155 - 578,755
Charge for the year 1942 108,986 1,186 23,938 11,902 4741 664 - 165,365 - 165,365
Impaiment - 63,876 - 17922 2913 196 - - 85,567 - 85,567
Modification of right-of-use assets - (5,490) - - - - - - (5,490) - (5,490)
Derecognition of right-of use assets - (30,386) - - - - - - (30,386) - (30,386)
Written back on disposals - - - (6,973) (5,136) (1,637) (246) - (13,992) - (13,992)
Transfer to non-current asset
held for sale (note 20) (9,817) - (1,448) (1,824 - - - - (13,089) - (13,089)
Bxchange adjustments (1,045) (2,145) (1,980) (3310) (3,084) (717) Y] - (12,239 - (12,239)
At 3 December 20 28,061 414733 29519 164,930 83,445 30,418 3,385 - 154491 - 754491
Net book value:
At 31 December 2021 475,059 1,216,208 69,450 127,603 32,833 11,691 1,060 127,236 2,061,140 - 2,061,140
At 31 December 2020 629393 614929 84126 143801 37866 13226 1752 47026 1572119 14000 1,586,119
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(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

(b)

Impairment loss

Exhibition — Hong Kong

Due to exceptional disruptions to the Group's film exhibition operations as a result of COVID-19, management
conducted an impairment review on the recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets relating to film exhibition operations based on value-in-use calculations of the film exhibition segment in
Hong Kong. The calculation uses cash flow projections of the cinema related assets covering the remaining lease
terms with a pre-tax discount rate of 4% (2020: 14%). Impairment losses of HK$85,567,000 (2020:
HK$26,394,000) was recognised in “Other operating expenses” as the recoverable amounts of the cinema related
assets are lower than the fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use.

Fair value measurement of properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair values of the Group's properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level | valuations: Fair value measured using only Level | inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to
meet Level |, and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable

inputs are inputs for which market data are not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

Recurring fair value measurement

Investment property:
— Commercial — Hong Kong
— long lease

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2020 categorised into
2020 Level | Level 2 Level 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value measurement
Investment property:
— Commercial — Hong Kong
— long lease 14,000 = 14,000 =

During the year ended 3| December 2021, there were no transfers between Level | and Level 2 or
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil). The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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(ii)  Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

INVESTMENT PROPERTY, OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

The Group'’s investment property was revalued as at 3| December 2020. The valuation was carried out by
an independent firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category of properties being valued.
The Group's management has discussions with the surveyors about the valuation assumptions and valuation

results when the valuations are performed at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of the investment property located in Hong Kong is determined using the market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales prices of comparable properties on a price per square foot basis using

market data which is publicly available.

Fair value adjustment of investment property is included in “valuation loss on investment property” in the

consolidated income statement for the year ended 3| December 2020.

(c) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own use,
carried at depreciated cost ()
In Hong Kong
— long leases - 138,572
Outside Hong Kong
— long leases 475,059 490,821
475,059 629,393
Other properties leased for own use, carried
at depreciated cost (ii) 1,216,208 614,929
1,691,267 1,244,322
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:
Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own use 7,942 7,870
Other properties leased for own use 108,986 128,514
116,928 136,384

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTY, OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(c) Right-of-use assets (continued)

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

Interest on lease liabilities (note 6(a)) 25,439 33,173

Expense relating to short-term leases 365 743
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of

lease liabilities (note 6(c)) 3,531 859

COVID-9-related rent concessions received (note 5(a)) 14,288 49,849

During the year ended 3| December 2021, additions to right-of-use assets were HK$782,936,000 (2020:
HK$3,395,000) which is primarily related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 19(c) and 23,
respectively.

As disclosed in note 2(c), the Group has early adopted the Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, and applies the practical expedient introduced by the amendment to all eligible
rent concessions received by the Group during the year. Further details are disclosed in (ii) below.

(i)

(ii)

Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own use

The Group holds interests in several leasehold land for its business. The Group is the registered owner of
these property interests, including the whole or part of undivided share in the underlying land. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property interests from their previous registered owners, and
there are no ongoing payments to be made under the terms of the land lease, other than payments based
on rateable values set by the relevant government authorities. These payments vary from time to time and
are payable to the relevant government authorities.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as its office premises, cinemas and stages through
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an initial period of | to 20 years.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional period after the end of the contract term.
Where practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension options exercisable by the Group to provide
operational flexibility. The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise the extension options, the
future lease payments during the extension periods are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities.
The potential exposure to these future lease payments is summarised below:

2021
Potential future
lease payments
under extension
options not
Lease liabilities included in
Right-of-use recognised lease liabilities
assets (discounted)  (undiscounted)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Cinemas — Hong Kong 168,743 243,884 -
Stage — Mainland China 613,811 - -
Offices — Singapore 5,866 6,477 -
Cinemas — Singapore 427,788 476,228 -
1,216,208 726,589 -
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Il INVESTMENT PROPERTY, OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-

OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(c) Right-of-use assets (continued)
(ii)  Properties leased for own use (continued)

2020

Potential future
lease payments

under extension

options not

Lease liabilities included in

Right-of-use recognised lease liabilities

assets (discounted) (undiscounted)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Offices — Hong Kong 3,659 4,076 =
Cinemas — Hong Kong [28,582 56,162 =
Club house — Mainland China 2,304 = =
Offices — Mainland China ['1,756 18 =
Offices — Singapore 7,203 7,801 -
Cinemas — Singapore 461,425 500,834 =
614,929 668,891 =

The Group leased a number of cinemas which contain variable lease payment terms that are based on sales
generated from the cinemas and minimum annual lease payment terms that are fixed. These payment terms
are common in cinemas in countries where the Group operates. During the year ended 3| December 2021,
the Group received rent concessions in the form of a discount on fixed payments during the period of
severe social distancing and travel restriction measures introduced to contain the spread of COVID-19. The
amount of fixed and variable lease payments for the year is summarised below:

Fixed

payments

HK$’000

Hong Kong 42,614
Mainland China 18
Singapore 84,239
Fixed

payments

HK$'000

Hong Kong 55,909
Mainland China 14,961
Singapore 82,825

(d) Investment property

2021
COVID-19
Variable rent
payments concessions
HK$’000 HK$’000
846 (3,409)
2,685 (10,879)
2020
COVID-19
Variable rent
payments concessions
HK$'000 HK$'000
22 (1'1,728)
= (5,439)
837 (32,682)

Total
payments
HK$’000

40,051
18
76,045

Total
payments
HK$'000

44,203
9,522
50,980

The Group leases out investment property under operating leases. No future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as at 3| December 2021.
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12

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of principal subsidiaries which affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 2(d) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial

statements.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company

FREXRBAFARFEERAR"

Gala Film Distribution Limited

Golden Harvest Cinemas Holding Limited

Golden Harvest Entertainment
International Limited

Golden Harvest Films Distribution
Holding Limited

Golden Harvest (Marks) Limited

Golden Harvest Treasury Limited

Golden Screen Limited

Golden Sky Pacific Limited

M Cinemas Company Limited

Orange Sky Golden Harvest
Entertainment Company Limited

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Motion

Pictures Company Limited

Panasia Films Limited

Panasia Cinema Advertising Limited

Splendid Ventures Limited

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

PRC

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital

Registered capital
RMB3,000,000

49990,000 shares and
10,000 non-voting
deferred shares”

| share of US|

1,000 shares of US$| each

| share of US$I

| share of US$|

| share of US$I

8,750,000 shares
2 shares
7,000,000 shares

100 shares

94,000,000 shares

23,000 shares

10,000 shares

2 shares

Group’s
effective
interest

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

Investment, production and
distribution of motion
pictures and acts as an
advertising agent

Distribution of motion pictures

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

Holding of trademarks

Provision of finance to
group companies

Investment holding

Investment holding

Theatre operation

Investment holding and
provision of management

services to group companies

Film production and
investment holding

Distribution of motion pictures
and its related audio visual
products and acts as an
advertising agent

Advertising agent

Theatre operation
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12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Name of company and operation
Shanghai Golden Harvest Media PRC
Management Company Limited”™ "
Dartina Development Limited Hong Kong
Golden Village Muttiplex Pte Limited Singapore
Golden Village Pictures Pte Limited Singapore
Golden Properties (Pacific) Limited British Virgin Islands

Group’s
Particulars of issued effective
and paid up capital interest
Registered capital US$500,000 100%
31,200,082 shares 100%
8,000,000 shares of S$I each 100%
8,000,000 shares of S$| each 100%
| share of US$| 100%

Principal activities

Distrbution of motion pictures

Investment holding
Theatre operation
Distrbution of motion pictures

Property holding

Except for Golden Harvest Entertainment International Limited, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the

Company.

AN

13 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Share of net assets

The equity interest of the entity is held by PRC nationals on behalf of the Group.

Shanghai Golden Harvest Media Management Company Limited is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise under PRC Law.

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
56,691 103,540

The following list contains the particulars of the Group's joint venture:

Proportion of ownership interest

Form of Place of Group’s
Name of jointly  business incorporation  Particulars of issued effective  Held by the Held by Principal
controlled entity structure and operation and paid up capital interest Company  subsidiaries activity
Vie Show Cinemas ~ Incorporated ~ Taiwan 80,000,000 shares of 3571% = 3571%  Theatre operation and
Co. Lltd.* NTDI0 each investment holding
# The joint venture in which the Group participates, which is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial

statements, is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not available.
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd. adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a
reconciliation to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd.*

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
Gross amounts of the joint venture:
Current assets 559,504 661,131
Non-current assets 3,447,203 3,478,942
Current liabilities (904,534) (970,398)
Non-current liabilities (2,943,416) (2,879,728)
Equity 158,757 289,947
Included in the above assets and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents 502,823 608,712
Non-current financial liabilities
(excluding trade and other payables and provisions) 42,696 42,300
Revenue 755,315 789,457
Loss from continuing operations (141,929) (108,843)
Total comprehensive income (141,929) (108,843)

Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd.*

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
Included in the above profits:
Depreciation and amortisation 427,008 393,285
Interest income 86 195
Interest expense 50,719 44621
Income tax expense 35,737 30,037
Reconciled to the Group’s interests in the joint venture
Gross amounts of the joint venture's net assets 158,757 289,947
Group's effective interest 35.71% 3571%
Group's share of the joint venture's net assets 56,691 103,540
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements 56,691 103,540

# The joint venture is not audited by KPMG.

There has been a dispute among the shareholders of Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd (“Vie Show") involving allegations of
breaches of the material terms of the shareholders’ agreement and lawsuits were filed between the shareholders with the
Taipei District Court of Taiwan in 2014. The lawsuits are ongoing and there remains uncertainty about the outcome of
the shareholders’ dispute. The shareholders' dispute and the related lawsuits do not affect the operations of Vie Show.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Customer Club
Trademarks relationships  memberships Total
HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Cost:
At | January 2021 526,644 7,407 1,890 535,941
Exchange adjustments (7,600) - - (7,600)
At 31 December 202 | 519,044 7,407 1,890 528,341
Accumulated amortisation:
At | January 202 | - 5,185 - 5,185
Charge for the year - 1,481 - 1,481
At 3| December 202 | - 6,666 - 6,666
Net book value:
At 3| December 202 | 519,044 741 1,890 521,675
Customer Club
Trademarks relationships memberships Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost:
At | January 2020 519,804 7,407 1,890 529,101
Exchange adjustments 6,840 - - 6,840
At 31 December 2020 526,644 7,407 [,890 535,941
Accumulated amortisation:
At | January 2020 - 3,704 - 3,704
Charge for the year - 1,481 - 1,481
At 31 December 2020 - 5,185 - 5,185
Net book value:
At 31 December 2020 526,644 27222 1,890 530,756
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14

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

0)

Trademarks represent perpetual licenses for the use of the brand names “Golden Harvest” and “The Sky” in Hong Kong, and
"“Golden Village™ in Singapore which take the form of sign, symbol, name, logo, design or any combination thereof.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group's trademarks have indefinite useful lives due to the following reasons:
(@)  the trademarks have been in use and will continue to be used for the long term; and

(b)  the Group has incurred and intends to continue to incur significant advertising and promotion expenses, which are charged
to profit or loss when incurred, to maintain and increase the market value of its trademarks.

At 31 December 2021, the directors carried out an assessment of the recoverable amounts of trademarks with the assistance of
independent professional valuers. Based on their review, the recoverable amounts of trademarks exceeded their carrying amounts
and therefore no impairment was recognised.

(i) Customer relationships represent non-contractual customer relationships owned by Panasia Cinema Advertising Limited (“PCAL")
recognised by the Group upon the acquisition of PCAL on 31 May 2017.
PCAL generated revenue from several customers repeatedly across years. While there is no long term contract between PCAL
and those customers, it is customary for those customers to do business with PCAL whenever they require services that PCAL
provides and such needs are recurring for those customers and observed from the trading history for the past five years.
GOODWILL
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
Cost:
At | January 720,959 712,007
Exchange adjustments (9,946) 8,952
At 31 December 711,013 720,959
Accumulated impairment losses:
At | January 87,841 50,425
Impairment losses 49,239 37416
At 3| December 137,080 87,841
Carrying amount
At 31 December 573,933 633,118
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Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units (“CGU") identified according to country of operation and
business segment as follows:

2020

HK$'000

Exhibition and distribution — Singapore 583,879
Exhibition — Hong Kong 49,239
633,118

Exhibition and distribution — Singapore

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five years and a pre-tax discount
rate of 15% (2020: 15%), which reflects specific risks relating to the Group’s Singapore segment. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 2% (2020: 2%), which do not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the business in which the CGU operates.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Exhibition — Hong Kong

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five years and a pre-tax discount
rate of 13% (2020: 13%), which reflects specific risks relating to the Group’s Hong Kong segment. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 2% (2020: 2%), which do not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the business in which the CGU operates.

The impairment loss of HK$49,239,000 (2020: HK$14,183,000) recognised in “Other operating expenses’ during the year
solely relates to the Group's exhibition activities based in Hong Kong.

Inventories are carried at cost of HK$2,877,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$3,513,000) which comprised largely
food and beverages for resale.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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FILM RIGHTS

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
Film rights — completed 18,192 18,857
Film production in progress, at cost 57,306 27,860
75,498 46,717
Cost:
At | January 373,576 397,651
Additions 32,236 9,381
Disposals - (42,894)
Expiries (15,851) (7,562)
Exchange adjustments 3,586 17,000
At 3| December 393,547 373,576
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At | January 326,859 359,029
Amortisation 666 1,811
Disposals - (42,894)
Impairment 3,468 593
Expiries (15,851) (7,562)
Exchange adjustments 2,907 15,882
At3| December 318049 - 326859
Net book value:
At 31 December 75,498 46,717

Film rights represent films, television drama series and self-produced programmes.

Film production in progress represents films under production.

In accordance with note 2(k) of the Group's accounting policies, the Group performed impairment tests at 3| December
2021 and 2020 by comparing the attributable carrying amounts of the film rights/self-produced programmes with the

recoverable amounts.

The directors assessed the recoverable amounts of the film rights based on the present value of estimated discounted
future cash flows. Impairment of HK$3,468,000 (2020: HK$593,000) for film rights was recognised for the year ended 31

December 2021.
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18 RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(a) Trade receivables

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

Trade receivables 14,815 13,475
Less: Loss allowance 17 (117)
14,698 13,358

(ii)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables (which are included in trade
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within | month 11,019 7,123
Over | month but within 2 months 1,282 [,454
Over 2 months but within 3 months 488 1,662
Over 3 months 1,909 3,119
14,698 13,358

The Group usually grants credit periods ranging from one to three months. Each customer has a credit limit
and overdue balances are regularly reviewed by management.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, the concentration of credit risk is not considered significant. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing. The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate their fair values. Further details
of the Group's credit policy are set out in note 26(a) to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, trade receivables of the Group included amount of HK$Nil (2020: HK$NIl) due from
a related company and amount of HK$141,000 (2020: HK$1,000) due from a joint venture, which are
unsecured, interest-free and recoverable within one year.

(b) Al of the other receivables, deposits and prepayments (including amounts due from related companies and joint
venture) are expected to be recoverable within one year.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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19 DEPOSITS AND CASH
(a) Deposits and cash comprise:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

Deposits at banks 252,782 294,307
Cash at bank and in hand 492,587 759,089
745,369 1,053,396

Less: Pledged deposits (50,000) (67,850)
Cash and cash equivalents in consolidated statement of cash flows 695,369 985,546

As at 31 December 2021, deposits and cash placed with banks in Mainland China amounted to HK$9 1,029,000
(2020: HK$143,354,000). Remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to relevant rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the government of Mainland China.

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows from financing activities.

Bank loans

and other Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Note 21) (Note 23)
At | January 2021 1,206,119 668,891 1,875,010
Changes from financing cash flows:
Repayment of bank loans (155,476) - (155,476)
Capital element of lease rentals paid - (87,144) (87,144)
Interest element of lease rentals paid - (25,439) (25,439)
Total changes from financing cash flows (155,476) (112,583) (268,059)
Exchange adjustments (3,751) (7,400) (11,151)
Other changes:
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
new leases during the year - 173,620 173,620
COVID-9-related rent concessions received
(note 1 1(c)) - (14,288) (14,288)
Interest expenses (note 6(a)) - 25,439 25,439
Lease modifications - (7,090) (7,090)
Other ancillary borrowing costs 15,236 - 15,236
Total other changes 15,236 177,681 192,917
At 31 December 2021 1,062,128 726,589 1,788,717
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(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (continued)

Bank loans
and other Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 21) (Note 23)
At | January 2020 1,057,065 902,723 1,959,788
Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans 1,246,000 = 1,246,000
Repayment of bank loans (1,087,935) — (1,087,935)
Capital element of lease rentals paid — (70,673) (70,673)
Interest element of lease rentals paid = (33,173) (33,173)
Total changes from financing cash flows 158,065 (103,846) 54219
Exchange adjustments 8,636 6,548 15,184
Other changes:
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
new leases during the year = 3,395 3,395
COVID-|9-related rent concessions received
(note 11(c)) — (49,849) (49,849)
Interest expenses (note 6(a)) = 33,173 33,173
Lease modifications = (123,253) (123,253)
Other ancillary borrowing costs (17,647) - (17,647)
Total other changes (17,647) (136,534) (154,181)
At 31 December 2020 1,206,119 668,891 1,875,010

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows for leases comprise the following:

2020
HK$'000
Within operating cash flows 1,602
Within financing cash flows 103,846
105,448

These amounts relate to the following:
2020
HK$'000
Lease rentals paid 105,448

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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On 7 December 2021, the Group has entered into the sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of its Hong Kong office property (the “Property”) for total consideration of HK$225,000,000, with completion
scheduled on or before 29 April 2022. The net proceeds from the Property disposal, after deducting transaction costs,
will be utilised for partial repayment of its bank borrowings. Accordingly, the Property has been reclassified as a non-
current asset held for sale as at 31 December 2021, as its carrying amount would be recovered principally through sale,
the asset is available for immediate sale at their present conditions and such sale is considered highly probable.

(@)

(®)

©

At 3| December 2021, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

2020

HK$'000

Within | year or on demand 148,176
After | year but within 2 years 165,221
After 2 years but within 5 years 892,722
After 5 years =
1,057,943

1,206,119

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost. All bank loans bear interest at
floating interest rates which approximate market rates of interest.

At 31 December 2021, the bank loans were secured by:

(i) one office property of a subsidiary located in Hong Kong (2020: one);

(i) two properties of a subsidiary located in Singapore (2020: two);

(i) deposits of subsidiaries of HK$50,000,000 (2020: HK$50,000,000); and

(iv)  equity interests in its eleven subsidiaries of the Company (2020: eleven subsidiaries).

At 31 December 2021, bank loans of HK$1,062,128,000 (2020: HK$1,206,119,000) were guaranteed by corporate
guarantees from the Company and its subsidiaries.

Certain of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain ratios of the
Group's financial performance on consolidation basis, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become payable on
demand, upon demanded by majority lenders.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 26(b) to the financial statements.

As at 3| December 2021, the Group did not fulfill certain financial covenants under the Group's banking facilities.
Accordingly, bank loans of HK$1,062,128,000 have been classified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2021. In
April 2022, the Group obtained a waiver on these financial covenants from the banks with expiry date on 30 June
2022. In addition, the Group has obtained commitment letters from certain existing banks lenders and is in the
process to enter into a facility agreement for a term loan of HK$573,000,000 to early refinance the existing banking
facility.
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUED CHARGES AND DEFERRED INCOME
(a) Trade payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, as of the end of the reporting period:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within 3 months 72,429 40,463
4 to 6 months 287 [,479
7 to 12 months 307 212
Over | year 10,789 [1,539
83,812 53,693

At 31 December 2021, trade payables of the Group included the amounts totalling HK$NIl (2020: HK$NIl) due to
related companies which were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) All of the other payables and accrued charges (including amounts due to related companies) are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

(c) Deferred income represents contract liabilities arising from billings in advance and customers’ advances and
deferred government grant. The amount of deferred income expected to be recognised as income after more than
one year from the end of the reporting period is HK$583,120,000 (2020: HK$NIl). All of the other deferred
income is expected to be recognised as income within one year.

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

Contract liabilities (note i) 33,362 48416
Deferred government grant (note ii) 613,811 —
647,173 48416

Current portion 64,053 48416
Non-current portion 583,120 -
647,173 48416
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUED CHARGES AND DEFERRED INCOME

(CONTINUED)
(c) (continued)
Note (i):

Movements in contract liabilities

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
Balance at | January 48,416 66,552
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising revenue during
the year that was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (41,109) (26,793)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving billings in
advance and customers’ advances during the year 26,703 7,721
Exchange adjustments (648) 936
Balance at 31 December 33,362 48416
Note (ii):

The Group received a government grant of approximately RMB503,123,000 (equivalent to HK$613,811,000) in 2021 in the form
of a lease over a piece of land in Suzhou for a lease period of 20 years, to support the development of the theatrical arts in
Suzhou, the PRC.

The government grant will be recognised as revenue in the consolidated income statement on a systematic basis in the same
periods as the depreciation expenses of the respective right-of-use asset are incurred.

Movement in deferred government grant

2021

HK$’000

At | January -
Additions during the year 613,811
Realised during the year -
At 3| December 613,811
Current portion 30,691
Non-current portion 583,120
613,811
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23 LEASE LIABILITIES

As at the end of the year, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within | year 113,468 100,328
After | year but within 2 years 115,842 89,073
After 2 years but within 5 years 298,638 281,683
After 5 years 198,641 197,807
613,121 568,563

726,589 668,89 |

24 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position represents:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

Provision for taxation for the year 824 [,322
Tax paid during the year (9,410) (23,542)
Balance of tax provision relating to prior years 9,508 31,541
922 9,321

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position 142,683 162,859
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (continued)

C)

The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the movements during the year are as follows:

Fair value  Depreciation Intangible
adjustments  allowancesin  Depreciation assets  Withholding
arising from excess of chargeof  acquired in tax on
business related  right-of-use business  unremitted
Tax losses combinations  depreciation asset  combinations earnings Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Deferred tax arising from:
At | January 2021 (4,655) 68,113 19,057 (3,208) 75,840 1,712 162,859
Exchange adjustments 9 (1,156) (304) 105 (1,292) - (2,555)
Credited to profit or loss
(note 7(a)) (3,688) (1,189) (5,652) (1,820 - (5,272 (17,621)
At 31 December 2021 (8,251) 65,768 13,101 (4,923) 74,548 2,440 142,683
At | January 2020 = 68255 23839 (4824) 74678 10,159 172,107
Exchange adjustments (175) 1018 183 (32) l,162 - 2,156
(Credited)/charged to
profit or loss (note 7(a)) (4480) (1,160) (4965) 1,648 = (2447) (11,404)
At 31 December 2020 (4655) 68113 19,057 (3.208) 75840 7712 162,859

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 31 December 2021, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of accumulated tax losses of
approximately HK$978,091,000 (2020: HK$703,804,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not
expire under current tax legislation except for the balances of HK$42,392,000 (2020: HK$27,052,000) which can
only be carried forward for five years under the laws of the relevant jurisdiction.
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(@) Share capital

2020
No. of shares Amount
HK$'000
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 6,000,000,000 600,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
At | January and 3| December 2,799,669,050 279967

(i)  Share option scheme
Equity-settled share-based transactions

The old share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) was initially valid and effective from || November 2009
and has expired on 10 November 2019. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on |9
June 2020, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”). The purpose of the
New Scheme was to enable the Company to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible means to
reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants. Eligible participants of
the New Share Option Scheme include the Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, and other employees of the Group and shareholders of the Company. The Scheme became
effective on |9 June 2020 and will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding
any independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the option).

The offer of a grant of share options must be accepted within 30 days inclusive of, and from the day of the
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$| by the grantee. The vesting period, the exercise
period and the number of shares subject to each option are determinable by the directors. The exercise
period may not exceed |0 years commencing on such date on or after the date of grant as the directors of
the Company may determine in granting the share options and ending on such date as the directors of the
Company may determine in granting the share options. Save as determined by the directors of the Company
and provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant share option, there is no general requirement that a
share option must be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, provided always that it shall be at
least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer
of grant of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange's closing price of the Company's shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's
shares.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon exercise of all share options granted and to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) is an amount
equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at |9 June 2020. This limit can be refreshed by
the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options granted to each eligible participant under the
Scheme within any |2-month period, is limited to % of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(a) Share capital (continued)

(i)  Share option scheme (continued)
Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There were no share options issued to the Directors, chief executive and other employees of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021. At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Company’s directors, their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

(ii)  Dividends
The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year ended 3| December 202|

(2020: Nil).

(b) Reserves
(i)  The Group

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the years ended 3| December 2021 and 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(ii) The Company

Capital
Share redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At | January 202| 171,749 15,886 271,644 15,418 1,074,697

Changes in reserves for 2021:

Loss for the year - - - (2,038) (2,038)
At 31 December 2021 771,749 15,886 271,644 13,380 1,072,659
Capital
Share  redemption  Contnbuted Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At | January 2020 771,749 15,886 271,644 17,793 1,077,072
Changes in reserves for 2020:

Loss for the year - - - (2375) (2375)

At 31 December 2020 771,749 15886 271,644 15418 1,074,697
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(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account is governed by Sections 40 and 54 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda.

(ii)  Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value of the number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(r)(ii).

(iii) Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
repurchased and cancelled.

(iv) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents (i) the difference between the nominal value of the Company's shares in
issue, in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries, and the aggregate net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition; and (i) the net transfer of HK$80,000,000 after setting off the
accumulated losses from the share premium account pursuant to the Company's capital reorganisation in
May 2007. Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company
is distributable to shareholders of the Company.

(v) Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC, the companies established therein are required to
transfer a certain percentage of their profits after tax to the reserve funds until the balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the reserve funds
may be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation by way of paid-up capital.

(vi) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign subsidiaries and joint ventures. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(v).

(d) Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the
Company representing the retained profits, amounted to HK$ 13,380,000 (2020: HK$15,418,000). In addition, the
Company's share premium account, contributed surplus, and capital redemption reserve in an aggregate amount of
HK$1,059,279,000 (2020: HK$1,059,279,000), as at 31 December 2021 may be distributed to shareholders in
certain circumstance as prescribed by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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25

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its gearing structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder retumns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the gearing structure in light of changes in economic

conditions.

The Group monitors its gearing structure calculated on the basis of external borrowings, which includes bank loans

and lease liabilities.

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 202 | and 2020 was as follows:

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Current liabilities:

Bank loans 1,062,128 148,176
Lease liabilities 113,468 100,328
1,175,596 248,504

Non-current liabilities:
Bank loans - 1,057,943
Lease liabilities 613,121 568,563
Total debt 1,788,717 1,875,010
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 19 (695,369) (985,546)
Adjusted net debt 1,093,348 889,464
Total equity 1,544,483 1,882,735
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio 71% 47%
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, currency and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business. These
risks are limited by the Group’'s financial management policies and practices described below.

(@)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss
to the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables, pledged deposits and
deposits and cash.

In respect of pledged bank deposits and deposits and cash, the Group only places deposits with major financial
institutions in Hong Kong, Singapore and the Mainland China.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has established credit control policies of which credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures for debts recovery are in place to minimise the credit risk. In
addition, management reviews the recoverable amount of each individual receivable regularly to ensure that
adequate loss allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts. With such policies in place, the Group has been able
to maintain its bad debts at minimal level.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases. The allowance for expected credit losses is insignificant.

Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains

sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay. As deposits received do not have fixed repayment terms,
their carrying amounts have not been included in the table.

For a term loan subject to repayment on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflows based on the contractual repayment schedule and, separately, the impact to the

timing of the cash outflows if the lender was to invoke its unconditional right to call the loan with immediate effect.

As at 3| December 2021

Total More than More than

contractual Within | year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted | year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade payables 83,812 83,812 83,812 - - -
Other payables and accrued charges 153,214 153,214 153,214 - - -
Lease liabilities 726,589 817,755 137,173 135,501 333,949 211,132
Bank loans 1,062,128 1,067,911 1,067,911 - - -

2,025,743 2,122,692 1,442,110 135,501 333,949 211,132
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

O)

As at 3| December 2020

Total More than More than

contractual Within | year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted | year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade payables 53,693 53,693 53,693 - - -
Other payables and accrued charges 122,238 122,238 122,238 = = =
Lease liabilities 668,891 762,38 123,199 108,536 319413 211233
Bank loans 1,206,119 1,246,782 167,404 181,856 897,522 =
2050941 2,185,094 466,534 290392 1216935 211233

Note:

0] Further details regarding maturity term of the bank loans and the material uncertainties in respect of the Group's ability to

continue as a going concern are set out in note 2(b).

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate. Exchange differences arising on settling or translating these
foreign currency monetary items at rates different from those at dates of transactions giving rise to these monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group enters into transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. Consequently, the Group is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of the relevant functional
currency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that
portion of the Group’s assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the relevant functional currency. As
the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does not expect any significant movements
in the HKD/USD exchange rate. The currencies giving rise to foreign currency risk are primarily Renminbi and
Singapore dollars. Management of the Group continuously monitors the Group's exposure to such foreign currency
risks to ensure they are at manageable levels.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation purpose, the amount of exposure are shown in original
currencies.

Exposure to foreign currencies

2021 2020

Singapore Singapore
Renminbi dollars Renminbi dollars
’000 ’000 '000 '000

Other receivables,
deposits and prepayments 5 - 40 =
Deposits and cash 125,467 3,751 84,397 27928
Other payables and accrued charges (217) - 217) -
Intercompany balance 267,724 167 280,21 | -
Bank loans - (34,600) — (38,253)
Net exposure to currency risk 392,979 (30,682) 364,431 (10,325)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's loss after taxation and retained
earnings that would have arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
Other components of equity would not be affected by changes in the foreign exchange rates:

2021 2020
Decrease/ Decrease/
(increase) (increase)
in loss after in loss after
Increase/ taxation and Increase/ taxation and
(decrease) increase/ (decrease) increase/
in foreign (decrease) in foreign (decrease)
exchange in retained exchange in retained
rates earnings rates earnings
HK$°000 HK$'000
Renminbi 5% 20,016 5% 18,106
(5)% (20,016) (5)% (18,106)
Singapore dollars 5% (7,391) 5% (2,530)
(5)% 7,391 (5)% 2,530

Results of the analysis in the above table present an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the
Group entities’ profit after taxation and equity measured in the respective functional currencies and shown in
original currencies.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group's presentation currency. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as for 2020.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily to the Group's short
and long-term loans. Borrowings at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group manages its interest rate risk exposures in accordance with defined policies through regular review with
a focus on reducing the Group's overall cost of funding as well as having regard to the floating/fixed rate mix
appropriate to its current business portfolio.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting

period:

2021 2020

Effective rate Effective rate

% HK$’000 % HK$'000
Fixed rate borrowings:
Lease liabilities 2.38%-5.64% 726,589 2.38%-5.64% 668,89 |
Variable rate borrowings:
Bank loans (note 21) 1.13%~1.83% 1,062,128 [.10%-2.80% 1,206,119

(i)  Sensitivity analysis
At 3| December 2021, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 1% in interest rates, with all other

variables held constant, would have increased/decreased the Group's loss after taxation and decreased/
increased the Group's total equity by approximately HK$8,869,000 (2020: HK$10,017,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk in existence at
that date. The |% increase/decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonable possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as for 2020.
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Capital commitments outstanding not provided for in the financial statements

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's share of the joint venture’'s own capital commitments in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

2020
HK$'000

Contracted for:
Taiwan 4998

In addition to the Group's share of the joint venture’'s own capital commitments above, the Group had the following
capital commitments in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment as at 3| December 2021 and 2020:

2020
HK$'000

Contracted for:
Mainland China 539,569

At 31 December 2021, the Company has issued guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries amounting to HK$1,695,442,000 (2020: HK$1,808,730,000). At 31 December 2021, banking facilities of
HK$ 1,064,642,000 (2020: HK$1,223,930,000) had been utilised by the subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2021, the directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Company under
any of the guarantees. The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of bank guarantees as their fair
values cannot be reliably measured and no transaction price was incurred.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of their respective businesses.
Having reviewed outstanding claims and taking into account legal advice received, the directors are of the opinion that
even if the claims are found to be valid, there will be no material adverse effect on the financial position of the Group.
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On 25 January 2017, Giant Harvest Limited (“Giant Harvest”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with True Vision Limited (“True
Vision”), pursuant to which Giant Harvest conditionally agreed to sell and True Vision conditionally agreed to purchase,
the entire equity interest of City Entertainment Corporation Limited (“CECL") at a consideration of RMB3.286 billion (the
“Disposal”). Orange Sky Golden Harvest Cinema (China) Company Limited, the entity operating the Group's film
exhibition business in Mainland China, was owned as to 92.59% by CECL and 7.41% by Jiaxing Credit Prosperity
Investment Enterprise (Limited Partnership). The Disposal was completed on 28 July 2017.

The initial consideration of RMB3.286 billion was subsequently adjusted to RMB3.290 billion. Pursuant to the Sale and
Purchase Agreement, the consideration is subject to further adjustments based on the difference between the net debt
value of the disposal group as at 31 December 2016 and that derived from the completion accounts (the “Net Debt
Adjustment”). In 2018, the completion accounts were circulated among the Group and Nan Hai Corporation Limited
("Nan Hai", the holding company and guarantor of True Vision). However, the Net Debt Adjustment is yet to be agreed
between the two parties up to the date of approval of these financial statements.

Other than the Net Debt Adjustment, the consideration is subject to a refund of an amount up to RMB380 million to
Nan Hai, depending on the results of lease renewal or negotiation of new leases of certain cinema premises as detailed in
the Sale and Purchase Agreement. The amount of refund is determined with reference to the terms and outcome of the
lease renewal and the economic value of the renewed leases, subject to agreement with Nan Hai. The amount of refund,
if any, is yet to be agreed between the two parties up to the date of approval of these financial statements.

In 2017, the Group received an amount of RMB2,990,257,000 (equivalent to HK$3,455,908,000) in connection with the
Disposal. The remaining consideration of RMB300,000,000 is held in escrow and the recoverability of which is dependent
on the Net Debt Adjustment and the refund, if any, determined based on the results of lease renewal or negotiation of
new leases of certain cinema premises, which are subject to further negotiations and agreement between the Group and
Nan Hai. The directors assessed that the fair value of the consideration for the Disposal, based on the then latest available
information, to be RMB2.990 billion, being the cash consideration received by the Group, which was used to determine
the profit on the Disposal. Any difference between the final consideration received and the fair value of the consideration
as assessed by the directors will result in adjustment to the gain on disposal of subsidiaries and will be recognised in profit
or loss upon finalisation of the consideration.

Pursuant to the completion accounts of the disposal group, Giant Harvest calculated the remaining consideration for the
Disposal to be RMB252,207,249 (equivalent to US$37,383,975). As True Vision did not execute the joint written
instructions to the escrow agent for settlement of the remaining consideration to the Group while Nan Hai, the guarantor
of True Vision, failed to perform such payment obligation, the Group commenced legal proceedings against True Vision
and Nan Hai in September 2018 claiming a sum of US$37,384,000, being the remaining consideration for the Disposal,
and seeking other remedies, including interest and costs.

Subsequently, Nan Hai made various allegations against the Company and Giant Harvest and counter-claimed for the loss
arising from the breach of Sale and Purchase Agreement by Giant Harvest. In October and November 2018, Nan Hai
issued writs of summons against the Company and Giant Harvest claiming amounts of RMB380,000,000 and
RMB82,146,000 respectively and other remedies, including interest and costs (the “Said Claims”).

The directors of the Company disagree with the Said Claims made by Nan Hai. Further details of the legal proceedings
are set out in the Company's announcements dated 4 September 2018, |0 September 2018, 2 November 2018 and 9
November 2018.

Based on the available evidence and the advice received from the Company'’s legal advisor as at 31 December 2021, the
directors of the Company have assessed the likelihood of the Group incurring a liability as a result of the Said Claims as
remote. No provision has therefore been made in respect of the Said Claims as at 31 December 2021. In view of the
ongoing legal proceedings, the Group has not recognised the remaining consideration claimed against True Vision and
Nan Hai of RMB252,207,000 referred to above.
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Note 26 contains information about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to financial risk management. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(i)  Assessment of the economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group estimates the economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on the periods over which
the assets are expected to be available for use. The Group reviews annually their estimated useful lives, based on
factors that include asset utilisation, internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and
anticipated use of the assets tempered by related industry benchmark information. It is possible that future results
of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in the factors
mentioned. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment would increase depreciation
charges and decrease non-current assets.

(ii)  Assessment of impairment of other property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews internal and external sources of information at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. The Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount when any such indication exists. The recoverable
amount of an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its net selling price and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. The preparation of projected future cash flows involves the estimation of future revenue and operating costs
which are based on reasonable assumptions supported by information available to the Group. Changes in these
estimates would result in additional impairment provisions or reversal of impairment in future years.

(iii) Assessment of impairment of goodwill

The Group has performed an impairment test for goodwill in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
2(k)(ii). For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired has been allocated to individual cash-generating
units which are reviewed for impairment based on forecast operating performance and cash flows. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Cash flow projections
are prepared on the basis of reasonable assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market conditions, and are
discounted appropriately.
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COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2021 2020

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Wi ebedle e . 1,354,654 1,355,670
Current assets
Prepayments 302 481
Deposits and cash 164 162
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 466 RN
Current liabilities
Payables and accrued charges 2,494 1,649
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2494 1&®
Netcurrentliabilities .29 (1,006)
NET ASSETS 1,352,626 1,354,664
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25(b)(ii)
Share capital 279,967 279967
Reserves 1,072,659 |,074,697
TOTAL EQUITY 1,352,626 1,354,664
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32

33

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 has brought about additional uncertainties in the Group's operating
environment and has impacted the Group’s operations and financial position.

With the fifth wave of COVID-19 outbreak in Hong Kong since January 2022, the government has tightened the social
distancing measures including temporary closure of all cinemas in Hong Kong starting from 7 January 2022 until 20 April
2022.

The Group will continue to pay close attention of the development of the COVID-19 outbreak, evaluate and proactively
respond to its impact of the Group's financial position and operating results.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year ended 3| December 2021 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments include the following which may be relevant to
the group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework | January 2022
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equibment: Proceeds before Intended Use | January 2022
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract | January 2022
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle | January 2022
Amendments to HKAS |, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current | January 2023
Amendments to HKAS | and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting policies | January 2023
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates | January 2023
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from | January 2023

a single transaction

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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